Published for SISSA by 🖄 Springer

RECEIVED: February 18, 2024 ACCEPTED: March 20, 2024 PUBLISHED: May 9, 2024

Semi-inclusive single-jet production in DIS at next-to-leading order in the Color Glass Condensate

Paul Caucal¹,^a Elouan Ferrand^{a,b} and Farid Salazar¹,^{c,d,e,f,g} ^aSUBATECH UMR 6457 (IMT Atlantique, Université de Nantes, IN2P3/CNRS), 4 rue Alfred Kastler, 44307 Nantes, France ^bUniversité Paris-Saclay, Faculté des sciences d'Orsay, Magistère de Physique Fondamentale d'Orsay, Orsay, 91405, France ^cInstitute for Nuclear Theory, University of Washington, Seattle WA 98195-1550, U.S.A. ^dNuclear Science Division, Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratory, Berkeley, California 94720, U.S.A. ^ePhysics Department, University of California, Berkeley, California 94720, U.S.A. ^fDepartment of Physics and Astronomy, University of California, Los Angeles, California 90095, U.S.A. ⁹Mani L. Bhaumik Institute for Theoretical Physics, University of California, Los Angeles, California 90095, U.S.A. *E-mail:* caucal@subatech.in2p3.fr, elouan.ferrand@universite-paris-saclay.fr, faridsal@uw.edu

ABSTRACT: Within the Color Glass Condensate (CGC) effective field theory, we derive the next-to-leading order (NLO) cross-section for the single-jet semi-inclusive cross-section in deep inelastic scattering (DIS) at small x, for both longitudinally and transversely polarized virtual photons. We provide analytic expressions, valid at finite N_c and suitable for numerical evaluation, for both the cross-section differential in rapidity and transverse momentum and the cross-section differential in rapidity only. Our NLO formulae demonstrate that the very forward rapidity regime is plagued by large double logarithmic corrections coming from phase space constraints on soft gluons close to the kinematic threshold for jet production. A joint resummation of small-x and threshold logarithms at single logarithmic accuracy is proposed to remedy the instability of the cross-section in this regime. By integrating over the single-jet phase space, we recover known results for the NLO DIS structure functions at small x, previously obtained using the optical theorem.

KEYWORDS: Deep Inelastic Scattering or Small-x Physics, Higher-Order Perturbative Calculations, Resummation, Jets and Jet Substructure

ARXIV EPRINT: 2401.01934



Contents

1	1 Introduction	
2	Review of the SIDIS cross-section at leading order	5
	2.1 Dijet cross-section at leading order	5
	2.2 Semi-inclusive single-jet cross-section at LO	6
3	Calculation of the double differential SIDIS cross-section at NLO	7
	3.1 Cancellations between virtual and real diagrams	8
	3.2 Virtual diagrams	9
	3.3 Real diagrams	12
	3.4 Cancellation of UV, collinear and soft divergences	19
	3.5 Rapidity divergences: BK-JIMWLK factorization	20
	3.6 NLO impact factor for the double differential cross-section	24
4	The very forward rapidity regime	29
5	The transverse momentum integrated SIDIS cross-section at NLO	34
	5.1 UV divergences in the k_{\perp} integrated NLO,4 and NLO,1 terms	34
	5.2 UV divergences in the k_{\perp} integrated NLO,0 term	36
	5.3 NLO impact factor for the single differential cross-section	37
6	Recovering the NLO fully inclusive DIS cross-section at small x	40
	6.1 Cancellations between real and virtual diagrams	40
	6.2 Real diagrams	41
	6.3 Virtual diagrams	43
	6.4 Final result	44
7	Summary and outlook	45
\mathbf{A}	NLO impact factor for transversely polarized virtual photon	47
	A.1 Spin and polarization sums for the real inclusive dijet cross-section	47
	A.2 NLO impact factor for the double differential cross-section	48
	A.3 NLO impact factor for the single differential cross-section	53
в	Calculation of the k_{\perp} -dependent single threshold logarithm	55
С	The Fourier transform of the logarithm as a distribution	57
D	Cancellation of final state interferences in fully inclusive DIS	58

1 Introduction

The dipole picture [1–4] of Deep Inelastic Scattering (DIS) of electron off protons or large nuclei has emerged as a natural framework to study the high energy or Regge limit [5] of this process where the Bjorken variable $x_{\rm Bj} \sim Q^2/s$ goes to 0, for fixed Q^2 and large squared center-of-mass energies s. In this regime, the fast increase in the number of gluons populating the proton or nucleus incoming wave-function is tamed by non-linear recombination effects, a phenomenon known as gluon saturation [6, 7]. This phenomenon is characterized by an emergent semi-hard transverse momentum scale, the saturation scale Q_s , which grows with energy [8–10] and the nucleus mass number [11–13]. Unraveling the impact of gluon saturation in high energy DIS is one of the primary objectives of the future Electron-Ion Collider [14, 15]. In the color dipole picture at leading order in perturbative QCD (pQCD), the "incoming" virtual photon splits into a quark-antiquark pair which subsequently probes the dense gluon system of the nucleus, which is effectively treated as a highly occupied classical gluon field generated by the large x valence partons.

Advancing the understanding of the dipole picture of DIS in the high energy limit has been the subject of intense investigations over the past several years. These developments have followed multiple directions, with a special emphasis on the calculation of higher order quantum corrections for several DIS processes such as the total cross-section (structure functions [16– 23], including the diffractive ones [24]), exclusive vector meson production [25–27], exclusive dijet/dihadron production [28, 29], inclusive dijet plus photon production [30, 31], inclusive quarkonium plus gluon production [32], and the inclusive dijet/dihadron cross-section [33–37]. The seminal work in [38] established the connection between the dipole picture and transverse momentum-dependent factorization framework, which has resulted in several ongoing efforts to elucidate further this correspondence [39–54].

In this paper, we compute the next-to-leading order (NLO) corrections to the semiinclusive single-jet production cross-section (SIDIS) in the high energy limit of DIS.¹ We perform the calculation in the color dipole picture and within the Color Glass Condensate effective field theory (CGC EFT) [55–59]. Our starting point for the calculation of the NLO corrections to semi-inclusive single-jet production in DIS is the analytic expressions for inclusive dijet production in DIS obtained in [33]. At NLO, the quark-antiquark dipole is accompanied by either a real or virtual gluon. To obtain the SIDIS cross-section, one must integrate over the unmeasured partons in the final state. After integration, the resulting expression for a given NLO diagram may display new ultraviolet divergences in coordinate space. One of the main objectives of this work is to show that these divergences cancel out amongst each other and to provide analytic expressions for the NLO impact factor. We have computed the cross-section differential in jet transverse momentum \mathbf{k}_{\perp} and jet rapidity η , and for the cross-section differential in η only. The latter also involves the appearance of new UV divergences that emerge after integration over \mathbf{k}_{\perp} , which must be treated with care to demonstrate the finiteness of the cross-section.

¹Although the single-jet cross-section computed in this paper is inclusive over the final state particles, occasionally this process is referred to in the literature as "semi-inclusive". We shall use inclusive and semi-inclusive interchangeably.

Our work has been motivated on several fronts. The first one is related to the connection with TMD factorization. The SIDIS process computed at leading order in the dipole picture is known to admit a factorization in terms of the quark TMD distribution at small x [13, 60, 61] in the regime $Q^2 \gg k_{\perp}^2$. Remarkably, this factorization holds both in the dilute regime where $k_{\perp}^2 \gg Q_s^2$ and in the non-linear regime with $k_{\perp}^2 \sim Q_s^2$ [62, 63]. This factorization framework has been recently employed in phenomenological studies of lepton-jet correlations [64, 65] and transverse energy-energy correlators [66]. To elucidate these studies one must determine if TMD factorization persists at NLO. The first step to address this question is to perform the full NLO computation in the CGC EFT, and then examine the TMD limit $k_{\perp}^2, Q_s^2 \ll Q^2$.

Another motivation is to assess the sensitivity of this process to gluon saturation effects. Recently, it has been shown in [67] that the very forward jet regime has great potential to reveal saturation effects at large Q^2 where non-perturbative contamination is expected to be suppressed. Let us briefly review the physical explanation behind this enhanced sensitivity in the forward regime. The transverse size of the quark-antiquark pair is determined by the scale $1/\bar{Q}$, with $\bar{Q}^2 = z(1-z)Q^2$ and $z = k^-/q^-$ the relative light-cone longitudinal momentum of the jet with respect to that of the virtual photon. Thus, even at large Q^2 , the size of the dipole can be comparable to $1/Q_s$ if z is sufficiently close to 1. For $1 - z \leq Q_s^2/Q^2 \ll 1$, the dipole undergoes strong scattering and therefore probes the gluon-saturated wave-function of the nucleus. In terms of concrete observables, the onset of saturation and high energy evolution is signaled by the disappearance of the Cronin-like peak [68, 69] and the suppression in the nuclear modification factor for the SIDIS cross-section differential in \mathbf{k}_{\perp} for fixed $\bar{Q}^2 \ll Q^2$ as $x_{\rm Bj}$ gets smaller (or as the energy of the collision increases) [67]. The nuclear modification factor for the \mathbf{k}_{\perp} -integrated SIDIS cross-section differential in z also undergoes a strong suppression for z close to 1 [67].

Based on these promising phenomenological results at leading order in the dipole picture, we would like to address the impact of QCD radiative corrections. Owing to our analytic expressions for the NLO corrections to SIDIS, we find large double and single logarithms of 1 - z in the forward rapidity regime, even in the case of a jet measurement, contrary to what is claimed in [67]. The origin of these large logarithms is clear, as also stated in [67]: they arise from the mismatch between real and virtual soft gluon corrections when reaching the edge of the real emission phase space. We shall call these logarithms "threshold logarithms" as they come from soft gluons which are strongly suppressed near the kinematic threshold z = 1. This is in direct analogy with the large logarithms which arise in very forward hadron production in pA collisions [70–74] when the longitudinal momentum fraction of the produced parton with respect to the incoming one approaches unity.

The coefficients of the double and single logarithms are computed explicitly. In particular, the dominant double logarithmic correction $-\alpha_s C_F/(2\pi) \ln^2(1-z)$ is negative, which results in the suppression of the cross-section in the forward rapidity regime, similar to the suppression induced by gluon saturation. This is reminiscent of the competing effect between saturation and Sudakov suppression for inclusive back-to-back dijet production in DIS [36, 39, 40, 49]. Yet, soft gluon radiation for SIDIS at very forward rapidities should be less unfavorable than for inclusive back-to-back dijet in regards to distinguishing it from saturation effects. Indeed, by exponentiating the threshold double logarithms, one realizes that the Sudakov suppression for z close to one completely factorizes and is independent of the nuclear target (contrary to Sudakov suppression for back-to-back dijet which is a convolution in coordinate space). Consequently, we expect the exact cancellation (at least to double logarithmic accuracy) of the Sudakov suppression in a nuclear modification factor, leaving only the imprint of saturation in such a ratio.

The NLO corrections to semi-inclusive single hadron production cross-section at small x have been computed in [75], while the NLO impact factor for diffractive single hadron production is computed in [76]. Our present work differs from these studies in several aspects. First, we consider single *jet* production instead of single hadron production. While jet measurements will be challenging at the EIC [77-82], jet cross-sections are theoretically more robust as they do not suffer from the uncertainties introduced by fragmentation functions. Unlike [75], we explicitly regulate and isolate divergences in the transverse space using dimensional regularization. This method also allows us to calculate explicitly the NLO impact for both photon polarizations (longitudinal and transverse). Furthermore, we work at finite N_c and include the contributions where the tagged jet is sourced by a gluon. Hence, most of the results presented in this paper are new. One of the surprises lies in the $1/N_c^2$ suppressed corrections to the NLO impact factor: we find that they depend on the quadrupole CGC correlator (CGC average of a trace of four Wilson lines). This dependence is caused by the color exchange in real and virtual final state gluon emissions between the quark and the antiquark and is not present in the diffractive case [76]. It would have not been possible to anticipate the appearance of the quadrupole in the NLO impact factor based on the highenergy evolution of the LO cross-section alone, as the latter only involves dipole correlators.

By integrating the real and virtual cross-section for inclusive dijet production over the full phase space (3-body phase space in the case of the real cross-section), we recover the NLO corrections to the total DIS cross-section at small x previously obtained in [16, 19, 20] using the optical theorem. We observe subtle cancellations among diagrams in covariant perturbation theory that are necessary to obtain the expressions in [20]. These cancellations rely on properly identifying the physical impact parameter vector of the virtual photon in the dipole frame. These results are important consistency checks of our formulae in this paper and the results in [33] and of the validity of the dipole picture of DIS within the CGC EFT at NLO.

Our paper is divided as follows. In section 2, we define the semi-inclusive single-jet cross-section and review the calculation of this process in the dipole picture at leading order, starting from the inclusive dijet case in the CGC EFT. Section 3 details the calculation of the NLO diagrams contributing to the SIDIS cross-section. We further show that the cross-section is finite and that its high energy evolution is given by the BK-JIMWLK equation. Our final results for the NLO impact factor are presented in subsection 3.6. We demonstrate the emergence of large threshold logs in the very forward jet limit in section 4. We present the results for rapidity-only differential jet cross-section in section 5. Finally, we recover the fully inclusive DIS cross-section in section 6.

The paper is supplemented by four appendices. Appendix A gathers the analytic formula for the SIDIS cross-section for transversely polarized virtual photons. In appendix B, we provide explicit expressions for the single threshold logarithms. Appendix C includes useful mathematical identities in distribution theory. Finally, appendix D presents a short proof of the cancellation of the final state gluon emissions in fully inclusive DIS.

2 Review of the SIDIS cross-section at leading order

This first section is a brief derivation of the semi-inclusive single-jet cross-section at leading order in the dipole picture, starting from the LO expression for inclusive dijet production in the CGC. We fix our notations and properly define the semi-inclusive single-jet cross-section.

2.1 Dijet cross-section at leading order

The calculation of the inclusive *dijet* cross-section in DIS at leading order in pQCD is now a textbook exercise [38, 80, 83]. For a detailed derivation within the CGC effective field theory and in standard covariant perturbation theory, we refer the reader to [33]. In the dipole frame, the virtual photon with polarization λ has a four-momentum $q^{\mu} = (-Q^2/(2q^-), q^-, \mathbf{0}_{\perp})$ in light cone coordinates, with $Q^2 = -q^2$ the spacelike virtuality of the photon. The nucleus or proton target has instead only a large P^+ component, such that its four-momentum reads $P^{\mu} = (P^+, 0, \mathbf{0}_{\perp})$, where we neglected the nucleus mass. We denote $\mathbf{k}_{1\perp}$ and $\mathbf{k}_{2\perp}$ as the transverse momenta of the quark and antiquark jets j_1 and j_2 , and η_1 , η_2 are their rapidities, which are related to the longitudinal momentum fraction $z_i = k_i^-/q^-$ with respect to the virtual photon as

$$\eta_i = \ln\left(\sqrt{2}z_i q^- / k_{i\perp}\right), \quad i = 1, 2.$$
(2.1)

With these notations, the hadronic component of the inclusive dijet cross-section at leading order in α_s reads

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to j_{1}j_{2}+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{2\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}\mathrm{d}\eta_{2}}\bigg|_{\mathrm{LO}} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{6}}\delta(1-z_{1}-z_{2}) \\
\times \int \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{\prime}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}^{\prime} e^{-i\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k_{2\perp}}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}}\mathcal{R}_{\mathrm{LO}}^{\lambda}(\boldsymbol{r}_{xy},\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y'}) \\
\times \langle 1-D_{xy}-D_{y'x'}+Q_{xy;y'x'}\rangle .$$
(2.2)

In this equation, α_{em} refers to the fine structure constant, e_f^2 is the sum of the squares of the fractional electric charge of the light quarks, and the perturbative factor \mathcal{R} , associated with the decay of the virtual photon into the quark-antiquark pair, is defined to be

$$\mathcal{R}_{\rm LO}^{\rm L}(\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}, \boldsymbol{r}_{x'y'}) = 8z_1^3 z_2^3 Q^2 K_0\left(\sqrt{z_1 z_2} Q r_{xy}\right) K_0\left(\sqrt{z_1 z_2} Q r_{x'y'}\right) , \qquad (2.3)$$

$$\mathcal{R}_{\rm LO}^{\rm T}(\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}, \boldsymbol{r}_{x'y'}) = 2z_1^2 z_2^2 \left[z_1^2 + z_2^2 \right] \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{xy} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{x'y'}}{r_{xy} r_{x'y'}} Q^2 K_1 \left(\sqrt{z_1 z_2} Q r_{xy} \right) K_1 \left(\sqrt{z_1 z_2} Q r_{x'y'} \right) .$$
(2.4)

Throughout this paper, we shall use the following notation for the difference of any transverse vectors a_{\perp} and b_{\perp} :

$$\boldsymbol{r}_{ab} \equiv \boldsymbol{a}_{\perp} - \boldsymbol{b}_{\perp} \,. \tag{2.5}$$

The CGC color correlator in the last line of eq. (2.2) encodes the interaction of the color dipole with the CGC "shockwave", where the average $\langle \ldots \rangle$ over stochastic large x color sources ρ with weight functional $\mathcal{W}_Y[\rho]$ is taken at some rapidity scale Y which is arbitrary

at this perturbative order. It depends both on the dipole and on the quadrupole, defined as the trace of the product of two and four Wilson lines:

$$D_{xy} \equiv \frac{1}{N_c} \operatorname{Tr} \left(V(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}) V^{\dagger}(\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}) \right) , \qquad (2.6)$$

$$Q_{xyy'x'} \equiv \frac{1}{N_c} \operatorname{Tr} \left(V(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}) V^{\dagger}(\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}) V(\boldsymbol{y}'_{\perp}) V^{\dagger}(\boldsymbol{x}'_{\perp}) \right) \,. \tag{2.7}$$

2.2 Semi-inclusive single-jet cross-section at LO

We define the semi-inclusive single-jet cross-section in terms of the inclusive cross-section for producing N jets

$$\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma^{\star}_{\lambda}+A\to j_1j_2,\ldots,j_N+X},\tag{2.8}$$

as

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to j+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta} = \sum_{N=2}^{\infty} \int \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\ldots\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{N\perp}\int\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}\ldots\mathrm{d}\eta_{N}\,\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to j_{1},\ldots,j_{N}+X} \times F_{N}\left[\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp},\eta;\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp},\ldots,\boldsymbol{k}_{N\perp},\eta_{1},\ldots,\eta_{N}\right],$$
(2.9)

where F_N is a measurement function whose standard definition reads

$$F_N[\mathbf{k}_{\perp},\eta;\mathbf{k}_{1\perp},\ldots,\mathbf{k}_{\perp,N},\eta_1,\ldots,\eta_N] = \sum_{i=1}^N \delta^{(2)}(\mathbf{k}_{\perp}-\mathbf{k}_{i\perp})\delta(\eta-\eta_i).$$
(2.10)

With this definition, each jet in the final state is accounted for in the semi-inclusive single-jet cross-section. Note that this definition violates unitarity, namely the integral over \mathbf{k}_{\perp} and η of the single-jet semi-inclusive cross-section does not yield the total inclusive cross-section since a given event may be counted multiple times. For alternative choices of measurement functions F_N which satisfy unitarity, see [84].

At leading order, only the N = 2 term contributes to the semi-inclusive single-jet cross-section. Throughout the paper, we use k_1^{μ} and k_2^{μ} for the 4-vectors of the quark and antiquark jet respectively, and we reserve the notation k^{μ} for the 4-vector of the tagged jet (which can either be the quark, antiquark or gluon jet at NLO). Integrating over the "antiquark-jet" j_2 four-momentum yields a Dirac delta which fixes $\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp} = \boldsymbol{y}'_{\perp}$, so that the resulting \boldsymbol{y}'_{\perp} integral is straightforward:

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\bigg|_{\mathrm{LO}} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{\prime}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}\mathcal{H}_{\mathrm{LO}}^{\lambda}(z_{1},Q^{2},\boldsymbol{r}_{xy},\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}) \times \Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{\prime}).$$
(2.11)

The SIDIS hard factors in coordinate space are given by

$$\mathcal{H}_{\rm LO}^{\rm L}(z, Q^2, \boldsymbol{r}_{xy}, \boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}) = 8z^3(1-z)^2 Q^2 K_0(\bar{Q}r_{xy}) K_0(\bar{Q}r_{x'y}) \,, \tag{2.12}$$

$$\mathcal{H}_{\rm LO}^{\rm T}(z,Q^2,\boldsymbol{r}_{xy},\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}) = 2z \left[z^2 + (1-z)^2 \right] \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{xy} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}}{r_{xy} r_{x'y}} \bar{Q}^2 K_1(\bar{Q}r_{xy}) K_1(\bar{Q}r_{x'y}) , \qquad (2.13)$$

for a longitudinally and transversely polarized photon respectively. We define $\bar{Q}^2 = z(1-z)Q^2$. The color structure is much simpler, as only dipole operators are involved when $y_{\perp} = y'_{\perp}$,

$$\Xi_{\rm LO}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{x}'_{\perp}) = \langle D_{xx'} - D_{xy} - D_{yx'} + 1 \rangle . \qquad (2.14)$$

To get the contribution where the measured jet is j_2 , one notices that it is sufficient to make the following change

$$\Xi_{\rm LO}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{x}'_{\perp}) \to \Xi^*_{\rm LO}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{x}'_{\perp}), \qquad (2.15)$$

in the previous expression. This property also holds for the NLO corrections: the contribution where the anti-quark jet is measured can be obtained from the contribution where the quark jet is measured by taking the complex conjugate of the color structure in the formula. As expected, the SIDIS jet cross-section is not sensitive to the imaginary part of the dipole scattering amplitude (usually named C-odd component or "odderon" [85–87]). In the end, the semi-inclusive single-jet cross-section at leading order is given by

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to j+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{LO}} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{\prime}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}\mathcal{H}_{\mathrm{LO}}^{\lambda}(z,Q^{2},\boldsymbol{r}_{xy},\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}) \times 2\mathfrak{Re}\left\langle D_{xx'}-D_{xy}-D_{yx'}+1\right\rangle.$$
(2.16)

Since we will also consider the transverse momentum integrated cross-section, we quote here the leading order result for the η -differential cross-section:

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to j+X}}{\mathrm{d}\eta}\bigg|_{\mathrm{LO}} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_f^2 N_c}{(2\pi)^2} \int \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{x}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp} \mathcal{H}_{\mathrm{LO}}^{\lambda}(z, Q^2, \boldsymbol{r}_{xy}, \boldsymbol{r}_{xy}) \times 4\mathfrak{Re} \left\langle 1 - D_{xy} \right\rangle, \qquad (2.17)$$

which is a particularly simple result. If one further integrates over η , one gets twice the fully inclusive DIS cross-section at small x at leading order. As previously mentioned, this is because each dijet event is counted twice due to our particular definition of the inclusive single-jet cross-section.

3 Calculation of the double differential SIDIS cross-section at NLO

Our starting point is the inclusive dijet cross-section computed at NLO in [33]. The Feynman diagrams that contribute to the cross-section are displayed in figure 1. In this figure, the diagrams in which the quark and antiquark are interchanged are not shown. Throughout this paper, they will be noted with an additional line over the label of the graph, e.g. $V1 \rightarrow \overline{V1}$. We shall also adopt the following notation. The contribution from two given Feynman graphs G1 and G2 to the SIDIS cross-section is noted $d\sigma_{G1\times G2^*}$, where the graph G1 is in the amplitude and G2 is in the complex conjugate amplitude. For instance, the vertex correction with gluon crossing the shock-wave V1 (see figure 1) gives two terms to the SIDIS cross-section, $d\sigma_{V1\times LO^*}$ and $d\sigma_{LO\times V1^*}$.

We will detail the interesting features of the calculation for the simpler case of a longitudinally polarized virtual photon but when possible we will show results that are applicable for both polarizations. The results for the SIDIS cross-section for transversely



Figure 1. Feynman diagrams contributing to the NLO cross-section. The quark-antiquark exchanged diagrams, named with an additional line over the diagram's label, are not shown. Also not shown is the diagram where the virtual photon creates a $q\bar{q}$ loop annihilating into a gluon, which finally generates a $q\bar{q}$ pair. This diagram vanishes when summing over light quark charges [36].

polarized virtual photons are given in the appendix A. For the reader who is not interested in the derivation of the cross-section but only in the final result, we refer to section 3.6 where only the expressions for the NLO SIDIS cross-section are provided in their final form.

From the expressions obtained in [33] for the inclusive dijet cross-section, it is relatively easy to get the semi-inclusive single-jet cross-section. The main difficulty comes from the emergence of new divergences when one of the final state parton is integrated out. In the virtual cross-section, there are only two jets in the final state. Consequently, we will simply integrate over the anti-quark jet phase space. As discussed in the previous section, the contribution where the antiquark jet is tagged can be obtained by taking the complex conjugate of the color structure in the final result, leaving invariant the rest of the expression. For the real cross-section, we will have to consider two cases: either the fermionic jet or the gluonic jet is tagged. This will be done in subsection 3.3.

Like in the calculation of inclusive dijet production in the CGC [33], we employ dimensional regularization in the transverse plane to isolate the UV and collinear divergences of a given diagram. To regulate the light cone divergences as the longitudinal momentum fraction of the gluon $z_g = k_g^-/q^-$ goes to zero, we use a cut-off regulator $\Lambda^- \equiv z_0 q^-$.

3.1 Cancellations between virtual and real diagrams

Before computing explicitly these phase-space integrals, we point out, following [75], some nice cancellations between virtual and real diagrams that share the same topology at the

cross-section level. In particular, we note that

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\bigg|_{\overline{\mathrm{SE1}}\times\mathrm{LO}^{*}} + \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\bigg|_{\overline{\mathrm{R1}}\times\overline{\mathrm{R2}}^{*}} = 0, \qquad (3.1)$$

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{*}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\bigg|_{\overline{\mathrm{V1}}\times\mathrm{LO}^{*}} + \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{*}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\bigg|_{\mathrm{R1}\times\overline{\mathrm{R2}}^{*}} = 0, \qquad (3.2)$$

and likewise for their complex conjugate. We have explicitly checked that these identities are true for both photon polarizations $\lambda = L, T$. Although the real terms $\overline{\text{R1}} \times \overline{\text{R2}}^*$ and $\text{R1} \times \overline{\text{R2}}^*$ do not need to be calculated when the fermionic jet is tagged, they will contribute when the gluon jet is measured in the final state.

In addition to the cancellations above, our particular choice of the dimensional regularization scheme for the transverse UV and IR divergences implies that

$$\left. \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma_{\lambda}^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{*}+A \to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}} \right|_{\mathrm{SE3\times LO}^{*}} = 0, \qquad (3.3)$$

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{*}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\overline{\mathrm{SE3}}\times\mathrm{LO}^{*}} = 0, \qquad (3.4)$$

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\bigg|_{\overline{\mathrm{R2}\times\overline{\mathrm{R2}}^{*}}}=0, \qquad (3.5)$$

in contrast to the results in [75] obtained without using dimensional regularization.

3.2 Virtual diagrams

In this subsection, we discuss the virtual diagrams that contribute to the NLO SIDIS crosssection. In the end, thanks to the results of the previous subsection, we only have to compute the contributions from diagrams SE1, SE2, $\overline{SE2}$, V1, V2 and V3.

3.2.1 Vertex and self-energy corrections with gluon crossing the shock-wave

Diagrams V1 × LO^{*} and SE1 × LO^{*} have been computed in [33] (see also eqs. (3.17) in [49]). In particular, the contribution from SE1 × LO^{*} has a UV divergence in coordinate space which is regularized by adding a suitable counter-term. The UV counter-term is then computed in dimensional regularization and added to the other UV divergent contributions such as $V2 \times LO^*$, SE2 × LO^{*} and $\overline{SE2} \times LO^*$. Those diagrams, including the UV counter-term of SE1 × LO^{*}, will be discussed in the next paragraph. Integrating over the anti-quark phase space the inclusive dijet cross-section coming from V1 × LO^{*} yields

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{*}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{V1\times LO}^{*}} = -\frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{'}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp} \ e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}8z_{1}^{3}(1-z_{1})^{2}Q^{2}K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y}) \\ \times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi}\int_{z_{0}}^{z_{1}}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{z_{1}}\right)\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{1-z_{1}}\right)\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{2z_{1}}-\frac{z_{g}}{2(1-z_{1}+z_{g})}\right) \\ \times \int\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}}{\pi}\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}}{r_{zx}^{2}r_{zy}^{2}}e^{-i\frac{z_{g}}{z_{1}}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}}K_{0}(QX_{\mathrm{V}})\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},1}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}'),$$
(3.6)

with

$$X_{\rm V}^2 = (1 - z_1)(z_1 - z_g)\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}^2 + z_g(z_1 - z_g)\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^2 + (1 - z_1)z_g\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^2, \qquad (3.7)$$

$$\Xi_{\rm NLO,1} = \frac{N_c}{2} \left\langle 1 - D_{yx'} - D_{xz} D_{zy} + D_{zx'} D_{xz} \right\rangle - \frac{1}{2N_c} \left\langle 1 - D_{xy} - D_{yx'} + D_{xx'} \right\rangle .$$
(3.8)

The color structure Ξ_{NLO1} only involves dipole correlators. Similarly, the UV regular part of SE1 × LO^{*} is given by

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\bigg|_{\mathrm{SE1\times LO^{*}, reg}} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}\ e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}8z_{1}^{3}(1-z_{1})^{2}Q^{2}K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y}) \times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi}\int_{z_{0}}^{z_{1}}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{z_{1}}+\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z_{1}^{2}}\right)\int\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}}{\pi}\frac{1}{r_{zx}^{2}}\bigg[e^{-i\frac{z_{g}}{z_{1}}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}}K_{0}(QX_{V})\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},1}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}') \\ -e^{-\frac{r_{zx}^{2}}{e^{\gamma_{E}}r_{xy}^{2}}}K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{xy})C_{F}\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}')\bigg], \qquad (3.9)$$

where the last line in the above expression corresponds to the UV counter-term such that the \mathbf{z}_{\perp} integral is well-defined as $\mathbf{r}_{zx} = \mathbf{z}_{\perp} - \mathbf{x}_{\perp} \rightarrow 0$. Indeed, in this limit, the expression in the square bracket vanishes like $\mathcal{O}(r_{zx})$.

3.2.2 The pole term

We define the pole term of the virtual cross-section as the sum of diagrams $V2 \times LO^*$, $SE2 \times LO^*$, $\overline{SE2} \times LO^*$ and the UV singular part of $SE1 \times LO^*$:

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{UV}} \equiv \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{V2\times LO^{*}}} + \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{SE2\times LO^{*}}} + \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{SE2\times LO^{*}}}.$$
(3.10)

Using eqs. (5.37), (5.40) and (5.78) from [33] and integrating over the anti-quark phase space, we get

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma_{\mathrm{L}^{+}A\to q+X}^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{+}A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{UV}} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}} \int \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{\prime}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}\mathcal{H}_{\mathrm{LO}}^{\lambda=\mathrm{L}}(\boldsymbol{r}_{xy},\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y})\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{\prime}) \\ \times \frac{\alpha_{s}C_{F}}{2\pi} \left\{ \left(\ln\left(\frac{z_{1}}{z_{0}}\right) - \ln\left(\frac{z_{2}}{z_{0}}\right)\right)\left(\frac{2}{\varepsilon} + \ln(e^{\gamma_{E}}\pi\mu^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}^{2})\right) + \frac{1}{2}\ln^{2}\left(\frac{z_{2}}{z_{1}}\right) - \frac{\pi^{2}}{6} + \frac{5}{2} \right\}.$$

$$(3.11)$$

In dimensional regularization, finite terms may arise from the product between the UV pole in $1/\varepsilon$ and $\mathcal{O}(\varepsilon)$ terms from the Dirac traces appearing in the numerator of the Feynman amplitude. These finite pieces have been explicitly computed in [33]. For the specific combination given by eq. (3.10), these finite terms cancel among each other.

3.2.3 Explicit calculation of the final state vertex correction

The final state vertex correction corresponding to diagram V3 needs more work. This is because in [33], we were not able to find a closed analytic expression for this diagram. Fortunately, the integration over the anti-quark phase space allows many simplifications.

The formula obtained in [33] for the contribution of $V3 \times LO^*$ to the inclusive dijet cross-section is

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to q\bar{q}+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{2\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{2}}\Big|_{\mathrm{V3\times LO^{*}}} = \frac{\alpha_{em}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{6}}\delta(1-z_{1}-z_{2})\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{\prime}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}^{\prime}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}$$

where the $(1 \leftrightarrow 2)$ notation corresponds to quark-antiquark interchange. The kinematic variables in this formula are defined by $\mathbf{P}_{\perp} = z_2 \mathbf{k}_{1\perp} - z_1 \mathbf{k}_{2\perp}$, $\mathbf{q}_{\perp} = \mathbf{k}_{1\perp} + \mathbf{k}_{2\perp}$, $\bar{Q}_{V3}^2 = (z_1 - z_g)(z_2 + z_g)Q^2$ and $\Delta_{V3}^2 = \left(1 - \frac{z_g}{z_1}\right)\left(1 + \frac{z_g}{z_2}\right)\mathbf{P}_{\perp}^2$. The CGC color correlator of this diagram is

$$\Xi_{\text{NLO},3} = \frac{N_c}{2} \left\langle 1 - D_{xy} - D_{y'x'} + D_{xy} D_{y'x'} \right\rangle - \frac{1}{2N_c} \left\langle 1 - D_{xy} - D_{y'x'} + Q_{xy;y'x'} \right\rangle, \qquad (3.13)$$

and depends on the quadrupole in the $1/N_c^2$ suppressed term. The function \mathcal{J}_{\odot} defined by

$$\mathcal{J}_{\odot}(\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{K}_{\perp}, \Delta) \equiv \int \frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{l}_{\perp}}{(2\pi)} \frac{2\boldsymbol{l}_{\perp} \cdot \boldsymbol{K}_{\perp} e^{i\boldsymbol{l}_{\perp} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}}}{\boldsymbol{l}_{\perp}^{2} \left[(\boldsymbol{l}_{\perp} - \boldsymbol{K}_{\perp})^{2} - \Delta^{2} - i\epsilon \right]},$$
(3.14)

is not known analytically. However, another expression for this function in terms of a single scalar integral over a Feynman parameter u was found in [33]. This expression turns out to be key to simplifying eq. (3.12) once one integrates over the antiquark phase space. As shown in appendix F.1 of [33], we have indeed

$$\mathcal{J}_{\odot}(\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{K}_{\perp}, \Delta) = i\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp} \cdot \boldsymbol{K}_{\perp} \int_{0}^{1} \mathrm{d}u \ e^{i\boldsymbol{u}\boldsymbol{K}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}} K_{0} \left(-i\delta_{\mathrm{V3}}\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}\right) + \boldsymbol{K}_{\perp}^{2} \int_{0}^{1} \mathrm{d}u \ e^{i\boldsymbol{u}\boldsymbol{K}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}} \frac{u\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}K_{1} \left(-i\delta_{\mathrm{V3}}\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}\right)}{\left(-i\delta_{\mathrm{V3}}\right)}, \qquad (3.15)$$

with $\delta_{V3} = \sqrt{|u(1-u)K_{\perp}^2 - u\Delta^2|}$. Using this representation of the \mathcal{J}_{\odot} function and after integration over the anti-quark phase space, one can perform the integration over the remaining

Feynman parameter u analytically. The final result for the diagram $V3 \times LO^*$ reads

$$\begin{aligned} \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma_{\gamma_{L}^{+}A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}} \bigg|_{\mathrm{V3\times LO^{*}}} &= \\ \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}} \int \mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{x}_{\perp}^{\prime}\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{y}_{\perp}^{\prime}\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{y}_{\perp}^{\prime}e^{-i\mathbf{k}_{1\perp}\cdot\left(\mathbf{r}_{xx'}+\frac{z_{2}}{z_{1}}\mathbf{r}_{yy'}\right)} \\ &\times 8z_{1}^{3}z_{2}^{2}Q^{2}K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y'})\frac{\alpha_{s}}{2\pi^{2}}\int_{z_{0}}^{1}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}} \left\{K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{V3}}r_{xy})\frac{\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{z_{1}}\right)^{2}\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{z_{2}}\right)e^{i\frac{z_{g}}{z_{1}}\mathbf{k}_{1\perp}\cdot\mathbf{r}_{xy}}\Theta(z_{1}-z_{g})}{\mathbf{r}_{yy'}^{2}\left[\mathbf{r}_{yy'}^{2}+(z_{1}-z_{g})\left(2\mathbf{r}_{yy'}\cdot\mathbf{r}_{xy}-\frac{z_{g}}{z_{2}}\mathbf{r}_{xy}^{2}\right)\right]} \\ &\left[\left(1+z_{g}\right)\mathbf{r}_{yy'}^{2}+2z_{1}\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{2z_{1}}+\frac{z_{g}}{2z_{2}}-\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z_{1}z_{2}}\right)\mathbf{r}_{xy}\cdot\mathbf{r}_{yy'}\right] \\ &+K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{xy})\frac{\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{z_{2}}\right)^{2}\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{z_{1}}\right)e^{-i\frac{z_{g}}{z_{1}}\mathbf{k}_{1\perp}\cdot\mathbf{r}_{xy}}\Theta(1-z_{1}-z_{g})}{\left(\mathbf{r}_{yy'}+\frac{z_{g}}{z_{2}}\mathbf{r}_{xy}\right)^{2}\left[\mathbf{r}_{yy'}^{2}+(z_{1}+z_{g})\left(2\mathbf{r}_{yy'}\cdot\mathbf{r}_{xy}+\frac{z_{g}}{z_{2}}\mathbf{r}_{xy}^{2}\right)\right]} \\ &\left[\left(1+z_{g}\right)\left(\mathbf{r}_{yy'}+\frac{z_{g}}{z_{2}}\mathbf{r}_{xy}\right)^{2}+2z_{1}\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{2z_{2}}+\frac{z_{g}}{2z_{1}}-\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z_{1}z_{2}}\right)\left(\mathbf{r}_{xy}\cdot\mathbf{r}_{yy'}+\frac{z_{g}}{z_{2}}\mathbf{r}_{xy}^{2}\right)\right]\right\} \\ &\times\left[\frac{N_{c}}{2}\left\langle1-D_{xy}-D_{y'x'}+D_{xy}D_{y'x'}\right\rangle-\frac{1}{2N_{c}}\left\langle1-D_{xy}-D_{y'x'}+Q_{xyy'x'}\right\rangle\right], \tag{3.16}$$

with $z_2 = 1 - z_1$ and $\bar{Q}_{R2}^2 = (1 - z_1 - z_g)(z_1 + z_g)Q^2$. Although this expression has still four integrals over 2-dimensional transverse coordinates and one integral over the longitudinal momentum fraction z_g of the gluon, it is a much simpler formula than eq. (3.12) because the integrant has an explicit analytic expression. This concludes our calculation of the virtual corrections to the semi-inclusive single-jet cross-section in DIS in the saturation formalism.

3.3 Real diagrams

For the real diagrams, the implementation of the jet definition is more complicated than for the virtual diagrams, as two partons can be clustered together to form a single jet. Also, in the case of a three-jet event, each jet can be tagged, in particular the one created by the additional gluon. We will first consider the case where the measured jet is fermionic, including the case where the gluon and the fermion are clustered together. In the last paragraph of this subsection, we will compute the semi-inclusive single-gluon production cross-section, excluding the cases where the gluon lies in the same jet as the quark or the antiquark. The use of the small-R or narrow jet approximation simplifies the treatment of overlapping contributions: if the diagram does not have a collinear singularity, the phase space where the gluon and the fermion or the two fermions are clustered together in the same jet is systematically power of R^2 suppressed [88]. For these diagrams, one can simply integrate over the two untagged partons to get the single-jet semi-inclusive cross-section.

Jets are defined from the partonic final state using a procedure common to all clustering algorithms within the generalized k_t family [89, 90], including the famous anti- k_t [91] or Cambridge-Aachen [92] algorithms. The condition for any pair of partons labeled i and k to be clustered together within the same jet with transverse momentum \mathbf{k}_{\perp} and longitudinal momentum fraction z reads, up to power of R^4 corrections,

$$\mathcal{C}_{ik}^2 \le R^2 \mathbf{k}_{\perp}^2 \frac{z_i^2 z_k^2}{z^4}, \quad \mathcal{C}_{ik} = \frac{z_i}{z} \mathbf{k}_{\perp,k} - \frac{z_k}{z} \mathbf{k}_{\perp,i}, \qquad (3.17)$$

with C_{ik} the collinearity vector between the two partons (which goes to 0 as the two partons become collinear). If they are clustered together, the four momentum of the jet is simply the sum of the four momenta of the two partons *i* and *k*. In particular $\mathbf{k}_{\perp} = \mathbf{k}_{\perp,i} + \mathbf{k}_{\perp,k}$ and $z = z_i + z_k$.

We shall divide the discussion of the real cross-section depending on whether the measured jet is fermionic (by that, we mean that it contains at least a quark or an anti-quark) or gluonic.

3.3.1 Fermion-jet contributions with collinear divergence

We start with the diagram $R2 \times R2^*$ which is the only diagram with a collinear divergence when the gluon and the quark become collinear to each other. By quark-antiquark symmetry, the diagram $\overline{R2} \times \overline{R2}^*$ is also collinearly divergent when the gluon and the anti-quark are collinear. However, if the quark jet is measured, then this contribution to the real NLO single-jet semi-inclusive cross-section is identically zero in dimension regularization according to eq. (3.5). If the antiquark jet is measured, one can simply relate via complex conjugation of the CGC color correlator the contribution of diagram $\overline{R2} \times \overline{R2}^*$ with that of diagram $R2 \times R2^*$ when the quark jet is measured.

The implementation of the jet definition gives two terms from $R2 \times R2^*$. The first one, labeled "in", corresponds to the case where the gluon and the quark are clustered within the same jet. For jets defined with generalized k_t algorithms in the small R approximation, one imposes the condition

$$\mathcal{C}_{qg}^2 \le R^2 \mathbf{k}_\perp^2 \frac{z_1^2 z_g^2}{z^4}, \qquad (3.18)$$

on the phase-space integration, with $\mathbf{k}_{\perp} = \mathbf{k}_{1\perp} + \mathbf{k}_{g\perp}$ and $z = z_1 + z_g$. Then the quark-jet is measured and the anti-quark jet is integrated over. This contribution is computed in dimensional regularization to regulate the collinear singularity. We have

$$\frac{d\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{d^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}d\eta_{1}}\Big|_{R2\times R2^{*},in} = \frac{d\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{d^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}d\eta_{1}}\Big|_{LO} \times \frac{\alpha_{s}C_{F}}{\pi} \left\{ \left(\frac{3}{4} - \ln\left(\frac{z_{1}}{z_{0}}\right)\right)\frac{2}{\varepsilon} + \ln^{2}(z_{1}) - \ln^{2}(z_{0}) + \left(\ln\left(\frac{z_{1}}{z_{0}}\right) - \frac{3}{4}\right)\ln\left(\frac{R^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}^{2}}{\tilde{\mu}^{2}z_{1}^{2}}\right) - \frac{\pi^{2}}{2} + \frac{3}{2}\left(1 - \ln\left(2z_{1}\right)\right) + 3 + \frac{1}{4} + \mathcal{O}(R^{2}) \right\}, \quad (3.19)$$

with the $\overline{\text{MS}} \ \tilde{\mu}^2 = 4\pi e^{-\gamma_E} \mu^2$. In this expression, the +1/4 finite term comes from the product between the $1/\varepsilon$ collinear pole and the $\mathcal{O}(\varepsilon)$ term in the ε -expansion of the Dirac trace in $4 - \varepsilon$ dimension of diagram R2 × R2^{*}.

The second term comes from three-jet configurations, with the quark, the gluon, and the anti-quark forming three well-separated jets. The gluon and anti-quark jet are then integrated over. The case where the gluon is measured and the other two jets are integrated will be considered in section 3.3.4. Further, it is convenient to decompose this contribution into two terms, labeled "soft" and "reg", by isolating the soft divergent contribution as $z_q \rightarrow 0$. We have then

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{*}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{R2\times R2^{*}, soft}} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{x}_{\perp}^{'}\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{y}_{\perp}e^{-i\mathbf{k}_{1\perp}\cdot\mathbf{r}_{xx'}}\mathcal{H}_{\mathrm{LO}}^{\lambda}(z_{1},Q^{2},\mathbf{r}_{xy},\mathbf{r}_{x'y}) \times \Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\mathbf{x}_{\perp},\mathbf{y}_{\perp},\mathbf{x}_{\perp}')\times\frac{\alpha_{s}C_{F}}{\pi}\left\{\ln^{2}\left(\frac{z_{1}}{z_{0}}\right)-\ln^{2}\left(\frac{z_{1}}{1-z_{1}}\right)-\ln\left(\frac{1-z_{1}}{z_{0}}\right)\ln\left(\frac{\mathbf{k}_{1\perp}^{2}\mathbf{r}_{xx'}^{2}R^{2}}{c_{0}^{2}}\right)\right\}, \tag{3.20}$$

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{*}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{2}\mathbf{r}_{\perp}^{*}}=$$

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma'_{\perp} \mathbf{h} \mathbf{h} \mathbf{h} \mathbf{h} \mathbf{h}}{\mathrm{d}^{2} \mathbf{k}_{1\perp} \mathrm{d}\eta_{1}} \bigg|_{\mathrm{R2} \times \mathrm{R2}^{*}, \mathrm{reg}} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}} e_{f}^{2} N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}} \int \mathrm{d}^{2} \mathbf{x}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}^{2} \mathbf{x}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}^{2} \mathbf{y}_{\perp} e^{-i\mathbf{k}_{1\perp} \cdot \mathbf{r}_{xx'}} \Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\mathbf{x}_{\perp}, \mathbf{y}_{\perp}, \mathbf{x}_{\perp}') \\ \times \frac{(-\alpha_{s}) C_{F}}{\pi} \int_{0}^{1-z_{1}} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}} 8z_{1}^{3} (1-z_{1})^{2} Q^{2} K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}} r_{x'y}) \ln\left(\frac{\mathbf{k}_{1\perp}^{2} r_{xx'}^{2} R^{2} z_{g}^{2}}{c_{0}^{2} z_{1}^{2}}\right) \\ \times \left\{ e^{-i\frac{z_{g}}{z_{1}} \mathbf{k}_{1\perp} \mathbf{r}_{xx'}} \left(1 - \frac{z_{g}}{1-z_{1}}\right)^{2} \left(1 + \frac{z_{g}}{z_{1}}\right)^{2} \left(1 + \frac{z_{g}}{z_{1}} + \frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z_{1}^{2}}\right) K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}} r_{xy}) - K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{xy}) \right\}.$$
(3.21)

One can already notice that the double logarithmic term in $\ln^2(z_0)$ cancels between the "soft" and the "in" term, as observed in the inclusive dijet calculation [36, 49].

3.3.2 Fermion-jet contributions with UV divergence

An interesting feature of the single-jet semi-inclusive calculation with respect to the inclusive dijet case is that some diagrams that are regular in the latter case become singular in the former. It is the case of the real correction associated with $\overline{\text{R1}} \times \overline{\text{R1}}^*$ once one integrates over the antiquark and gluon phase space. By symmetry, the same divergence occurs for diagram $\text{R1} \times \text{R1}^*$ if only the antiquark jet is measured. Integrating over the anti-quark and gluon 4-momenta in the $q\bar{q}g$ cross-section obtained in [33], we get

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{*}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\overline{\mathrm{R1}}\times\overline{\mathrm{R1}}^{*}} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{'}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}\int_{z_{0}}^{1-z_{1}}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}8z_{1}^{3}(1-z_{1})^{2}Q^{2} \times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi}\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{1-z_{1}}\right)^{2}\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{1-z_{1}-z_{g}}+\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2(1-z_{1}-z_{g})^{2}}\right)\int\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}}{\pi}\frac{1}{r_{zy}^{2}}K_{0}(QX_{R})K_{0}(QX_{R}') \times \Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},4}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}'), \qquad (3.22)$$

with

$$\Xi_{\text{NLO},4}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}') \equiv \frac{N_c}{2} \langle D_{xx'} - D_{xz} D_{zy} - D_{yz} D_{zx'} + 1 \rangle - \frac{1}{2N_c} \langle D_{xx'} - D_{xy} - D_{yx'} + 1 \rangle , \qquad (3.23)$$

and the transverse coordinates

$$X_R^2 = z_1(1 - z_1 - z_g)\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}^2 + z_1 z_g \boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^2 + (1 - z_1 - z_g) z_g \boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^2, \qquad (3.24)$$

$$X_R^{\prime 2} = z_1(1 - z_1 - z_g)\boldsymbol{r}_{x^{\prime}y}^2 + z_1 z_g \boldsymbol{r}_{zx^{\prime}}^2 + (1 - z_1 - z_g) z_g \boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^2.$$
(3.25)

This expression is UV divergent because of the $r_{zy} \rightarrow 0$ singularity in the z_{\perp} integral. To extract this divergence and provide an expression for $\overline{\text{R1}} \times \overline{\text{R1}}^*$ which is suitable for numerical evaluation, we follow the same strategy as for the treatment of the UV divergence in coordinate space of diagram SE1 × LO^{*}. In concrete terms, we write

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\overline{\mathrm{R1}}\times\overline{\mathrm{R1}}^{*}} = \underbrace{\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\overline{\mathrm{R1}}\times\overline{\mathrm{R1}}^{*}} - \underbrace{\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\overline{\mathrm{R1}}\times\overline{\mathrm{R1}}^{*},\mathrm{reg}}}_{\equiv\overline{\mathrm{R1}}\times\overline{\mathrm{R1}}^{*},\mathrm{reg}} + \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\overline{\mathrm{R1}}\times\overline{\mathrm{R1}}^{*},\mathrm{UV}}, \qquad (3.26)$$

with the UV subtraction term defined by

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{*}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\overline{\mathrm{RI}}\times\overline{\mathrm{RI}}^{*},\mathrm{UV}} \equiv \\
\frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{'}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}\int_{z_{0}}^{1-z_{1}}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}8z_{1}^{3}(1-z_{1})^{2}Q^{2} \\
\times\frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi}\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{1-z_{1}}\right)^{2}\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{1-z_{1}-z_{g}}+\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2(1-z_{1}-z_{g})^{2}}\right)\int\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}}{\pi}\frac{e^{-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}}{2\xi}}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}}K_{0}(\bar{Q}\boldsymbol{r}_{xy})K_{0}(\bar{Q}\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}) \\
\times\langle D_{xx'}-D_{xy}-D_{yx'}+1\rangle, \qquad (3.27)$$

which allows for the cancellation of the UV divergence, without introducing any further IR divergence as $\mathbf{r}_{zy} \to \infty$ thanks to the exponential $\exp(-\mathbf{r}_{zy}^2/(2\xi))$ suppression at large \mathbf{r}_{zy} . In this exponential, ξ is an arbitrary transverse scale squared, which will be fixed at the end of our calculation to simplify the extraction of the BK-JIMWLK evolution of the CGC dipole operators. Thanks to its simple form, the UV counter-term can be computed analytically in dimensional regularization $d^2 \mathbf{z}_{\perp} \to d^{2+\varepsilon} \mathbf{z}_{\perp}$, such that:

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{*}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\overline{\mathrm{R1}}\times\overline{\mathrm{R1}}^{*},\mathrm{UV}} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{'}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}\mathcal{H}_{\mathrm{LO}}^{\lambda}(z_{1},Q^{2},\boldsymbol{r}_{xy},\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}) \times \Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}')\times\frac{\alpha_{s}C_{F}}{\pi}\left\{\left(\ln\left(\frac{z_{2}}{z_{0}}\right)-\frac{3}{4}\right)\left(\frac{2}{\varepsilon}+\ln(2\pi\mu^{2}\xi)\right)-\frac{1}{4}\right\}, \quad (3.28)$$

where the last -1/4 term comes again from the product between the UV pole and the $\mathcal{O}(\varepsilon)$ term in the Dirac trace of $\overline{\text{R1}} \times \overline{\text{R1}}^*$.

The regular term reads:

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{*}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\overline{\mathrm{R1}}\times\overline{\mathrm{R1}}^{*},\mathrm{reg}} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{'}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}\int_{z_{0}}^{1-z_{1}}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}8z_{1}^{3}(1-z_{1})^{2}Q^{2} \times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi}\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{1-z_{1}}\right)^{2}\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{1-z_{1}-z_{g}}+\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2(1-z_{1}-z_{g})^{2}}\right)\int\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}}{\pi}\frac{K_{0}(QX_{R})K_{0}(QX_{R}')}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}} \times \left[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},4}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}')-e^{-\frac{r_{zy}^{2}}{2\xi}}\frac{K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{xy})K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y})}{K_{0}(QX_{R}')}C_{F}\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}')\right]. \quad (3.29)$$

3.3.3 Regular fermion-jet contributions

We finally gather here all the other real corrections with the quark-jet tagged which are neither collinear nor UV divergent in coordinate space. As mentioned at the beginning of section 3.3, for these diagrams, one can freely integrate over the antiquark and gluon phase space without being worried about configurations where the gluon and the quark, the gluon and the antiquark or the two fermions lie in the same jet as such configurations are power of R^2 suppressed in the narrow jet limit.

The first regular diagram is $R2 \times \overline{R2}^*$ (and its complex conjugate). We obtain, after a straightforward integration of eq. (B.11) in [49], the following result:

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{*}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{R2\times\overline{R2}}^{*}} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{8}\boldsymbol{X}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}8(1-z_{1})^{2}z_{1}^{3}Q^{2}K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y'}) \\ \times \frac{(-\alpha_{s})}{\pi^{2}}\int_{z_{0}}^{1-z_{1}}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\cdot\left(\frac{z_{g}}{z_{1}}\boldsymbol{r}_{xy'}+\frac{1-z_{1}-z_{g}}{z_{1}}\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}\right)}\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{1-z_{1}}\right)\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{z_{1}}\right)K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{xy}) \\ \times \left[1+\frac{z_{g}}{2z_{1}}+\frac{z_{g}}{2(1-z_{1}-z_{g})}\right]\frac{\left(\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}+\frac{z_{g}}{1-z_{1}-z_{g}}\boldsymbol{r}_{xy'}\right)\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}}{\left(\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}+\frac{z_{g}}{1-z_{1}-z_{g}}\boldsymbol{r}_{xy'}\right)^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}^{2}}\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},3}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp};\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}',\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}') \quad (3.30)$$

with $\bar{Q}_{R2}^2 = (1 - z_1 - z_g)(z_1 + z_g)Q^2$. The color correlator $\Xi_{NLO,3}$ is identical to the one appearing in the final state vertex correction V3×LO^{*} (see eq. (3.16)). It will be very natural to combine these two diagrams together in our final result.

The contribution from diagrams $R1 \times R2^*$ and $\overline{R1} \times R2^*$ read respectively

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{*}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{R1\times R2^{*}}} = -\frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{'}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}8z_{1}^{3}(1-z_{1})^{2}Q^{2} \times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi}\int_{z_{0}}^{1-z_{1}}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{1-z_{1}}\right)^{2}\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{z_{1}}\right)\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{z_{1}}+\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z_{1}^{2}}\right) \times \int\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}}{\pi}e^{-i\frac{z_{g}}{z_{1}}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}}K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{x'y})\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}K_{0}(QX_{R})\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},1}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}'), \quad (3.31)$$

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{*}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\overline{\mathrm{RI}}\times\mathrm{R2}^{*}} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{'}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}8z_{1}^{3}(1-z_{1})^{2}Q^{2} \times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi}\int_{z_{0}}^{1-z_{1}}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{1-z_{1}}\right)^{2}\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{z_{1}}\right)\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{2z_{1}}+\frac{z_{g}}{2(1-z_{1}-z_{g})}\right) \times \int\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}}{\pi}e^{-i\frac{z_{g}}{z_{1}}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}}K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{x'y})\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}K_{0}(QX_{R})\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},1}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}'). \quad (3.32)$$

Finally, the two remaining regular real corrections come from diagrams $R1 \times R1^*$ and $\overline{R1} \times R1^*$, which respectively read

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{R1\times R1}^{*}} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}} \int \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{\prime}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}8z_{1}^{3}(1-z_{1})^{2}Q^{2} \\
\times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi} \int_{z_{0}}^{1-z_{1}} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}} \left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{1-z_{1}}\right)^{2} \left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{z_{1}}+\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z_{1}^{2}}\right) \\
\times \int \frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}}{\pi} \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}K_{0}(QX_{R})K_{0}(QX_{R}')\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},4}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}'),$$
(3.33)

and

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{*}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\overline{\mathrm{R1}}\times\mathrm{R1}^{*}} = -\frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{'}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}8z_{1}^{3}(1-z_{1})^{2}Q^{2} \\
\times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi}\int_{z_{0}}^{1-z_{1}}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{1-z_{1}}\right)^{2}\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{2z_{1}}+\frac{z_{g}}{2(1-z_{1}-z_{g})}\right) \\
\times \int\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}}{\pi}\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}K_{0}(QX_{R})K_{0}(QX_{R}')\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},4}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}')\,.$$
(3.34)

3.3.4 Gluon-jet contributions

We collect here the real corrections to the NLO semi-inclusive single-jet production crosssection where the measured jet is sourced by the final state gluon. We notice that the quark-antiquark symmetric diagrams give the same expression modulo the replacement $\Xi \rightarrow \Xi^*$ in the CGC color correlator. Therefore, we will give the result for the sum of a given diagram plus its $q\bar{q}$ exchanged counterpart.²

We first consider diagrams $R2 \times R2^*$ and $\overline{R2} \times \overline{R2}^*$ which have a collinear singularity. Since we do not want to double count the collinear phase space where the gluon and the quark (respectively, the antiquark) belong to the same jet (already accounted for by eq. (3.19)) we explicitly exclude this phase space when integrating out the two fermions via the constraint

$$\mathcal{C}_{gi}^2 \ge R^2 k_{g\perp} \frac{z_i^2}{z_g^2}, \qquad (3.35)$$

 $^{^{2}}$ We also neglect the diagram where, at amplitude level, the photon splits into quark-antiquark pair that interacts with the shock-wave and later recombines to a final state gluon. This diagram vanishes when summing over the light quark charges.

with i = 1, 2 for $R2 \times R2^*$ and $\overline{R2} \times \overline{R2}^*$ respectively. This yields

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{*+A\to g+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\boldsymbol{g}\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{g}}\bigg|_{\mathrm{R2\times\mathrm{R2}}^{*}+\overline{\mathrm{R2}\times\overline{\mathrm{R2}}^{*}}} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{'}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\boldsymbol{g}\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}2\mathfrak{Re}\left[\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}')\right] \times \frac{(-\alpha_{s})C_{F}}{\pi}\int_{0}^{1-z_{g}}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{1}}{z_{g}^{2}}e^{-i\frac{z_{1}}{z_{g}}\boldsymbol{k}_{\boldsymbol{g}\perp}\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}\left(1-z_{1}-z_{g}\right)^{2}\left(z_{1}+z_{g}\right)^{2}\left(2z_{1}(z_{1}+z_{g})+z_{g}^{2}\right) \times 4Q^{2}K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{xy})K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{xy})\ln\left(\frac{\boldsymbol{k}_{g\perp}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}^{2}R^{2}z_{1}^{2}}{c_{0}^{2}z_{g}^{2}}\right), \qquad (3.36)$$

up to power of R^2 corrections. For the other diagrams, we rely on the small R approximation and integrate over the full phase space of the two fermions, as the phase space where one of the fermion and the gluon are clustered together is power of R^2 suppressed when the diagram has no collinear divergence. For the cross-diagram $R2 \times \overline{R2}^*$, a straightforward integration gives

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{*}+A\to g+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{g\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{g}}\Big|_{\mathrm{R2\times\overline{R2}^{*}+\overline{R2}\times\mathrm{R2^{*}}}} = \\
\frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{\prime}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}^{\prime}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{g\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}}\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{yy^{\prime}}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx^{\prime}}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{yy^{\prime}}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{xx^{\prime}}^{2}} \\
\times\frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi^{2}}\int_{0}^{1-z_{g}}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{1}}{z_{g}^{2}}e^{-i\frac{\boldsymbol{k}_{g\perp}}{z_{g}}\cdot((1-z_{1})\boldsymbol{r}_{yy^{\prime}}+z_{1}\boldsymbol{r}_{xx^{\prime}})} (1-z_{1}-z_{g})(2z_{1}(1-z_{1}-z_{g})+z_{g}(1-z_{g})) \\
\times4z_{1}(1-z_{1})(z_{1}+z_{g})Q^{2}K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{xy})K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{x^{\prime}y^{\prime}})2\mathfrak{Re}\left[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},3}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp};\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{\prime},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}^{\prime})\right].$$
(3.37)

The diagrams where the tagged gluon crosses the shock-wave either in the amplitude or in the complex conjugate amplitude give

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\perp}^{*}+A\to g+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\boldsymbol{g}\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{g}}\Big|_{\mathrm{R}1\times\mathrm{R}2^{*}+\mathrm{\bar{R}1}\times\overline{\mathrm{R}2^{*}}} = \\
-\frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}^{'}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\boldsymbol{g}\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zz'}} \\
\times\frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi}\int_{0}^{1-z_{g}}\mathrm{d}z_{1} \ 8z_{1}^{2}(1-z_{1})^{2}Q^{2}\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{1-z_{1}}\right)^{2}\left(1+\frac{z_{1}}{z_{g}}\right)\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{z_{1}}+\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z_{1}^{2}}\right) \\
\times\int\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}}{\pi}e^{i\frac{z_{1}}{z_{g}}\boldsymbol{k}_{\boldsymbol{g}\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x}}K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R}2}r_{z'y})\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x}^{2}}K_{0}(QX_{R})2\mathfrak{R}\left[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},1}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}')\right], \quad (3.38)$$

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\perp}^{*}+A\to g+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\boldsymbol{g}\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{g}}\Big|_{\overline{\mathrm{R1}}\times\mathrm{R2}^{*}+\mathrm{R1}\times\overline{\mathrm{R2}}^{*}} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}^{'}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\boldsymbol{g}\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zz'}} \times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi}\int_{0}^{1-z_{g}}\mathrm{d}z_{1}\;8z_{1}^{2}(1-z_{1})^{2}Q^{2}\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{1-z_{1}}\right)^{2}\left(1+\frac{z_{1}}{z_{g}}\right)\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{2z_{1}}+\frac{z_{g}}{2(1-z_{1}-z_{g})}\right) \times \int\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}}{\pi}e^{i\frac{z_{1}}{z_{g}}\boldsymbol{k}_{\boldsymbol{g}\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}}K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{z'y})\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x}^{2}}K_{0}(QX_{R})2\mathfrak{Re}\left[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},1}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}')\right]. \quad (3.39)$$

Finally, the formula for the gluon-tagged single-jet semi-inclusive cross-section coming from diagrams where the gluon interacts with the shock-wave both in the amplitude and in the complex conjugate amplitude are

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to g+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\boldsymbol{g}\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{g}}\Big|_{\mathrm{R1\times R1^{\ast}+\overline{\mathrm{R1}\times\overline{\mathrm{R1}}^{\ast}}}} = \\
\frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\boldsymbol{g}\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zz'}} \\
\times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi}\int_{0}^{1-z_{g}}\mathrm{d}z_{1}8z_{1}^{2}(1-z_{1})^{2}Q^{2}\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{1-z_{1}}\right)^{2}\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{z_{1}}+\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z_{1}^{2}}\right) \\
\times \int\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}}{\pi}\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x}^{2}}K_{0}(QX_{R})K_{0}(QX_{R}')2\mathfrak{Re}\left[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},4\mathrm{g}}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}')\right], \quad (3.40)$$

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{*}+A\to g+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{g\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{g}}\Big|_{\mathrm{R}1\times\mathrm{R}1^{*}+\mathrm{R}1\times\overline{\mathrm{R}1^{*}}} = \\
-\frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}^{'}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{g\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zz'}} \\
\times\frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi}\int_{0}^{1-z_{1}}\mathrm{d}z_{1}\;8z_{1}^{2}(1-z_{1})^{2}Q^{2}\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{1-z_{1}}\right)^{2}\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{2z_{1}}+\frac{z_{g}}{2(1-z_{1}-z_{g})}\right) \\
\times\int\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}}{\pi}\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x}^{2}}K_{0}(QX_{R})K_{0}(QX_{R}')2\mathfrak{R}\epsilon\left[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},4\mathrm{g}}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}')\right], \quad (3.41)$$

with the CGC color correlator

$$\Xi_{\rm NLO,4g}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}') = \frac{N_c}{2} \left\langle 1 - D_{xz} D_{zy} - D_{yz} D_{zx} + D_{z'z} D_{zz'} \right\rangle - \frac{1}{2N_c} \left\langle 2 - D_{xy} - D_{yx} \right\rangle ,$$

which only appears in the gluon-tagged jet cross-section.

3.4 Cancellation of UV, collinear and soft divergences

In this subsection, we discuss the cancellation of the various divergences in the real and virtual diagrams. First, the gluon-jet real contributions that we have just computed are finite: they do not possess any divergence neither in the transverse coordinate integration nor in the longitudinal momentum integration over z_1 . Hence, we shall focus on the cancellation of divergences between the virtual diagrams and the real fermion-jet corrections.

The $1/\varepsilon$ poles. First, we show that the $1/\varepsilon$ pole in transverse dimensional regularization cancels between the real and virtual cross-section (see eqs. (3.11), (3.19) and (3.28)), as expected in the calculation of a collinear safe observable. In dimensional regularization with the convention that scaleless integrals vanish (see eq. (3.5)), we do not distinguish infrared from UV poles. Therefore, we combine the UV poles from both virtual and real diagrams

with the infrared pole coming from the collinear singularity of the real cross-section:

$$\left(\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma^{\star}_{\lambda}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{UV}}+c.c.\right)+\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma^{\star}_{\lambda}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{R2\times\mathrm{R2}^{*},in}}+\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma^{\star}_{\lambda}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{R1\times\mathrm{R1}^{*},UV}} = \frac{\alpha_{s}C_{F}}{\pi}\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma^{\star}_{\lambda}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{LO}}\times\frac{2}{\varepsilon}\left\{\left(\ln\left(\frac{z_{1}}{z_{0}}\right)-\ln\left(\frac{z_{2}}{z_{0}}\right)\right)+\left(\frac{3}{4}-\ln\left(\frac{z_{1}}{z_{0}}\right)\right)\right.$$

$$\left.+\left(\ln\left(\frac{z_{2}}{z_{0}}\right)-\frac{3}{4}\right)+\mathcal{O}(\varepsilon)\right\}.$$

$$(3.42)$$

The $1/\varepsilon$ pole cancels at the cross-section level for the single-jet semi-inclusive cross-section. One notices that this cancellation separately works for the longitudinal $d\sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^* + A \to q + X}$ and transverse $d\sigma^{\gamma_{\rm T}^* + A \to \bar{q} + X}$ cross-sections.

Soft divergences. The second kind of divergences are soft divergences which appear in our regularization scheme as double logarithms of the cut-off $\Lambda^- = z_0 q^-$ in longitudinal momentum. Unlike other regularization schemes, such as dimensional regularization in four dimensions, these divergences cancel out separately among virtual and real corrections [36, 49]. As seen by inspection of eq. (3.11), the sum of diagrams V2 × LO^{*}, SE2 × LO^{*}, SE2 × LO^{*} does not have a double logarithmic divergence in z_0 . Similarly, one observes that

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\bigg|_{\mathrm{R2\times R2^{*},in}} + \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\bigg|_{\mathrm{R2\times R2^{*},soft}} = \frac{\alpha_{s}C_{F}}{\pi} \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\bigg|_{\mathrm{LO}} \times \left\{-\ln^{2}(z_{0}) + \ln^{2}\left(\frac{z_{1}}{z_{0}}\right) + \mathcal{O}(\ln(z_{0})) + \mathcal{O}(1)\right\}, \quad (3.43)$$

so that the double logarithmic divergence in z_0 cancels between the term where the gluon and quark are clustered within the same jet and the term where the gluon forms its own jet but is soft.

3.5 Rapidity divergences: BK-JIMWLK factorization

Last, but not least, we have to address how the single logarithmic divergence in z_0 cancels in our calculation. We do not expect complete cancellation of the z_0 dependence, as this dependence provides the high energy or rapidity evolution of the dipole operators in the LO cross-section. However, we notice interesting grouping between diagrams, where the z_0 dependence cancels. We define the following sum

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},0} \equiv \left(\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{UV}} + c.c.\right) + \left.\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{R2\times R2^{*}}} + \left.\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\right|_{\overline{\mathrm{R1}\times \mathrm{R1}^{*},\mathrm{UV}}}, \qquad (3.44)$$

where $R2 \times R2^*$ is itself the sum of three terms, labeled, "in", "soft" and "reg" given in eqs. (3.19), (3.20) and (3.21) respectively. This "NLO,0" term gathers all NLO corrections which share the same color correlator Ξ_{LO} as the LO cross-section. Anticipating our discussion of the rapidity divergence of the NLO contribution associated with the CGC correlator $\Xi_{NLO,4}$ which imposes $\xi = e^{\gamma_E} r_{xx'}^2/2$ in the UV regulator of $\overline{\text{R1}} \times \overline{\text{R1}}^*$, the calculation of the above term yields

$$\begin{aligned} \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\bigg|_{\mathrm{NLO},0} &= \\ \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}} \left[8z_{1}^{3}(1-z_{1})^{2}Q^{2}\right] \int \mathrm{d}^{6}\boldsymbol{X}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{xy})K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y}) \\ &\times \frac{\alpha_{s}C_{F}}{\pi} \left\{ \ln\left(\frac{z_{1}}{1-z_{1}}\right) \ln\left(\frac{\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}^{2}r_{xy}r_{x'y}R^{2}}{c_{0}^{2}}\right) - \frac{1}{2}\ln^{2}\left(\frac{z_{1}}{1-z_{1}}\right) - \frac{3}{4}\ln\left(\frac{4\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}^{2}r_{xx'}^{2}R^{2}}{c_{0}^{2}}\right) + 7 - \frac{2\pi^{2}}{3} \\ &- \int_{0}^{1-z_{1}}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}\ln\left(\frac{\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}^{2}r_{xx'}^{2}R^{2}z_{g}^{2}}{c_{0}^{2}z_{1}^{2}}\right) \\ &\times \left[e^{-i\frac{z_{g}}{z_{1}}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}\left(1 - \frac{z_{g}}{1-z_{1}}\right)^{2}\left(1 + \frac{z_{g}}{z_{1}}\right)^{2}\left(1 + \frac{z_{g}}{z_{1}} + \frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z_{1}^{2}}\right)\frac{K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R}2}r_{xy})K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y})}{K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y})} - 1\right]\right\} \\ &\times \langle D_{xx'} - D_{xy} - D_{yx'} + 1\rangle, \end{aligned} \tag{3.45}$$

which is free of any divergence as $z_g \to 0$. Unlike the inclusive dijet case [33], the NLO corrections proportional to $\Xi_{\rm LO}$ do not contribute to the high energy evolution of $\Xi_{\rm LO}$.

The same observation can be made for the NLO contributions proportional to $\Xi_{\text{NLO},3}$. This color structure appears in final state gluon exchange such as $V3 \times LO^*$ and $R2 \times \overline{R2}^*$. A close inspection of the $z_g \to 0$ behaviour of the z_g integrand in eqs. (3.16) and (3.30) shows that

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{V3\times LO}^{*}} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{\prime}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}^{\prime}\mathrm{e}^{-i\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\cdot\left(\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}+\frac{1-z_{1}}{z_{1}}\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}\right)} \\ \times \mathcal{H}_{\mathrm{LO}}^{\lambda=\mathrm{L}}(z,Q^{2},\boldsymbol{r}_{xy},\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y'})\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},3}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{\prime}) \\ \times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi^{2}}\int_{z_{0}}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}\left\{\frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}^{2}}+\mathcal{O}(z_{g})\right\}, \qquad (3.46)$$

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{R2\times\overline{R2}}^{*}} = -\frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{x}_{\perp}^{\prime}\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{y}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{y}_{\perp}^{\prime}e^{-i\mathbf{k_{1\perp}}\cdot\left(\mathbf{r}_{xx'}+\frac{1-z_{1}}{z_{1}}\mathbf{r}_{yy'}\right)} \times \mathcal{H}_{\mathrm{LO}}^{\lambda=\mathrm{L}}(z,Q^{2},\mathbf{r}_{xy},\mathbf{r}_{x'y'})\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},3}(\mathbf{x}_{\perp},\mathbf{y}_{\perp},\mathbf{x}_{\perp}^{\prime}) \times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi^{2}}\int_{z_{0}}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}\left\{\frac{1}{\mathbf{r}_{yy'}^{2}}+\mathcal{O}(z_{g})\right\}.$$
(3.47)

Consequently, the logarithmic divergence in z_0 cancels between V3 × LO^{*} and R2 × $\overline{\text{R2}}^*$, and likewise for their complex conjugate counterpart. One can also notice that the UV divergence as $r_{yy'} \rightarrow 0$ arising in the "slow" gluon limit cancels as well. It is then natural to group all these terms together, in a contribution that we call NLO, 3 in reference to the label of the CGC color correlator $\Xi_{\text{NLO},3}$ which is common to all these diagrams:

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma^{\star}_{\lambda}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\bigg|_{\mathrm{NLO},3} \equiv \left.\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma^{\star}_{\lambda}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\right|_{\mathrm{V3\times LO}^{*}} + \left.\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma^{\star}_{\lambda}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\right|_{\mathrm{R2\times\overline{R2}}^{*}} + c.c. \qquad (3.48)$$

The analytic expression for this term is provided in the next subsection, which gathers our final result in the most compact way.

In the end, only the contributions proportional to the CGC correlators $\Xi_{\text{NLO},1}$ and $\Xi_{\text{NLO},4}$ have an intrinsic $\ln(z_0)$ divergence which does not cancel between diagrams. Let us define

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},1} \equiv \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{SE1\times LO^{*}, reg}} + \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{V1\times LO^{*}}} \\
+ \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{R1\times R2^{*}}} + \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k_{1\perp}}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\overline{\mathrm{R1}\times \mathrm{R2^{*}}}} + c.c., \qquad (3.49)$$

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},4} \equiv \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\overline{\mathrm{RI}}\times\overline{\mathrm{RI}}^{*},\mathrm{reg}} + \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{R1}\times\mathrm{R1}^{*}} + \left(\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\overline{\mathrm{R1}}\times\mathrm{R1}^{*}} + c.c.\right).$$
(3.50)

Their complete analytic expressions are provided in the next subsection. To properly isolate the leading logarithmic divergence as $z_0 \to 0$, we introduce an arbitrary rapidity factorization scale $z_f = k_f^-/q^-$ for the upper bound of the singular z_g integral. Isolating the leading logarithmic $z_g \to 0$ divergence in the integrals over z_g defining these two terms, we get

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},1} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{\prime}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp} \ e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}\mathcal{H}(z_{1},Q,\boldsymbol{r}_{xy},\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}) \\ \times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi}\int_{z_{0}}^{z_{f}}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}\int\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}}{\pi}\left\{\left[-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}}+\frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}}-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}+\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}\right]\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},1}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}') \\ -\frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}}\exp\left(-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}}{e^{\gamma_{\mathrm{E}}}\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}^{2}}\right)C_{F}\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}')\right\}+c.c., \qquad (3.51)$$

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},4} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{\prime}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp} \ e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}\mathcal{H}(z_{1},Q,\boldsymbol{r}_{xy},\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}) \\ \times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi}\int_{z_{0}}^{z_{f}}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}\int\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}}{\pi}\left\{\left[\frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}}+\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}}\right]\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},4}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}') \\ -\frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}}\exp\left(-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}}{2\xi}\right)C_{F}\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}')\right\}.$$
(3.52)

We remind that the transverse coordinate scale squared ξ is arbitrary since the ξ -dependent term is added and subtracted to the total cross-section. After some straightforward algebra,

making use of the identity

$$\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{zy}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^2 \boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^2} = \frac{1}{2} \left[-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}^2}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^2 \boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^2} + \frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^2} + \frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^2} \right], \qquad (3.53)$$

the two previous equations simplify to

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},1} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{\prime}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp} \ e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}\mathcal{H}(z_{1},Q,\boldsymbol{r}_{xy},\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}) \\
\times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi}\int_{z_{0}}^{z_{f}}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}\int \frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}}{\pi}\left\{\left[\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}^{2}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}} + \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}^{2}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}} - \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{yx'}^{2}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}\right]\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},1}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}') \\
-\frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}}\exp\left(-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}}{e^{\gamma_{E}}\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}^{2}}\right)C_{F}\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}')\right\} + c.c.,$$
(3.54)

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},4} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{\prime}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp} \ e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}\mathcal{H}(z_{1},Q,\boldsymbol{r}_{xy},\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}) \\
\times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi}\int_{z_{0}}^{z_{f}}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}\int\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}}{\pi}\left\{\left[\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}^{2}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}}-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}^{2}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}+\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{yx'}^{2}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}\right]\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},4}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}') \\
-\frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}}\exp\left(-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}}{2\xi}\right)C_{F}\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}')\right\}.$$
(3.55)

Then we find that the sum of these two contributions is

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{*}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},1} + \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{*}+A\to q+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta_{1}}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},4} = \\
\frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}} \int \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{'}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp} \ e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{1\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}\mathcal{H}(z_{1},Q,\boldsymbol{r}_{xy},\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y})\ln\left(\frac{z_{f}}{z_{0}}\right)\frac{\alpha_{s}N_{c}}{2\pi}\int\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}}{\pi} \\
\times \left[\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}^{2}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}}\langle D_{zx}D_{zx'}-D_{xx'}\rangle - \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}^{2}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}}\langle D_{zx}D_{zy}-D_{xy}\rangle - \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}^{2}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}}\langle D_{zy}D_{zx'}-D_{yx'}\rangle \\
+ \frac{C_{F}}{N_{c}}\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}\left(\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}^{2}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}} + \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}^{2}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}} + \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}^{2}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}} - \frac{2e^{-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}{e^{\gamma_{E}}\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}^{2}}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}} - \frac{2e^{-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}{e^{\gamma_{E}}\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}^{2}}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}} - \frac{2e^{-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}{e^{\gamma_{E}}\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}^{2}}}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}} - \frac{2e^{-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}{e^{\gamma_{E}}\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}^{2}}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}} - \frac{2e^{-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}{e^{\gamma_{E}}\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}^{2}}}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}} - \frac{2e^{-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}{e^{\gamma_{E}}\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}^{2}}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}} - \frac{2e^{-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}{e^{\gamma_{E}}\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}^{2}}}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}} - \frac{2e^{-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}{e^{\gamma_{E}}\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}^{2}}}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}} - \frac{2e^{-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}{e^{\gamma_{E}}\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}^{2}}}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}} - \frac{2e^{-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}{e^{\gamma_{E}}\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}^{2}}}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}} - \frac{2e^{-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}{e^{\gamma_{E}}\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}^{2}}}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}} - \frac{2e^{-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}{e^{\gamma_{E}}\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}^{2}}}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}} - \frac{2e^{-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}{e^{\gamma_{E}}\boldsymbol{r}_{x$$

In the first three terms inside the square bracket, one recognizes the BK kernel applied to the dipoles $D_{xx'}$, $-D_{xy}$ and $-D_{yx'}$. For the particular choice $\xi = e^{\gamma_E} r_{xx'}^2/2$ one can rely on the identity

$$\int \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp} \left[\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}^{2}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}} + \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}^{2}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}} + \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}^{2}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}} - \frac{2e^{-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}}{e^{\gamma_{E}}\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}^{2}}}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}} - \frac{2e^{-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}{e^{\gamma_{E}}\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}^{2}}}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}} - \frac{2e^{-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}{e^{\gamma_{E}}\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}^{2}}}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy'}^{2}} \right] = 0,$$

$$(3.57)$$

to cancel the last term which would not be naturally associated with the small-x evolution of the leading order cross-section. The latter identity can be proven using dimensional regularization along the lines of appendices E in [20, 33].

In the end, we find, to leading logarithmic accuracy,

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to j+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\bigg|_{\mathrm{NLO}} = \ln\left(\frac{z_{f}}{z_{0}}\right)K_{\mathrm{JIMWLK}}\otimes\left.\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to j+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\right|_{\mathrm{LO}} + \mathcal{O}(\alpha_{s})\,,\qquad(3.58)$$

where the action of the JIMWLK Hamiltonian on the dipole correlator is given by

$$K_{\text{JIMWLK}} \otimes \langle D_{xy} \rangle \equiv \frac{\alpha_s N_c}{2\pi^2} \int d^2 \boldsymbol{z}_{\perp} \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}^2}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^2 \boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^2} \left\langle D_{zx} D_{zy} - D_{xy} \right\rangle .$$
(3.59)

The dependence on the arbitrary cut-off z_0 is then interpreted following a renormalization group approach. The CGC dipole operator in the LO cross-section is regarded as a bare dipole operator $\langle D_{xy}^0 \rangle$ and the rapidity divergence $z_0 \to 0$ is absorbed into this bare operator. We then define the renormalized CGC dipole operator at the rapidity factorization scale $Y_f = \ln(z_f)$ such that

$$\langle D_{xy} \rangle_{Y_f} = \langle D_{xy}^0 \rangle + \frac{\alpha_s N_c}{2\pi^2} \ln\left(\frac{z_f}{z_0}\right) \int d^2 \boldsymbol{z}_\perp \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}^2}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^2 \boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^2} \left\langle D_{zx}^0 D_{zy}^0 - D_{xy}^0 \right\rangle + \mathcal{O}(\alpha_s^2)$$
(3.60)

and we re-express the SIDIS cross-section in terms of this renormalized CGC dipole operator. The z_f or Y_f independence of the cross-section translates into the following renormalization group equation

$$\frac{\partial \langle D_{xy} \rangle_{Y_f}}{\partial Y_f} = \frac{\alpha_s N_c}{2\pi^2} \int d^2 \boldsymbol{z}_\perp \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}^2}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^2 \boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^2} \left\langle D_{zx} D_{zy} - D_{xy} \right\rangle_{Y_f}$$
(3.61)

which is nothing but the first equation of the Balitsky-JIMWLK [93–97] hierarchy. It reduces to the well-known BK equation [93, 98] in the mean-field or large N_c approximations where $\langle D_{zx}D_{zy}\rangle_{Y_f} \approx \langle D_{zx}\rangle_{Y_f} \langle D_{zy}\rangle_{Y_f}$.

3.6 NLO impact factor for the double differential cross-section

This section summarizes our analytic expressions for the SIDIS NLO impact factor in the small R approximation, in the case of a longitudinally polarized photon. The expressions for transversely polarized photons are given in appendix A. We write our final result as

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to j+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta} = \left.\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to j+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\right|_{\mathrm{LO}} + \left.\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\right|_{\mathrm{NLO}} + \left.\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to j_{g}+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\right|_{\mathrm{NLO}}.$$
 (3.62)

The first NLO contribution labeled $d\sigma^{\gamma^{\star}_{\lambda}+A\to j_f+X}|_{\text{NLO}}$ comes from quark/antiquark-tagged jets. With respect to the formulae shown in the previous section, we include the contribution $d\sigma^{\gamma^{\star}_{\lambda}+A\to\bar{q}+X}$ where the antiquark jet is measured, which amounts to replacing Ξ by $2\Re\epsilon\Xi$ as we discussed in the text near eq. (2.16). We further decompose the fermion-tagged NLO contribution according to the CGC correlator upon which they depend:

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{*}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO}} = \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{*}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},0} + \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{*}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},3} + \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{*}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},1} + \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{*}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},4}.$$
(3.63)

$\Xi_{ m LO}(oldsymbol{x}_{ot},oldsymbol{y}_{ot},oldsymbol{x}_{ot})$	$\left\langle D_{xx'} - D_{xy} - D_{yx'} + 1 \right angle$
$\Xi_{ ext{NLO},1}(oldsymbol{x}_{oldsymbol{\perp}},oldsymbol{y}_{oldsymbol{\perp}},oldsymbol{z}_{oldsymbol{\perp}},oldsymbol{x}_{oldsymbol{\perp}},oldsymbol{x}_{oldsymbol{\perp}})$	$\frac{\frac{N_c}{2}\left\langle 1 - D_{yx'} - D_{xz}D_{zy} + D_{zx'}D_{xz} \right\rangle}{-\frac{1}{2N_c}\left\langle 1 - D_{xy} - D_{yx'} + D_{xx'} \right\rangle}$
$\Xi_{ m NLO,3}(oldsymbol{x}_{\perp},oldsymbol{y}_{\perp},oldsymbol{x}_{\perp}',oldsymbol{y}_{\perp}')$	$\frac{\frac{N_c}{2}\left\langle 1 - D_{xy} - D_{y'x'} + D_{xy}D_{y'x'} \right\rangle}{-\frac{1}{2N_c}\left\langle 1 - D_{xy} - D_{y'x'} + Q_{xy;y'x'} \right\rangle}$
$\Xi_{ m NLO,4}(oldsymbol{x}_{\perp},oldsymbol{y}_{\perp},oldsymbol{z}_{\perp},oldsymbol{x}_{\perp})$	$\frac{\frac{N_c}{2} \left\langle D_{xx'} - D_{xz} D_{zy} - D_{yz} D_{zx'} + 1 \right\rangle}{-\frac{1}{2N_c} \left\langle D_{xx'} - D_{xy} - D_{yx'} + 1 \right\rangle}$
$igsquare$ $\Xi_{ m NLO,4g}(oldsymbol{x}_{ot},oldsymbol{y}_{ot},oldsymbol{z}_{ot},oldsymbol{z}_{ot},oldsymbol{z}_{ot})$	$\frac{\frac{N_c}{2}\left\langle 1 - D_{xz}D_{zy} - D_{yz}D_{zx} + D_{z'z}D_{zz'}\right\rangle}{-\frac{1}{2N_c}\left\langle 2 - D_{xy} - D_{yx}\right\rangle}$

Table 1. Color correlators contributing to the next-to-leading order SIDIS cross-section. $1/N_c^2$ suppressed corrections are displayed in the second line of each row.

To aid the reader, the CGC color correlators that appear in these terms are summarized in table 1. Note that contrary to the inclusive dijet cross-section [33], the CGC correlator $\Xi_{\rm NLO,2}$ does not contribute (explaining why there is no "NLO,2" term in eq. (3.63)) thanks to the cancellations discussed in section 3.1. Implicit in our notations, these CGC correlators are evaluated at the factorization scale Y_f . Indeed, small x kinematics imply that $\alpha_s \ln(z_f/z_0) \sim 1$ in eq. (3.60); hence, the Y_f dependence of the CGC correlators in the LO and NLO impact factors are respectively $\mathcal{O}(1)$ and $\mathcal{O}(\alpha_s)$ corrections which must be taken into account in a complete NLO calculation in the Regge limit.³ We also systematically set the longitudinal momentum cut-off $\Lambda^- = z_0 q^-$ to 0 when the integral over the longitudinal momentum fraction of the gluon z_g is convergent as $z_g \to 0$. This amounts to neglect $\mathcal{O}(\alpha_s z_0)$ corrections which are power suppressed at small x since z_0 is physically of order of $x_{\rm Bi}$ [33].

Let us quote now our relatively compact expressions for these various terms:

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{*+A\to j_f+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},0} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}8z^{3}(1-z)^{2}Q^{2}K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{xy}) \\ \times K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y})2\mathfrak{Re}\left[\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}'_{\perp})\right] \times \frac{\alpha_{s}C_{F}}{\pi}\left\{-\frac{1}{2}\ln^{2}\left(\frac{z}{1-z}\right)+7-\frac{2\pi^{2}}{3}\right\} \\ +\ln\left(\frac{z}{1-z}\right)\ln\left(\frac{\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^{2}r_{xy}r_{x'y}R^{2}}{c_{0}^{2}}\right) - \frac{3}{4}\ln\left(\frac{4\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}^{2}R^{2}}{c_{0}^{2}}\right) - \int_{0}^{1-z}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}\ln\left(\frac{\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}^{2}R^{2}z_{g}^{2}}{c_{0}^{2}z^{2}}\right) \\ \times \left[e^{-i\frac{zg}{z}}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}\frac{(1-z-z_{g})^{2}(z+z_{g})^{2}(2z(z+z_{g})+z_{g}^{2})}{2z^{4}(1-z)^{2}}\frac{K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{xy})K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{x'y})}{K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y})} - 1\right]\right\}, \tag{3.64}$$

which is valid up to power of the jet radius $\alpha_s R^2$ corrections. We recall that $c_0 = 2e^{-\gamma_E}$. At small R, the leading $\mathcal{O}(\alpha_s)$ corrections come from the $\ln(R)$ terms. One recognizes in

³Based on the same power counting argument, the Y_f dependence of the LO impact factor must be computed using the NLO BK-JIMWLK equation [16, 99–103] in a NLO small-*x* calculation.

the coefficient of the $\alpha_s \ln(R)$ term a soft logarithm $\ln(z/(1-z))$ (which will be further discussed in the next section) and the finite part -3/2 of the quark DGLAP splitting function associated with hard but collinear gluon emissions. In the last term, the z_g integral has no rapidity divergence since the square bracket vanishes when $z_g \to 0$ by construction.

For NLO, 3 we obtain after adding eq. (3.16) and eq. (3.30):

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\bigg|_{\mathrm{NLO},3} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}^{\prime}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\left(\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}+\frac{1-z}{z}\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}\right)}4z(1-z)Q^{2} \times 2\mathfrak{Re}\left[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},3}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{\prime},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}^{\prime})\right]\frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi^{2}}\int_{z-1}^{z}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}(1-z+z_{g})(z-z_{g})^{2}K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y'})K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{V3}}r_{xy}) \times e^{i\frac{z_{g}}{z}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}}\frac{(1-z)(1+z_{g})\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}^{2}+\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}(2z(1-z+z_{g})-z_{g}(1+z_{g}))}{\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}^{2}\left[(1-z)\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}^{2}+2(1-z)(z-z_{g})\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}-z_{g}(z-z_{g})\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}^{2}\right]} + c.c. \quad (3.65)$$

The analytic expression eq. (3.65) is one of our new results, which is remarkably simple given that it gathers the sum of the diagrams $V3 \times LO^*$ and $R2 \times \overline{R2}^*$ plus their complex conjugate. The integrals in the two previous equations are convergent, both in longitudinal momentum space as $z_g \to 0$ and in transverse coordinate space. On the contrary, the terms NLO, 1 and NLO, 4 have a $z_g \to 0$ singularity, which is cured by BK-JIMWLK evolution [93–97] as discussed in the previous section. We thus define the shorthand notation

$$\int_{0}^{a} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}} \left\{ f(z_{g}) \right\}_{z_{f}} \equiv \int_{0}^{a} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}} \left[f(z_{g}) - \Theta(z_{f} - z_{g})f(0) \right] \,, \tag{3.66}$$

for any function $f(z_g)$ which has a well-defined limit as $z_g \to 0$.

NLO,1 is obtained by adding eqs. (3.6), (3.9), (3.31),(3.32) and their complex conjugates, we find

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{+}A \to j_{f}+X}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},1} = \frac{\mathrm{d}\operatorname{em}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}} \int \mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{y}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{z}_{\perp}e^{-i\mathbf{k}_{\perp}\cdot\mathbf{r}_{xx'}}8z^{3}(1-z)^{2}Q^{2}} \\
\times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi^{2}} \int_{0}^{1}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}} \left\{ \left[K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y})K_{0}(QX_{V})e^{-i\frac{z_{g}}{z}}\mathbf{k}_{\perp}\cdot\mathbf{r}_{zx}}\Theta(z-z_{g})\left(-\frac{\mathbf{r}_{zx}\cdot\mathbf{r}_{zy}}{\mathbf{r}_{zx}^{2}\mathbf{r}_{zy}^{2}}\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{1-z}\right)\right) \\
\times \left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{z}\right)\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{2z}-\frac{z_{g}}{2(1-z+z_{g})}\right)+\frac{1}{\mathbf{r}_{zx}^{2}}\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{z}+\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z^{2}}\right)\right)+K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{x'y})K_{0}(QX_{R}) \\
\times e^{-i\frac{z_{g}}{z}}\mathbf{k}_{\perp}\cdot\mathbf{r}_{zx'}}\Theta(1-z-z_{g})\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{1-z}\right)^{2}\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{z}\right)\left(\frac{\mathbf{r}_{zy}\cdot\mathbf{r}_{zx'}}{\mathbf{r}_{zy}^{2}\mathbf{r}_{zx'}^{2}}\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{2z}+\frac{z_{g}}{2(1-z-z_{g})}\right)\right) \\
-\frac{\mathbf{r}_{zx}\cdot\mathbf{r}_{zx'}}{\mathbf{r}_{zx'}^{2}r_{zx'}^{2}}\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{z}+\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z^{2}}\right)\right) \right] \times 2\mathfrak{Re}\left[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},1}(\mathbf{x}_{\perp},\mathbf{y}_{\perp},\mathbf{z}_{\perp},\mathbf{x}'_{\perp})\right]-K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y})K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{xy}) \\
\times \Theta(z-z_{g})\frac{e^{-\mathbf{r}_{zx}^{2}/(\mathbf{r}_{xy}^{2}e^{\gamma_{E}})}{\mathbf{r}_{zx}^{2}}\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{z}+\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z^{2}}\right)2\mathfrak{Re}\left[C_{F}\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\mathbf{x}_{\perp},\mathbf{y}_{\perp},\mathbf{x}'_{\perp})\right]\right\}_{z_{f}}+c.c., \quad (3.67)$$

\bar{Q}^2	$z(1-z)Q^2$	
$ar{Q}_{ m R2}^2$	$(1-z-z_g)(z+z_g)Q^2$	
\bar{Q}_{V3}^2	$(1-z+z_g)(z-z_g)Q^2$	
X_V^2	$(1-z)(z-z_g)r_{xy}^2 + z_g(z-z_g)r_{zx}^2 + (1-z)z_gr_{zy}^2$	
X_R^2	$z(1-z-z_g)oldsymbol{r}_{xy}^2+zz_goldsymbol{r}_{zx}^2+(1-z-z_g)z_goldsymbol{r}_{zy}^2$	
$X_R^{\prime 2}$	$z(1-z-z_g)r_{x'y}^2+zz_gr_{zx'}^2+(1-z-z_g)z_gr_{zy}^2$	

Table 2. Summary of our notations for the kinematic variables appearing in the NLO SIDIS crosssection in coordinate space.

and NLO,4 is obtained by adding eqs. (3.33), (3.34) (and complex conjugate), and (3.29), we find

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{*}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\mathrm{L}}\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},4} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}} \int \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\mathrm{L}}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\mathrm{L}}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\mathrm{L}}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\mathrm{L}}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\mathrm{L}}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}8z^{3}(1-z)^{2}Q^{2} \\ \times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{2\pi^{2}} \int_{0}^{1-z} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}} \left\{ \left(1 - \frac{z_{g}}{1-z}\right)^{2}K_{0}(QX_{R})K_{0}(QX_{R}')\left[\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}\left(1 + \frac{z_{g}}{z} + \frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z^{2}}\right)\right. \\ \left. + \frac{1}{r_{zy}^{2}} \left(1 + \frac{z_{g}}{1-z-z_{g}} + \frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2(1-z-z_{g})^{2}}\right) - 2\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}\left(1 + \frac{z_{g}}{2z} + \frac{z_{g}}{2(1-z-z_{g})}\right)\right) \right] \\ \times 2\mathfrak{Re} \left[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},4}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\mathrm{L}},\boldsymbol{y}_{\mathrm{L}},\boldsymbol{z}_{\mathrm{L}},\boldsymbol{x}_{\mathrm{L}}')\right] - K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{xy})K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y})\left(1 - \frac{z_{g}}{1-z}\right)^{2}\frac{e^{-\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}/(\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}^{2}e^{\gamma_{E}})}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}} \\ \times \left(1 + \frac{z_{g}}{1-z-z_{g}} + \frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2(1-z-z_{g})^{2}}\right)2\mathfrak{Re} \left[C_{F}\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\mathrm{L}},\boldsymbol{y}_{\mathrm{L}},\boldsymbol{x}_{\mathrm{L}}')\right]\right\}_{z_{f}}^{2} + c.c. \qquad (3.68)$$

The table 2 gathers our shorthand notations for the effective virtualities and dipole sizes at NLO.

Finally, the gluon-tagged SIDIS cross-section is also decomposed as

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to j_g+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO}} = \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to j_g+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},0} + \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to j_g+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},3} + \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to j_g+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},1} + \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to j_g+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},4g},$$
(3.69)

with NLO, 0 given by eq. (3.36), NLO, 3 given by eq. (3.37), NLO, 1 given by the sum of eqs. (3.38)-(3.39) plus their complex conjugate and NLO, 4g given by the sum of eqs. (3.40)-(3.41). For the sake of self-containment of this summary section, we quote below the

expressions of these four terms. The NLO,0 term reads

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\perp}^{*}+A\to j_{g}+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},0} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}} \int \mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{x}_{\perp}^{\prime}\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{y}_{\perp}e^{-i\mathbf{k}_{\perp}\cdot\mathbf{r}_{xx'}} 2\mathfrak{Re}\left[\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\mathbf{x}_{\perp},\mathbf{y}_{\perp},\mathbf{x}_{\perp}')\right] \\
\times \frac{(-\alpha_{s})C_{F}}{\pi} \int_{0}^{1-z} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_{1}}{z^{2}} e^{-i\frac{z_{1}}{z}\mathbf{k}_{g\perp}\cdot\mathbf{r}_{xx'}} \left(1-z_{1}-z\right)^{2} \left(z_{1}+z\right)^{2} \left(2z_{1}(z_{1}+z)+z^{2}\right) \\
\times 4Q^{2}K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{x'y})K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{xy})\ln\left(\frac{\mathbf{k}_{\perp}^{2}\mathbf{r}_{xx'}^{2}R^{2}z_{1}^{2}}{c_{0}^{2}z^{2}}\right), \qquad (3.70)$$

where, obviously, $\bar{Q}_{R2}^2 = (1 - z_1 - z)(z_1 + z)Q^2$ since $z_g = z$ here. The NLO,3 term reads

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{*}+A\to j_{g}+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\bigg|_{\mathrm{NLO},3} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{\prime}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}^{\prime}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}}\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{yy^{\prime}}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx^{\prime}}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{yy^{\prime}}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{xx^{\prime}}^{2}} \times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi^{2}}\int_{0}^{1-z}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{1}}{z^{2}}e^{-i\frac{\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}}{z}\cdot((1-z_{1})\boldsymbol{r}_{yy^{\prime}}+z_{1}\boldsymbol{r}_{xx^{\prime}})} (1-z_{1}-z)(2z_{1}(1-z_{1}-z)+z(1-z)) \times 4z_{1}(1-z_{1})(z_{1}+z)Q^{2}K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{xy})K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{x^{\prime}y^{\prime}})2\mathfrak{Re}\left[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},3}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp};\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{\prime},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}^{\prime})\right], \quad (3.71)$$

with the effective virtuality $\bar{Q}^2 = z_1(1-z_1)Q^2$ depending on z_1 which is integrated over. The NLO,1 term is given by

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{*}+A\to j_{g}+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},1} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zz'}}\frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi^{2}}\int_{0}^{1-z}\mathrm{d}z_{1}\ e^{i\frac{z_{1}}{z}}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x}} \times 8z_{1}^{2}Q^{2}\left(1-z_{1}-z\right)^{2}\left(1+\frac{z_{1}}{z}\right)K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{z'y})K_{0}(QX_{R})2\mathfrak{Re}\left[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},1}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}')\right] \times \left[\left(1+\frac{z}{2z_{1}}+\frac{z}{2(1-z_{1}-z)}\right)\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x}^{2}}-\left(1+\frac{z}{z_{1}}+\frac{z^{2}}{2z_{1}^{2}}\right)\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x}^{2}}\right]+c.c.$$
(3.72)

Finally, the formula for the NLO,4g term is

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to j_{g}+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},4\mathrm{g}} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp} \ e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zz'}} \times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi^{2}}\int_{0}^{1-z}\mathrm{d}z_{1}\ 8z_{1}^{2}Q^{2}\ (1-z_{1}-z)^{2}\ K_{0}(QX_{R})K_{0}(QX_{R}')2\mathfrak{Re}\left[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},4\mathrm{g}}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}')\right] \times \left[\left(1+\frac{z}{z_{1}}+\frac{z^{2}}{2z_{1}^{2}}\right)\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x}^{2}}-\left(1+\frac{z}{2z_{1}}+\frac{z}{2(1-z_{1}-z)}\right)\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x}^{2}}\right].$$
(3.73)

We emphasize that our expressions are all UV and IR finite, and therefore suitable for numerical evaluation. Nevertheless, the number of integrals to perform (4 transverse integrals and one longitudinal integral at most) and the presence of phases like $e^{-i\mathbf{k}_{\perp}\cdot\mathbf{r}_{xx'}}$ makes the numerical task very challenging. In section 5, we will provide results for the \mathbf{k}_{\perp} -integrated cross-section which partially overcomes these difficulties.

Quadrupole dependence of the NLO SIDIS impact factor. To close this section, we would like to briefly comment on the contribution labeled NLO, 3 which physically comes from final state (real or virtual) gluon exchanged between the quark and the antiquark. Because of the non-trivial exchange of color after the interaction of the quark-antiquark dipole with the shock-wave, this term exhibits a dependence on a higher point correlator, the quadrupole $Q_{xyy'x'}$. This was not expected given that the leading order cross-section only depends on the dipole operator. Note also that in the case of inclusive dijet production, the NLO impact factor does not involve higher point correlators than those appearing at leading order [33] (for instance, the NLO impact factor for inclusive dijet does not depend on the sextupole).

It is important to emphasize that this dependence does not affect the leading $\ln(z_f/z_0) \sim \ln(1/x_{\rm Bj})$ term in the NLO result, as final state gluon radiations do not contribute to the rapidity evolution of the color dipoles. Otherwise, the universality of JIMWLK factorization would have been broken. The dependence on the quadrupole appears then only in the NLO impact factor. We nevertheless expect a rather small contribution from this correlator as it is $1/N_c^2$ suppressed relatively to the dipole operators.

The NLO impact factor for the fully inclusive DIS cross-section does not depend on the quadrupole operator though. Therefore, this dependence must cancel when integrating eq. (3.65) over the transverse momentum and the rapidity of the jet. We will explain how this cancellation occurs in the last section of this paper.

The appearance of the quadrupole in the NLO impact factor is troublesome from a numerical point of view. Indeed, evaluating the quadrupole at a given rapidity scale Y_f is a difficult task as it requires solving the JIMWLK equation. Several approximations are possible. One can rely on the Gaussian approximation [104–108] to express the quadrupole in terms of the dipole, and use the BK equation to evolve the dipole in rapidity. One can also simply ignore this term by relying on the large N_c approximation, in line with the use of the closed form of the BK equation.

4 The very forward rapidity regime

As mentioned in the introduction, the very forward rapidity regime of the SIDIS process has recently been shown to be strongly sensitive to saturation in the regime $Q^2 \gg Q_s^2$ but $\bar{Q}^2 \sim Q_s^2$ [67]. This kinematic domain is interesting because it is perturbative — the virtuality Q of the photon playing the role of the hard scale is much larger than $\Lambda_{\rm QCD}$ — but nevertheless sensitive to the saturation scale. This regime corresponds to z close to one, since

$$1 - z \sim \frac{Q_s^2}{Q^2} \ll 1$$
. (4.1)

The study in [67] makes use of the LO result for the SIDIS cross-section at small x. In this section, we analyze the impact of QCD radiative corrections on the very forward jet rapidity regime $z \to 1$. We therefore assume $1 - z \ll 1$ without any specific hierarchy between Q, k_{\perp} and Q_s . In particular, our calculation also holds in the regime $Q^2 \gg Q_s^2$.

A first look at eq. (3.64) reveals the presence of double and single logarithmic NLO corrections of the form

$$\alpha_s \ln^2(1-z), \quad \alpha_s \ln(1-z), \tag{4.2}$$

which are therefore large in the very forward rapidity regime $1 - z \ll 1$. Physically, these large logarithms, dubbed "threshold logarithms", come from the incomplete cancellation between real and virtual soft gluon corrections when the constraint $1 - z \ll 1$ is imposed on the final state. While a virtual gluon is only constrained by the condition $z_g \leq z$, a real one must satisfy $z_g \leq 1 - z$ due to longitudinal momentum conservation. A back of the envelop calculation similar to the one done in [67] is actually sufficient to get the double logarithm in 1 - z for single-jet production. To double logarithmic accuracy as z goes to 1, the dominant real contribution comes from diagrams with a collinear singularity as the gluon becomes collinear to one of the two fermions (diagrams $R2 \times R2^*$ and $\overline{R2} \times \overline{R2}^*$). Such real diagrams have an overall prefactor $\alpha_s C_F/\pi$ and are parametrically of order

$$\frac{\alpha_s C_F}{\pi} \int_0^{1-z} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_g}{z_g} \int_{z_g^2 k_\perp^2 R^2}^{z_g k_\perp^2} \frac{\mathrm{d}\mathcal{C}_{qg}^2}{\mathcal{C}_{qg}^2}, \qquad (4.3)$$

where $C_{qg} \approx \mathbf{k}_{g\perp} - z_g \mathbf{k}_{\perp}$ is the collinearity vector between the gluon and the quark or antiquark (see eq. (3.17)). The lower bound of the C_{qg}^2 integration comes from imposing the gluon to be outside the fermion jet. The upper bound is a consequence of the gluon formation time $1/k_g^+ = 2z_g q^-/\mathbf{k}_{g\perp}^2 \sim 2z_g q^-/C_{qg}^2$ being larger than the quark or antiquark formation time $1/k^+ = 2zq^-/\mathbf{k}_{\perp}^2 \sim 2q^-/\mathbf{k}_{\perp}^2$. On the other hand, the leading virtual correction in the $z \to 1$ limit is of order

$$-\frac{\alpha_s C_F}{\pi} \int_0^z \frac{\mathrm{d}z_g}{z_g} \int_{z_g^2 \boldsymbol{k}_\perp^2 R^2}^{z_g \boldsymbol{k}_\perp^2} \frac{\mathrm{d}\mathcal{C}_{qg}^2}{\mathcal{C}_{qg}^2}, \qquad (4.4)$$

where the C_{qg} boundaries are identical to the real case, since the phase-space $C_{qg}^2 < z_g^2 \mathbf{k}_{\perp}^2 R^2$ in the virtual term exactly cancels with the real in-cone phase space as demonstrated in section 3.2.2. This leads to the following mismatch

$$\frac{\alpha_s C_F}{\pi} \int_z^{1-z} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_g}{z_g} \int_{z_g^2 \boldsymbol{k}_\perp^2 R^2}^{z_g \boldsymbol{k}_\perp^2} \frac{\mathrm{d}\mathcal{C}_{qg}^2}{\mathcal{C}_{qg}^2} \approx -\frac{\alpha_s C_F}{2\pi} \ln^2 \left(\frac{1}{(1-z)R^2}\right),\tag{4.5}$$

which exhibits the double logarithmic enhancement in the threshold limit. Note also the R-dependent single logarithm in 1 - z.

We now want to validate this back of the envelop calculation and compute the single logarithmic corrections by explicitly extracting the logarithmically enhanced terms in the NLO corrections which factorize from the LO cross-section. These logarithms only come from NLO terms which depend on the LO CGC operator, that is the NLO coefficient labeled NLO, 0 in our final result and given by eq. (3.64). There could be "hidden" single logarithms in 1 - z in the NLO,1 and NLO,3 terms as they are also combinations of real and virtual diagrams.⁴

⁴We do not expect factorization breaking single logarithms from the NLO,4 term as this contribution contains only real emissions.

If so, these single logs would break the factorization in terms of the LO cross-section, at least in the deep saturation regime $Q \sim k_{\perp} \sim Q_s$ where the color structure $\Xi_{\text{NLO},1}$ and $\Xi_{\text{NLO},3}$ cannot be further simplified. We leave for the future the analysis of these possible contributions, in particular in the TMD limit $Q \gg k_{\perp}, Q_s$.

In the NLO, 0 contribution given by eq. (3.64), some terms are already explicitly logarithmic as z gets closer to one, such as the double logarithm $-\alpha_s C_F/(2\pi) \ln^2(1-z)$ which is exactly the double log computed in eq. (4.5). It is interesting to notice that our back of the envelop calculation above is not in one to one correspondance with the real and virtual terms which are combined in the NLO,0 contribution given by eq. (3.64). For instance, the virtual piece of eq. (3.64) coming from the free self-energies and vertex corrections before the shock-wave (see eq. (3.11)) already contains a double logarithm in 1-z with a positive sign. It is only after combining virtual and real diagrams together within eq. (3.64) that the resulting double log becomes in agreement with eq. (4.5). This is a specificity of the dipole picture, in which the emergence of double logarithms from phase space constraints on soft gluons often comes from subtle combinations of diagrams, as also noticed for Sudakov double logarithmic suppression in back-to-back dijet production in DIS [36, 49, 51]. We have also checked that the final result for the double logarithm in 1-z is universal with respect to the virtual photon polarization (see eq. (A.13) in the appendix), but interestingly, the coefficient of the single threshold log is polarization dependent.

This double logarithm is also in agreement with the calculation in appendix F of [67], however, contrary to our observation, the authors argue there that this double logarithm should cancel in the case of a jet measurement. The reason behind this disagreement lies in the definition of the final state. While we define jets using jet clustering algorithms such as anti- k_t with a free jet radius R, the jet in appendix F of [67] is "dynamically" defined event by event, with an effective radius $R \sim k_{\perp}/((1-z)q^-)$ set by the angular separation between the $q\bar{q}$ pair in the dipole frame. When z goes to 1, this effective radius diverges and violates our small $R \ll 1$ assumption. In practice, using very large jet radii comes with additional difficulties, both on the experimental side (contamination from the background, effect of the kinematic coverage of the detectors, etc) and on the theory side (for instance, mono-jet configurations with $q\bar{q}g$ configurations lying inside the same jet contribute). We therefore believe that one cannot avoid these threshold logarithms in realistic SIDIS measurements at very forward rapidities.

In addition to the explicit double and single logarithmic terms in eq. (3.64), we need to estimate the limiting behavior as $z \to 1$ of the following integral, which may hide single logarithms of 1 - z,

$$\int_{0}^{1-z} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}} \left[\frac{(1-z-z_{g})^{2}(z+z_{g})^{2}(2z(z+z_{g})+z_{g}^{2})}{2z^{4}(1-z)^{2}} \times e^{-i\frac{z_{g}}{z}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}} \frac{K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{xy})K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{x'y})}{K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{xy})K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y})} - 1 \right] \ln\left(\frac{\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}^{2}R^{2}z_{g}^{2}}{c_{0}^{2}z^{2}}\right).$$
(4.6)

Since the quantity inside the square bracket vanishes as $z_g \to 0$, a logarithmic behaviour in 1 - z can only arise from the $\ln(z_g^2)$ dependence in the overall factor. Expanding the integrant for $z \sim 1$ and subsequently for $z_g \rightarrow 0$, one gets

$$\int_{0}^{1-z} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_g}{z_g} \left[\frac{z_g^2}{(1-z)^2} - \frac{2z_g}{1-z} + \dots \right] \ln\left(z_g^2\right) = 3\ln\left(\frac{1}{1-z}\right) + \mathcal{O}(1), \quad (4.7)$$

where we omit the finite terms as $z \to 1$ in this result. In the end, we have

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{+}A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},0} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}} \int \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{\prime}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}2\mathfrak{Re}\left[\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{\prime})\right] \\
\times 8z^{3}(1-z)^{2}Q^{2}K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{xy})K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y}) \\
\times \frac{\alpha_{s}C_{F}}{\pi}\left\{-\frac{1}{2}\ln^{2}\left(\frac{1}{1-z}\right) + \left[\ln\left(\frac{\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^{2}r_{xy}r_{x'y}R^{2}}{c_{0}^{2}}\right) - 3\right]\ln\left(\frac{1}{1-z}\right) + \mathcal{O}(1)\right\}, \tag{4.8}$$

where the $\mathcal{O}(1)$ term gathers all contributions in NLO, 0 which are not enhanced by logarithms of 1 - z. The first term in the square bracket is the double logarithm, while the second term is the single logarithm in 1 - z. In appendix B, we show that the NLO contribution proportional to

$$\frac{\alpha_s C_F}{\pi} \ln\left(\frac{\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^2 r_{xy} r_{x'y}}{c_0^2}\right) \ln\left(\frac{1}{1-z}\right), \qquad (4.9)$$

is indeed a single threshold log correction and we compute this term more explicitly in terms of the dipole operator and a single transverse coordinate integration. In the end, we find that for a longitudinally polarized photon, this single log coefficient can effectively be replaced by $-2\alpha_s C_F/\pi$ up to powers of (1-z) corrections, while it vanishes for a transversely polarized photon.

The single threshold log also depends on the jet radius, via the $\ln(R^2)$ term associated with soft gluon emissions close to the jet boundary. Last the -3 piece also depends on the photon polarization; we find that it is not present for a transversely polarized virtual photon using eq. (A.13) and following the same mathematical steps as the ones used to derive eq. (4.7).

As such, any numerical attempt to evaluate the NLO SIDIS cross-section in the forward rapidity regime would lead to unphysical results such as a negative cross-section caused by the presence of the large negative NLO corrections associated with these threshold logarithms in 1 - z. However, these leading logarithms do factorize from the LO cross-section. This points towards the possibility of performing simultaneously small-x and threshold resummation at leading log in x and single logarithmic accuracy in 1 - z, via a simple exponentiation of the logarithmically enhanced corrections:

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to j+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{resum}} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{\prime}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}2\mathfrak{Re}\left\langle D_{xx'}-D_{xy}-D_{yx'}+1\right\rangle_{Y_{f}} \times \mathcal{H}_{\mathrm{LO}}^{\lambda}(z,Q^{2},\boldsymbol{r}_{xy},\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y})S_{\mathrm{thr.}}^{\lambda}(1-z), \qquad (4.10)$$

with the "Sudakov" for threshold resummation in very forward SIDIS at small-x given by

$$S_{\rm thr.}^{\lambda}(1-z) \equiv \exp\left\{-\frac{\alpha_s C_F}{\pi} \left[\frac{1}{2}\ln^2\left(1-z\right) + \left(\ln(R^2) + c^{\lambda}\right)\ln\left(1-z\right)\right]\right\},\tag{4.11}$$

with the coefficient c^{λ} equal to $c^{\lambda=L} = -5$ for a longitudinally polarized photon and $c^{\lambda=T} = 0$ for a transversely polarized photon. Although we include here the resummation of threshold

logarithms in the SIDIS cross-section for longitudinally polarized photons, one should note that the $\lambda = L$ LO SIDIS cross-section is power suppressed in the $z \to 1$ limit as compared to the transversely polarized photon case (see eqs. (2.12)–(2.13)). Hence, the very forward jet limit is dominated by the $\lambda = T$ component and only $S_{\text{thr.}}^{\lambda=T}$ truly matters. One notices that in the end, the single logarithm in 1 - z for $\lambda = T$ is just $-\alpha_s C_F/\pi \ln(R^2) \ln(1-z)$ in agreement with our estimation in eq. (4.5) and eq. (F.4) in [67] provided one chooses the quark mass *m* cutting the collinear singularity as m/Q = R in this expression. Finally, it is relatively straightforward to include running coupling effects in $S_{\text{thr.}}^{\lambda}(1-z)$ writing the argument of the exponential in eq. (4.11) as

$$\ln\left(S_{\rm thr.}^{\lambda}(1-z)\right) = -\frac{C_F}{\pi} \int_{1-z}^1 \frac{\mathrm{d}z_g}{z_g} \left[\int_{z_g^2 k_{\perp}^2}^{z_g k_{\perp}^2} \frac{\mathrm{d}\mu^2}{\mu^2} \alpha_s(\mu^2) - (\ln(R^2) + c^{\lambda})\alpha_s(z_g k_{\perp}^2)\right], \quad (4.12)$$

according to the standard resummation procedure for threshold logarithms [109, 110].

In eq. (4.10), the small-x resummation is performed within the LO cross-section via BK-JIMWLK evolution of the dipole operators (Y_f dependence), while the $\alpha_s \ln^2(1-z)$ and $\alpha_s \ln(1-z)$ are resummed in the exponential factor. Although the exponentiation of soft gluons effects is a general property of pQCD [111, 112], a formal all-order proof of this result at small-x is beyond the scope of the present paper. In this paper, we propose this exponentiation as a natural procedure to cure the instability of the fixed order NLO calculation as z gets close to 1. The other NLO corrections which are not logarithmically enhanced in the $z \rightarrow 1$ limit can simply be added to eq. (4.10). Unlike threshold resummation in forward hadron production in pA [70, 71] or for SIDIS in the collinear framework [113–117], we do not need to go to Mellin space in order to exponentiate the threshold logarithms, as z is the measured longitudinal momentum fraction of the jet which does not appear in a convolution neither with a parton distribution function nor a fragmentation function.

Eq. (4.10) tells us that soft radiative corrections suppress the SIDIS cross-section in the very forward rapidity regime. Therefore, radiative effects effectively mimic the signal of gluon saturation in this kinematic domain, since gluon saturation also leads to a suppression of the cross-section for producing very forward jets [67]. In spirit, one recovers the competing effect between saturation and soft gluon radiations (via Sudakov suppression) which is also at play for inclusive back-to-back dijet production, another "golden channel" for gluon saturation searches at the EIC. There is yet a crucial difference between the Sudakov suppression for back-to-back dijets and the suppression in eq. (4.10). While the former is a convolution in transverse coordinate space, the latter completely factorizes, at least to double logarithmic accuracy, from the LO cross-section:

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to j+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\bigg|_{\mathrm{resum.}} = \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\lambda}^{\star}+A\to j+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\bigg|_{\mathrm{LO}} \times e^{-\frac{\alpha_{s}C_{F}}{2\pi}\ln^{2}(1-z)}\left[1+\mathcal{O}(\alpha_{s}\ln(1-z))\right]. \quad (4.13)$$

Since the exponential factor does not depend on the nuclear target, one expects complete cancellation of soft gluon effects (up to potential single log in 1 - z corrections arising from the NLO, 1 and NLO, 3 terms) when performing the ratio of the SIDIS cross-section between two different nuclear species. This is another advantage of single-jet measurement over single hadron production, as we expect the threshold logarithms to appear inside a convolution

between the fragmentation function and the LO cross-section. In such convolutions, there is no guarantee of cancellation of the threshold logarithm effects in nuclear modification factors.

5 The transverse momentum integrated SIDIS cross-section at NLO

The analytic expressions for the double differential SIDIS cross-section at NLO provided in section 3.6 remain challenging to evaluate because of the exponential phase and the large number of integrals. In order to decrease the complexity of future evaluations of the SIDIS cross-section in the forward limit which is relevant for gluon saturation, one may wish to integrate over the transverse momentum of the measured jet. The k_{\perp} -integrated single-jet semi-inclusive cross-section has one transverse integral less and no phases anymore.

The \mathbf{k}_{\perp} integration of the double differential distribution leads to new UV divergences term by term in the decomposition eq. (3.63) of our final result. These new divergences arise from real graphs where the Weizsäcker-Williams kernel $\mathbf{r}_{zx} \cdot \mathbf{r}_{zx'}/(\mathbf{r}_{zx}^2 \mathbf{r}_{zx'}^2)$ becomes logarithmically divergent $1/\mathbf{r}_{zx}^2$ as the transverse coordinate of the quark in the amplitude \mathbf{x}_{\perp} is identified to the one in the complex conjugate amplitude \mathbf{x}'_{\perp} . Some additional work is required to show that these new divergences cancel among the four terms and to reorganize the calculation in a way that is suitable for numerical evaluation.

5.1 UV divergences in the k_{\perp} integrated NLO,4 and NLO,1 terms

In the NLO,4 term for fermionic jets, given by eq. (3.68), the transverse momentum \mathbf{k}_{\perp} of the jet only appears inside the phase $e^{-i\mathbf{k}_{\perp}\cdot\mathbf{r}_{xx'}}$. The integral over \mathbf{k}_{\perp} then yields a $(2\pi)^2 \delta^{(2)}(\mathbf{r}_{xx'})$ function which fixes $\mathbf{x}_{\perp} = \mathbf{x}'_{\perp}$. Consequently, two UV divergences arise in the resulting expression: (i) one from the term proportional to $\mathbf{r}_{zx} \cdot \mathbf{r}_{zx'}/(\mathbf{r}^2_{zx}\mathbf{r}^2_{zx'})$ which becomes $1/\mathbf{r}^2_{zx}$ after \mathbf{k}_{\perp} integration, (ii) one from the term proportional to $1/\mathbf{r}^2_{zy}$ because the UV regulator of the divergence as $\mathbf{z}_{\perp} \to \mathbf{y}_{\perp}$, proportional to $\exp(-\mathbf{r}^2_{zy}/(e^{\gamma_E}\mathbf{r}^2_{xx'}))$, vanishes when $\mathbf{x}_{\perp} = \mathbf{x}'_{\perp}$. One ends up with the following expression, which is not anymore mathematically well-defined:

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{*}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},4} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{2}}8z^{3}(1-z)^{2}Q^{2}\frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi^{2}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}\int_{0}^{1-z}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}} \times \left\{\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{1-z}\right)^{2}K_{0}^{2}(QX_{R})\left[\frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}}\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{1-z-z_{g}}+\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2(1-z-z_{g})^{2}}\right)-2\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}}\right.\right. \\ \times\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{2z}+\frac{z_{g}}{2(1-z-z_{g})}\right)+\frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}}\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{z}+\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z^{2}}\right)\right]2\mathfrak{Re}[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},4}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp})]\right\}_{z_{f}}.$$
(5.1)

Similarly, the integral over k_{\perp} of the NLO,1 term given in eq. (3.67) yields

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to j_f+X}}{\mathrm{d}\eta}\bigg|_{\mathrm{NLO},1} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_f^2 N_c}{(2\pi)^2} 16z^3 (1-z)^2 Q^2 \int \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{x}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}$$

$$\times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi^{2}} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}} \left\{ \left[K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{w_{v}y})K_{0}(QX_{V})\Theta(z-z_{g}) \left(-\frac{r_{zx} \cdot r_{zy}}{r_{zx}^{2}r_{zy}^{2}} \left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{1-z} \right) \left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{z} \right) \right. \\ \left. \times \left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{2z} -\frac{z_{g}}{2(1-z+z_{g})} \right) + \frac{1}{r_{zx}^{2}} \left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{z} +\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z^{2}} \right) \right) \times 2\mathfrak{Re}\left[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},1}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{w}_{\perp,v}) \right] \\ \left. + K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{w_{r}y})K_{0}(QX_{R})\Theta(1-z-z_{g}) \left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{1-z} \right)^{2} \left(\frac{r_{zy} \cdot r_{zx}}{r_{zy}^{2}r_{zx}^{2}} \left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{2z} +\frac{z_{g}}{2(1-z-z_{g})} \right) \right) \\ \left. - \frac{1}{r_{zx}^{2}} \left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{z} +\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z^{2}} \right) \right) \right] \times 2\mathfrak{Re}\left[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},1}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{w}_{\perp,r}) \right] \\ \left. - K_{0}^{2}(\bar{Q}r_{xy})\Theta(z-z_{g}) \frac{e^{-r_{zx}^{2}/(r_{xy}^{2}e^{\gamma E})}}{r_{zx}^{2}} \left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{z} +\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z^{2}} \right) 2\mathfrak{Re}\left[\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}) \right] \right\}_{z_{f}},$$
(5.2)

with

$$\boldsymbol{w}_{\perp,v} = \boldsymbol{x}_{\perp} + \frac{z_g}{z} \boldsymbol{r}_{zx} \,, \tag{5.3}$$

$$\boldsymbol{w}_{\perp,r} = \boldsymbol{x}_{\perp} + \frac{z_g}{z + z_g} \boldsymbol{r}_{zx} \,. \tag{5.4}$$

In this expression, one recognizes two UV divergent kernels proportional to $1/r_{zx}^2$. The first one, in the third line of eq. (5.2) is regulated by the UV counter-term in the last line, proportional to $\exp\left(-r_{zx}^2/(e^{\gamma_E}r_{xy}^2)\right)$. However, the other $1/r_{zx}^2$ kernel, coming from the integration of the real diagram R1 × R2^{*} is not canceled by any other term in eq. (5.2). As it is, eq. (5.2) is then also ill-defined.

The pieces of NLO, 4 and NLO, 1 that contain the UV singularities are

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},4,\mathrm{UV}} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{2}}8z^{3}(1-z)^{2}Q^{2}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}\frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi^{2}}\int_{0}^{1-z}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}} \times \left\{ \left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{1-z}\right)^{2}K_{0}^{2}(QX_{R})\left[\frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}}\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{1-z-z_{g}}+\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2(1-z-z_{g})^{2}}\right) + \frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}}\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{z}+\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z^{2}}\right)\right]2\mathfrak{Re}[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},4}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp})]\right\}_{z_{f}}, \quad (5.5)$$

and

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{*}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},1,\mathrm{UV}} = -\frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{2}}16z^{3}(1-z)^{2}Q^{2}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}\frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi^{2}}\int_{0}^{1-z}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}} \\ \times \left\{\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{1-z}\right)^{2}\frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}}\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{z}+\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z^{2}}\right)K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}\boldsymbol{r}_{w_{r}y})K_{0}(QX_{R}) \\ \times 2\mathfrak{Re}\left[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},1}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{w}_{\perp,r})\right]\right\}_{z_{f}}.$$
(5.6)

We now demonstrate that these new UV divergences as $z_{\perp} \rightarrow x_{\perp}, y_{\perp}$ in the integrals eqs. (5.1)–(5.2) are canceled by divergences arising from the transverse momentum integration of the NLO,0 term.

5.2 UV divergences in the k_{\perp} integrated NLO,0 term

The \mathbf{k}_{\perp} dependence of the NLO,0 term, given by eq. (3.64) is slightly more complicated as \mathbf{k}_{\perp} appears both inside the phase $e^{-i\mathbf{k}_{\perp}\cdot\mathbf{r}_{xx'}}$ and in the argument of logarithms such as $\ln(\mathbf{k}_{\perp}^2 r_{xy} r_{x'y})$. To perform the \mathbf{k}_{\perp} integral, we rely on the identities in appendix C for the Fourier transform of the logarithm. These identities will allows us to deal with logarithmic singularities by expressing it in a form that will simplify its combination with the logarithmic singularities in eqs. (5.1)–(5.2).

Owing to these identities (eqs. (C.1) and (C.2)), we can integrate the NLO,0 contribution over \mathbf{k}_{\perp} :

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{*+A\to j_f+X}}{\mathrm{d}\eta}\bigg|_{\mathrm{NLO},0} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_f^2 N_c}{(2\pi)^2} \int \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{x}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp} 8z^3 (1-z)^2 Q^2 K_0^2(\bar{Q}r_{xy}) \\ \times \frac{\alpha_s C_F}{\pi} \left\{ -\frac{1}{2} \ln^2 \left(\frac{z}{1-z}\right) + \ln \left(\frac{z}{1-z}\right) \ln \left(R^2\right) - \frac{3}{2} \ln \left(2R\right) + 7 - \frac{2\pi^2}{3} \\ -\int_0^{1-z} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_g}{z_g} \ln \left(\frac{R^2 z_g^2}{z^2}\right) \left[\left(1 - \frac{z_g}{1-z}\right)^2 \left(1 + \frac{z_g}{z} + \frac{z_g^2}{2z^2}\right) \frac{K_0^2(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{xy})}{K_0^2(\bar{Q}r_{xy})} - 1 \right] \\ + 2\int_0^{1-z} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_g}{z_g} \ln \left(1 + \frac{z_g}{z}\right) \left(1 - \frac{z_g}{1-z}\right)^2 \left(1 + \frac{z_g}{z} + \frac{z_g^2}{2z^2}\right) \frac{K_0^2(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{xy})}{K_0^2(\bar{Q}r_{xy})} \right\} \\ \times 4 \Re \epsilon \langle 1 - D_{xy} \rangle_{Y_f} - \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_f^2 N_c}{(2\pi)^2} \left[8z^3 (1-z)^2 Q^2 \right] \times \frac{\alpha_s C_F}{\pi^2} \ln \left(\frac{z}{1-z}\right) \\ \times \int \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{x}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp} \mathcal{P}_{\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}} \left(\frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}^2}\right) \left[K_0(\bar{Q}r_{xy}) K_0(\bar{Q}r_{x'y}) 2 \Re \epsilon \langle D_{xx'} - D_{xy} - D_{yx'} + 1 \rangle_{Y_f} \right] \\ + \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{*+A\to j_f+X}}{\mathrm{d}\eta} \bigg|_{\mathrm{NLO},\mathrm{UV}}. \tag{5.7}$$

We have used the natural choice $u_{\perp} = r_{xy}$ in the definition of the distribution $\mathcal{P}_{u_{\perp}}$:

$$\mathcal{P}_{\boldsymbol{u}_{\perp}}\left(\frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}^{2}}\right)[f] \equiv \int \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}\left[\frac{f(\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}) - f(0)\Theta(\boldsymbol{u}_{\perp}^{2} - \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}^{2})}{\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}^{2}}\right],\tag{5.8}$$

which simplifies the form of the finite terms. The UV divergent contribution formally reads

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}\eta}\bigg|_{\mathrm{NLO},0,\mathrm{UV}} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{2}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}'}{\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}^{2}}8z^{3}(1-z)^{2}Q^{2}K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{xy})K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y}) \times \frac{\alpha_{s}C_{F}}{\pi^{2}}\left\{\frac{3}{4}+\int_{0}^{1-z}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}\left[\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{1-z}\right)^{2}\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{z}+\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z^{2}}\right)\frac{K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{xy})K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y})}{K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{xy})K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y})}-1\right]\right\} \times 2\mathfrak{Re}\left\langle D_{xx'}-D_{xy}-D_{yx'}+1\right\rangle_{Y_{f}}.$$
(5.9)

To more easily identify the cancellation of UV divergences, it is convenient to re-write the 3/4 term using the following identity:

$$\int_{0}^{1-z} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_g}{z_g} \left[\left(1 - \frac{z_g}{1-z} \right)^2 \left(1 + \frac{z_g}{1-z-z_g} + \frac{z_g^2}{2(1-z-z_g)^2} \right) - 1 \right] = -\frac{3}{4}, \quad (5.10)$$

which help us express eq. (5.9) as

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},0,\mathrm{UV}} = -\frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{2}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}'}{\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}^{2}}8z^{3}(1-z)^{2}Q^{2}K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{xy})K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y}) \\ \times \frac{\alpha_{s}C_{F}}{\pi^{2}}\int_{0}^{1-z}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{1-z}\right)^{2}\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{1-z-z_{g}}+\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2(1-z-z_{g})^{2}}\right)2\mathfrak{Re}\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}') \\ +\frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{2}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}'}{\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}^{2}}8z^{3}(1-z)^{2}Q^{2}\frac{\alpha_{s}C_{F}}{\pi^{2}}\int_{0}^{1-z}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{xy})K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{x'y}) \\ \times\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{1-z}\right)^{2}\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{z}+\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z^{2}}\right)2\mathfrak{Re}\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}'). \tag{5.11}$$

The first term in the above expression must be combined with the $1/r_{zy}^2$ divergent term of NLO,4, while the second term must be combined with the $1/r_{zx}^2$ divergent terms in NLO,1 and NLO,4. One should note that although the z_g integral in each term of eq. (5.11) is logarithmically singular near $z_g = 0$, the divergence exactly cancels between the two terms since eq. (5.9) has no rapidity divergence in the first place. The result of the sum of these terms will be presented in the next subsection.

Finally, the integration of the NLO,3 term does not yield any particular difficulty and the outcome is presented in the following summary subsection.

5.3 NLO impact factor for the single differential cross-section

Instead of dividing the η -differential cross-section in terms of color structure, as we did for the double differential cross-section, we decompose it into 4 terms which should be computed independently in numerical evaluations in order to avoid convergence issues:

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}\eta} = \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}\eta}\bigg|_{\mathrm{LO}} + \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}\eta}\bigg|_{\mathrm{NLO-a}} + \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}\eta}\bigg|_{\mathrm{NLO-b}} + \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}\eta}\bigg|_{\mathrm{NLO-b}} + \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}\eta}\bigg|_{\mathrm{UV-reg}}.$$
(5.12)

Combining eqs. (5.5), (5.6) and (5.11) in

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{UV-reg}} \equiv \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},0,\mathrm{UV}} + \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},4,\mathrm{UV}} + \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},1,\mathrm{UV}}, \qquad (5.13)$$

the resulting integral is UV convergent, and given by

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{+}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}\eta}\bigg|_{\mathrm{UV-reg}} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{2}}\frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi^{2}}\int \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp} \ 16z^{3}(1-z)^{2}Q^{2} \\ \times \mathfrak{Re}\int_{0}^{1-z}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}\bigg\{\frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}}\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{1-z}\right)^{2}\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{1-z-z_{g}}+\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2(1-z-z_{g})^{2}}\right)\right. \\ \times \left[K_{0}^{2}(QX_{R})\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},4}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp})-K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{xy})K_{0}\left(\bar{Q}|\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}-\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}|\right)C_{F}\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp})\right] \\ + \frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}}\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{1-z}\right)^{2}\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{z}+\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z^{2}}\right)\left[K_{0}^{2}(QX_{R})\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},4}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp})\right. \\ \left.-2K_{0}(QX_{R})K_{0}\left(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}\left|\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}+\frac{z_{g}}{z+z_{g}}\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}\right|\right)\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},1}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{w}_{\perp},r)\right. \\ \left.+K_{0}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{xy})K_{0}\left(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}\left|\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}+\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}\right|\right)C_{F}\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp})\right]\bigg\}_{z_{f}}.$$
(5.14)

To get this expression, we have renamed $\mathbf{x}_{\perp}' = \mathbf{z}_{\perp}$ in eq. (5.11) and swapped $(\mathbf{x}_{\perp} \leftrightarrow \mathbf{y}_{\perp})$ in the first term of eq. (5.11) in order to factor out the $1/r_{zx}^2$ and $1/r_{zy}^2$ kernels. Although it is not obvious at first sight, this expression is UV finite as all $\mathbf{z}_{\perp} \rightarrow \mathbf{x}_{\perp}, \mathbf{y}_{\perp}$ singularities are canceled by subtraction inside each square bracket multiplying the UV divergent Weizsäcker-Williams kernels.

The (a) term is the finite piece of the integral over \mathbf{k}_{\perp} of $d\sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to j_f+X}|_{\rm NLO,0}$:

$$\begin{aligned} \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{*}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}\eta} \bigg|_{\mathrm{NLO-a}} &= \\ \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{2}} \int \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{b}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{xy} 8z^{3}(1-z)^{2}Q^{2}K_{0}^{2}(\bar{Q}r_{xy}) 4\mathfrak{Re} \langle 1-D_{xy} \rangle_{Y_{f}} \\ &\times \frac{\alpha_{s}C_{F}}{\pi} \left\{ -\frac{1}{2}\ln^{2}\left(\frac{z}{1-z}\right) + \ln\left(\frac{z}{1-z}\right)\ln\left(R^{2}\right) - \frac{3}{2}\ln\left(2R\right) + 7 - \frac{2\pi^{2}}{3} \\ &- \int_{0}^{1-z} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}\ln\left(\frac{R^{2}z_{g}^{2}}{z^{2}}\right) \left[\left(1 - \frac{z_{g}}{1-z}\right)^{2} \left(1 + \frac{z_{g}}{z} + \frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z^{2}}\right) \frac{K_{0}^{2}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{xy})}{K_{0}^{2}(\bar{Q}r_{xy})} - 1 \right] \\ &+ 2\int_{0}^{1-z} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}\ln\left(1 + \frac{z_{g}}{z}\right) \left(1 - \frac{z_{g}}{1-z}\right)^{2} \left(1 + \frac{z_{g}}{z} + \frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z^{2}}\right) \frac{K_{0}^{2}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{xy})}{K_{0}^{2}(\bar{Q}r_{xy})} \right\} \\ &- \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{2}} \left[8z^{3}(1-z)^{2}Q^{2} \right] \times \frac{\alpha_{s}C_{F}}{\pi^{2}}\ln\left(\frac{z}{1-z}\right) \\ &\times \int \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{b}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}\mathcal{P}_{\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}}\left(\frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}^{2}}\right) \left[K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{xy})K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y}) 2\mathfrak{Re} \langle D_{xx'} - D_{xy} - D_{yx'} + 1 \rangle_{Y_{f}} \right]. \tag{5.15}$$

In writing eq. (5.15), we have implicitly performed the change of variable $b_{\perp} = z x_{\perp} + (1-z) y_{\perp}$, $r_{xy} = x_{\perp} - y_{\perp}$, with b_{\perp} the impact parameter. The transverse coordinates x_{\perp} and y_{\perp} in the CGC correlators should then be expressed in terms of b_{\perp} and r_{xy} . The (b) term is simply the integral over k_{\perp} of the NLO,3 term given by eq. (3.65). Importantly, the impact parameter in this diagram is given by

$$\boldsymbol{b}_{\perp} = (z - z_g)\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp} + (1 - z + z_g)\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}, \qquad (5.16)$$

because of the transverse recoil caused by the gluon emission. Using the proper definition of b_{\perp} will be crucial when checking that the NLO correction depending on the NLO, 3 CGC correlator vanishes after integrating over the rapidity of the jet η (or its longitudinal momentum fraction z). After some algebra, we end up with

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{*}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}\eta} \bigg|_{\mathrm{NLO-b}} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{2}} \int \frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{b}_{\perp}}{2\pi} \mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{r}_{xx'} \frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{r}_{yy'}}{\mathbf{r}_{yy'}^{2}} 8z^{3}(1-z)Q^{2} \\ \times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi} \int_{z-1}^{z} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}} K_{0} \left(\bar{Q} \left| (z-z_{g})\mathbf{r}_{xx'} + (1-z+z_{g})\mathbf{r}_{yy'} \right| \right) K_{0} \left(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{V3}} \left| z\mathbf{r}_{xx'} + (1-z)\mathbf{r}_{yy'} \right| \right) \\ \times (1-z+z_{g})(z-z_{g})^{2} \left[1 + \frac{((1-z)\mathbf{r}_{yy'} + (z-z_{g})\mathbf{r}_{xx'}) \cdot (z\mathbf{r}_{xx'} + (1-z+z_{g})\mathbf{r}_{yy'})}{(1-z)(1-z+z_{g})\mathbf{r}_{yy'}^{2} - z(z-z_{g})\mathbf{r}_{xx'}^{2}} \right] \\ \times 4\mathfrak{Re} \left[\frac{N_{c}}{2} \left\langle 1 - D_{xy} - D_{y'x'} + D_{xy}D_{y'x'} \right\rangle_{Y_{f}} - \frac{1}{2N_{c}} \left\langle 1 - D_{xy} - D_{y'x'} + Q_{xyy'x'} \right\rangle_{Y_{f}} \right], \quad (5.17)$$

where the transverse coordinates in the NLO, 3 correlator must be expressed in terms of $b_{\perp}, r_{xx'}$ and $r_{yy'}$ as⁵

$$\begin{aligned} \boldsymbol{x}_{\perp} &= \boldsymbol{b}_{\perp} + (1 - z + z_g) [z \boldsymbol{r}_{xx'} + (1 - z) \boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}], \\ \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp} &= \boldsymbol{b}_{\perp} - (z - z_g) [z \boldsymbol{r}_{xx'} + (1 - z) \boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}], \\ \boldsymbol{x}'_{\perp} &= \boldsymbol{b}_{\perp} + (1 - z) [(z - z_g) \boldsymbol{r}_{xx'} + (1 - z + z_g) \boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}], \\ \boldsymbol{y}'_{\perp} &= \boldsymbol{b}_{\perp} - z [(z - z_g) \boldsymbol{r}_{xx'} + (1 - z + z_g) \boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}]. \end{aligned}$$
(5.18)

Finally, the (c) term gathers the pieces from the NLO,1 and NLO,4 which do not introduce any further UV divergences once integrated over k_{\perp} :

$$\begin{split} \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{*}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}\eta}\bigg|_{\mathrm{NLO-c}} &= \\ \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{2}}16z^{3}(1-z)^{2}Q^{2}\times\frac{2\alpha_{s}}{\pi^{2}}\mathfrak{Re}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}\int_{0}^{1}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}} \\ &\times\left\{-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}}\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{z}\right)\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{1-z}\right)\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{2z}-\frac{z_{g}}{2(1-z+z_{g})}\right)K_{0}\left(\bar{Q}\left|\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}+\frac{z_{g}}{z}\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}\right|\right)\right. \\ &\times K_{0}(QX_{V})\Theta(z-z_{g})\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},1}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{w}_{\perp,v})+\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}}\frac{1-\frac{z_{g}}{1-z}}{1-z}\right)^{2} \\ &\times\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{2z}+\frac{z_{g}}{2(1-z-z_{g})}\right)K_{0}\left(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}\left|\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}+\frac{z_{g}}{z+z_{g}}\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}\right|\right)K_{0}(QX_{R})\Theta(1-z-z_{g}) \end{split}$$

⁵For this contribution, we have also re-scaled the variables $r_{xx'} \rightarrow z_g r_{xx'}$ and $r_{yy'} \rightarrow z_g r_{yy'}$.

$\Xi_{ m LO}(\pmb{x}_{\perp}, \pmb{y}_{\perp}, \pmb{x}_{\perp})$	$2\mathfrak{Re}\left\langle 1-D_{xy} ight angle$
$\Xi_{ m NLO,4}(oldsymbol{x}_{\perp},oldsymbol{y}_{\perp},oldsymbol{z}_{\perp},oldsymbol{x}_{\perp})$	$rac{N_c}{2}2\mathfrak{Re}\left\langle 1-D_{xz}D_{zy} ight angle -rac{1}{2N_c}2\mathfrak{Re}\left\langle 1-D_{xy} ight angle$

Table 3. Color correlators contributing to the next-to-leading order k_{\perp} integrated SIDIS cross-section (in addition to those already gathered in table 1).

$$\times \Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},1}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{w}_{\perp,r}) - \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{zy}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2} \boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}} \left(1 - \frac{z_{g}}{1 - z}\right)^{2} \left(1 + \frac{z_{g}}{2z} + \frac{z_{g}}{2(1 - z - z_{g})}\right)$$

$$\times K_{0}^{2}(QX_{R})\Theta(1 - z - z_{g}) \left[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},4}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{x}_{\perp})\right] + \frac{\Theta(z - z_{g})}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}}$$

$$\times \left(1 - \frac{z_{g}}{z} + \frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z^{2}}\right) \left[K_{0}\left(\bar{Q}\left|\boldsymbol{r}_{xy} + \frac{z_{g}}{z}\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}\right|\right) K_{0}(QX_{V})\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},1}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{w}_{\perp,v})$$

$$- e^{-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}^{2}e^{\gamma_{E}}}} K_{0}^{2}(\bar{Q}\boldsymbol{r}_{xy})C_{F}\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{x}_{\perp})\right] \right\}_{z_{f}}.$$

$$(5.19)$$

For completeness of this section, the simplified CGC color correlators necessary for the evaluation of the η -differential SIDIS cross-section are provided in table 3. Similar results can be obtained for the gluon-tagged jets.

6 Recovering the NLO fully inclusive DIS cross-section at small x

In this last section, we demonstrate that by integrating over the two-body phase space in the virtual NLO corrections to inclusive dijet production and the three-body phase space in the real NLO corrections, one recovers known results for the total DIS cross-section at small-x in the dipole picture [18–20]. As mentioned in the introduction of this paper, this section is an independent derivation of the NLO DIS structure functions at small x as we rely neither on the optical theorem nor on light-cone perturbation theory, contrary to the aforementioned papers. Without loss of generality, we will focus on the case where the virtual photon is longitudinally polarized. The same calculations can be performed for the transversely polarized case.

6.1 Cancellations between real and virtual diagrams

As in the SIDIS case (see section 3.1), after integrating over the anti-quark phase space we have

$$\sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{\rm SE3\times LO^*} = \sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{\overline{\rm SE3}\times \rm LO^*} = \sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{\overline{\rm R2}\times\overline{\rm R2}^*} = 0, \qquad (6.1)$$

and

$$\sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star} + A \to X} \Big|_{\overline{\rm R1} \times \overline{\rm R2}^{*}} = - \sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star} + A \to X} \Big|_{\overline{\rm SE1} \times \rm LO^{*}} , \qquad (6.2)$$

$$\sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{\rm R1\times\overline{\rm R2}^{\star}} = -\sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{\rm \overline{\rm V1}\times\rm LO^{\star}} .$$
(6.3)

Since we have derived the single-jet semi-inclusive cross-section in the small-R approximation (neglecting powers of R^2 terms), the integration of the η -differential single-jet semi-inclusive

cross-section over η does not exactly yield the total cross-section. It is easier to do a brute force integration over $\mathbf{k_{1\perp}}$, $\mathbf{k_{2\perp}}$, z_1 and z_2 without introducing any jet clustering at intermediate steps. The benefit of such a brute-forte integration is that new cancellations between diagrams arise. In particular, one gets that diagrams $R2 \times R2^*$ and $\overline{R2} \times \overline{R2}^*$ vanish in dimensional regularization. This simple result would have been more complicated to obtain by integrating diagram $R2 \times R2^*$ after implementation of the jet clustering algorithm, as the jet radius introduces a scale that formally breaks the dimensional regularization argument. We have then

$$\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star} + A \to X} \Big|_{\mathrm{R2} \times \mathrm{R2}^{\star}} = 0.$$
(6.4)

Let us now consider the diagrams where the gluon interacts only once with the shock-wave, either in the amplitude or in the complex conjugate amplitude. After integration over the full three-body phase space of $R1 \times R2^*$, and the following change of variable $z_1 \rightarrow z_1 + z_g$, one finds that

$$\sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star} + A \to X} \Big|_{\rm R1 \times R2^*} = - \left. \sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star} + A \to X} \right|_{\rm SE1 \times \rm LO^*} \,. \tag{6.5}$$

Likewise, a similar manipulation gives

$$\sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{\overline{\rm R1}\times{\rm R2}^{\star}} = -\left.\sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\right|_{\rm V1\times{\rm LO}^{\star}}.$$
(6.6)

Particularly important diagrams are the final state gluon emission $R2 \times \overline{R2}^*$ and $V3 \times LO^*$ and their complex conjugate. It is crucial that the sum of these diagrams cancels, since they give a contribution proportional to the quadrupole $Q_{xyy'x'}$ which is not present in the total cross-section at NLO [18–20]. Indeed, we prove in appendix D that final state emissions cancel among virtual and real contributions:

$$\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{\mathrm{V3\times LO^{*}+R2\times\overline{R2}^{*}}} + c.c. = -\left(\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{\mathrm{V3\times LO^{*}+R2\times\overline{R2}^{*}}} + c.c.\right).$$
(6.7)

We also prove in appendix **D** that this identity holds for the cross-section differential with respect to the virtual photon impact parameter $d\sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^*+A\to X}/d^2 \boldsymbol{b}_{\perp}$ provided \boldsymbol{b}_{\perp} is defined by eq. (5.16) for these particulars diagrams.

In the end, the only diagrams which contribute to the fully inclusive DIS cross-section are (i) the real diagrams where the gluon is emitted and absorbed after before the shock-wave: $R1 \times R1^*$, $\overline{R1} \times \overline{R1}^*$, $R1 \times \overline{R1}^*$ and $\overline{R1} \times R1^*$, and (ii) the virtual diagrams with gluon exchanged before the shock-wave, namely SE2 × LO^{*}, $\overline{SE2} \times LO^*$ and V2 × LO^{*} plus their complex conjugate.

6.2 Real diagrams

We start by discussing the real emissions where the gluon is emitted and absorbed before the shock-wave. We will integrate over the quark phase space in eqs. (3.33), (3.34) and (3.22). These contributions are in one-to-one correspondence with the $q\bar{q}g$ contributions to the NLO light-cone wave-function of the virtual photon in light cone perturbation theory. The

contribution of diagram $\mathrm{R1}\times\mathrm{R1}^*$ to the total cross-section is given by

$$\sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^* + A \to X} \Big|_{\rm R1 \times R1^*} = \frac{\alpha_{\rm em} e_f^2 N_c}{(2\pi)^2} \int_0^1 dz_1 \int d^2 \boldsymbol{x}_\perp d^2 \boldsymbol{y}_\perp 8z_1^2 (1 - z_1)^2 Q^2 \times \frac{\alpha_s}{\pi} \int_0^{1 - z_1} \frac{dz_g}{z_g} \left(1 - \frac{z_g}{1 - z_1} \right)^2 \left(1 + \frac{z_g}{z_1} + \frac{z_g^2}{2z_1^2} \right) \times \int \frac{d^2 \boldsymbol{z}_\perp}{\pi} \frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^2} K_0^2 (QX_R) \frac{N_c}{2} \left\langle 2 - D_{xz} D_{zy} - D_{yz} D_{zx} - \frac{1}{N_c^2} (2 - D_{xy} - D_{yx}) \right\rangle.$$
(6.8)

Similarly, the contribution of diagram $\overline{\mathrm{R1}}\times\overline{\mathrm{R1}}$ reads

$$\sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^* + A \to X} \Big|_{\overline{\mathrm{R1}} \times \overline{\mathrm{R1}}^*} = \frac{\alpha_{\rm em} e_f^2 N_c}{(2\pi)^2} \int_0^1 \mathrm{d}z_1 \int \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{x}_\perp \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{y}_\perp 8 z_1^2 (1 - z_1)^2 Q^2 \times \frac{\alpha_s}{\pi^2} \int_0^{1 - z_1} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_g}{z_g} \left(1 - \frac{z_g}{1 - z_1} \right)^2 \left(1 + \frac{z_g}{1 - z_1 - z_g} + \frac{z_g^2}{2(1 - z_1 - z_g)^2} \right) \times \int \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{z}_\perp \frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^2} K_0^2 (Q X_R) \frac{N_c}{2} \left\langle 2 - D_{xz} D_{zy} - D_{yz} D_{zx} - \frac{1}{N_c^2} (2 - D_{xy} - D_{yx}) \right\rangle.$$
(6.9)

Finally, the cross diagram $\overline{\mathrm{R1}} \times \mathrm{R1}$ reads

$$\sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^* + A \to X} \Big|_{\overline{\rm R1} \times {\rm R1}^*} = - \frac{\alpha_{\rm em} e_f^2 N_c}{(2\pi)^2} \int_0^1 {\rm d}z_1 \int {\rm d}^2 \boldsymbol{x}_\perp {\rm d}^2 \boldsymbol{y}_\perp 8 z_1^3 (1 - z_1)^2 Q^2 \times \frac{\alpha_s}{\pi} \int_0^{1-z_1} \frac{{\rm d}z_g}{z_g} \left(1 - \frac{z_g}{1 - z_1} \right)^2 \left(1 + \frac{z_g}{2z_1} + \frac{z_g}{2(1 - z_1 - z_g)} \right) \times \int \frac{{\rm d}^2 \boldsymbol{z}_\perp}{\pi} \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{zx}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^2 \boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^2} K_0^2 (Q X_R) \frac{N_c}{2} \left\langle 2 - D_{xz} D_{zy} - D_{yz} D_{zx} - \frac{1}{N_c^2} (2 - D_{xy} - D_{yx}) \right\rangle.$$
(6.10)

The terms $R1 \times R1^*$ and $\overline{R1} \times \overline{R1}^*$ are UV divergent and must be regulated. As in section 3.3.2, we use the following two regulators that we add and subtract to the cross-section:

In the first UV counter-term, we perform the change of variable

$$\begin{aligned} \zeta_1 &= z_1 + z_g \,, \\ \zeta_g &= z_g \,, \end{aligned} \tag{6.13}$$

and we get

$$\sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{\rm R1\times R1^{*},\rm UV} = \frac{\alpha_{\rm em}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{2}} \int_{0}^{1} \mathrm{d}\zeta_{1} \int \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp} \ 8\zeta_{1}^{2}(1-\zeta_{1})^{2}Q^{2} \\ \times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi} \int_{0}^{\zeta_{1}} \frac{\mathrm{d}\zeta_{g}}{\zeta_{g}} \left(1-\frac{\zeta_{g}}{\zeta_{1}}+\frac{\zeta_{g}^{2}}{2\zeta_{1}^{2}}\right) \int \frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}}{\pi} \frac{e^{-\frac{r_{zx}}{2\xi_{1}}}}{r_{zx}^{2}} K_{0}^{2}(\bar{Q}r_{xy})C_{F}2\mathfrak{Re}\langle 1-D_{xy}\rangle .$$

$$\tag{6.14}$$

The computation of these integrals in dimension regularization $d^2 \boldsymbol{z}_\perp \to d^{2+\varepsilon} \boldsymbol{z}_\perp$ leads to

$$\sigma_{\Gamma}^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{\rm R1\times R1^{\star}, \rm UV} = \frac{\alpha_{\rm em} e_f^2 N_c}{(2\pi)^2} \int_0^1 {\rm d}z_1 \int {\rm d}^2 \boldsymbol{x}_\perp {\rm d}^2 \boldsymbol{y}_\perp \ 8z_1^2 (1-z_1)^2 Q^2 K_0^2(\bar{Q}r_{xy}) \\ \times \frac{\alpha_s C_F}{\pi} \left[\ln\left(\frac{z_1}{z_0}\right) - \frac{3}{4} \right] \left(\frac{2}{\varepsilon} + \ln(2\pi\mu^2\xi_1)\right) 2\Re\epsilon \left\langle 1 - D_{xy} \right\rangle$$
(6.15)

$$\sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X} \Big|_{\overline{\rm R1}\times\overline{\rm R1}^{*},\rm UV} = \frac{\alpha_{\rm em}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{2}} \int_{0}^{1} {\rm d}z_{1} \int {\rm d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp} {\rm d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp} \ 8z_{1}^{2}(1-z_{1})^{2}Q^{2}K_{0}^{2}(\bar{Q}r_{xy}) \\ \times \frac{\alpha_{s}C_{F}}{\pi} \left[\ln\left(\frac{1-z_{1}}{z_{0}}\right) - \frac{3}{4} \right] \left(\frac{2}{\varepsilon} + \ln(2\pi\mu^{2}\xi_{2})\right) 2\mathfrak{Re} \left\langle 1 - D_{xy} \right\rangle ,$$
(6.16)

where potential finite pieces from the $\mathcal{O}(\varepsilon)$ terms in Dirac structure have been omitted. These poles will cancel against diagrams V2 and diagrams SE2 that we now discuss.

6.3 Virtual diagrams

The $q\bar{q}$ phase space integral of the diagrams V2 and SE2 is straightforward from the expressions obtained in [33] (see eqs. (5.40)-(5.78) therein). Adding together the three virtual diagrams with gluon exchange before the shock-wave and their complex conjugate defined as:

$$\sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{\rm init.} \equiv \sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{\rm SE2\times LO} + \sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{\rm \overline{SE2}\times LO} + \sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{\rm V2\times LO} + c.c.\,,\quad(6.17)$$

we get

$$\begin{split} \sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{\mathrm{init.}} &= \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}} e_f^2 N_c}{(2\pi)^2} \frac{\alpha_s C_F}{\pi} \int_0^1 \mathrm{d}z_1 \int \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{x}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp} 8z_1^2 (1-z_1)^2 Q^2 K_0^2 (\bar{Q} \boldsymbol{r}_{xy}) 2\mathfrak{Re} \left\langle 1-D_{xy} \right\rangle \\ &\times \left[\left(\frac{2}{\varepsilon} + \ln(\pi \mu^2 e^{\gamma_E} \boldsymbol{r}_{xy}^2) \right) \left(\frac{3}{2} - \ln\left(\frac{z_1}{z_0}\right) - \ln\left(\frac{z_2}{z_0}\right) \right) + \frac{1}{2} \ln^2 \left(\frac{1-z_1}{z_1}\right) + \frac{5}{2} - \frac{\pi^2}{6} \right]. \end{split}$$

$$(6.18)$$

In this expression, we have removed the finite pieces from the $\mathcal{O}(\varepsilon)$ terms in the Dirac structure, in agreement with our convention for the expression of the UV divergent pieces eqs. (6.15)–(6.16) from diagrams R1 × R1 and $\overline{\text{R1}} \times \overline{\text{R1}}$.

6.4 Final result

We readily observe the cancellation of UV divergences between eqs. (6.15), (6.16) and (6.18), we thus define the $q\bar{q}$ contribution to the inclusive DIS cross-section as

$$\sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{q\bar{q}} \equiv \sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{\rm init.} + \sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{\rm R1\times R1, UV} + \sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{\overline{\rm R1}\times \overline{\rm R1}, \rm UV} \,. \tag{6.19}$$

For the choice of regulator:

$$\xi_1 = \xi_2 = \frac{e^{\gamma_E} \boldsymbol{r}_{xy}^2}{2} \,, \tag{6.20}$$

we have

$$\sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{q\bar{q}} = \frac{\alpha_{\rm em}e_f^2 N_c}{(2\pi)^2} \int_0^1 \mathrm{d}z_1 \int \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{x}_\perp \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{y}_\perp \ 8z_1^2 (1-z_1)^2 Q^2 K_0^2(\bar{Q}r_{xy}) 2\mathfrak{Re}\langle 1-D_{xy}\rangle \\ \times \frac{\alpha_s C_F}{\pi} \left[\frac{1}{2}\ln^2\left(\frac{1-z_1}{z_1}\right) + \frac{5}{2} - \frac{\pi^2}{6}\right].$$
(6.21)

The above result agrees with eq. (176) in [20].

With these choices, the $q\bar{q}g$ contribution defined as the sum of R1 × R1, $\overline{R1} \times \overline{R1}$, $\overline{R1} \times \overline{R1} \times \overline{R1}$ and R1 × $\overline{R1}$ reads

$$\sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{q\bar{q}g} \equiv \sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{{\rm R}1\times{\rm R}1} + \sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{\overline{{\rm R}1}\times{\rm R}1} + \sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{{\rm R}1\times{\rm R}1} + \sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{{\rm R}1\times{\rm R}1}, \quad (6.22)$$

with

$$\begin{split} \sigma^{\gamma_{L}^{*}+A\to X}\Big|_{q\bar{q}g} &= \frac{\alpha_{\rm em}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{2}} \frac{\alpha_{s}C_{F}}{\pi} 2\mathfrak{Re} \int_{0}^{1} \mathrm{d}z_{1} \int_{0}^{1-z_{1}} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}} \int \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp} \int \frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}}{\pi} 8z_{1}^{2}z_{2}^{2}Q^{2} \\ &\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{z_{1}}+\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z_{1}^{2}}\right) \frac{1}{r_{zx}^{2}} \left[K_{0}^{2}(QX_{R}) \left\langle 1-\frac{N_{c}}{2C_{F}}D_{xz}D_{zy}+\frac{1}{2N_{c}C_{F}}D_{xy}\right\rangle \right. \\ &\left. -K_{0}^{2}(\bar{Q}_{R2}r_{xy})e^{-\frac{r_{xx}^{2}}{e^{\gamma_{E}}r_{xy}^{2}}} \left\langle 1-D_{xy}\right\rangle \right] \\ &\left. +\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{z_{2}}+\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z_{2}^{2}}\right) \frac{1}{r_{zy}^{2}} \left[K_{0}^{2}(QX_{R}) \left\langle 1-\frac{N_{c}}{2C_{F}}D_{xz}D_{zy}+\frac{1}{2N_{c}C_{F}}D_{xy}\right\rangle \right. \\ &\left. -K_{0}^{2}(\bar{Q}r_{xy})e^{-\frac{r_{xy}^{2}}{e^{\gamma_{E}}r_{xy}^{2}}} \left\langle 1-D_{xy}\right\rangle \right] \\ &\left. -2\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{2z_{1}}+\frac{z_{g}}{2z_{2}}\right) \frac{r_{zx}\cdot r_{zy}}{r_{zx}^{2}}r_{zy}^{2}K_{0}^{2}(QX_{R}) \left\langle 1-\frac{N_{c}}{2C_{F}}D_{xz}D_{zy}+\frac{1}{2N_{c}C_{F}}D_{xy}\right\rangle, \end{aligned}$$

$$(6.23)$$

which exactly agrees with eq. (177) in [20]. We have noted $z_2 = 1 - z_1 - z_g$ for compactness. The fully inclusive DIS cross-section at NLO is given by the sum of the LO, $q\bar{q}$ and $q\bar{q}g$ contributions:

$$\sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X} = \sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{\rm LO} + \sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{q\bar{q}} + \sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{q\bar{q}g} \,. \tag{6.24}$$

7 Summary and outlook

In this paper, we computed for the first time the NLO semi-inclusive single *jet* production cross-section in DIS at small x, working in the dipole picture of DIS and using the Color Glass Condensate effective field theory. Our results follow from the analytic expressions obtained in [33] for the inclusive dijet cross-section by integrating out the phase space of one of the jets. These integrations yield new ultra-violet divergences in the transverse coordinate integrals which cancel at the cross-section level for our infrared and collinear safe jet cross-section. The rapidity divergences in the NLO correction, associated with gluons with $k_g^- \ll q^-$, are cured using a renormalization group approach. The bare dipole operator in the LO cross-section, defined at some initial rapidity scale $z_0 = \Lambda^-/q^-$ is replaced by a renormalized one at some rapidity factorization scale $z_f = k_f^-/q^-$, and we explicitly demonstrate that the resulting $Y_f = \ln(z_f)$ dependence of the dipole correlator $\langle D_{xy} \rangle_{Y_f}$ satisfies the BK-JIMWLK equation.

We provide analytic expressions for the NLO impact factor for both the double differential (transverse momentum and rapidity) cross-section and the single differential cross-section (rapidity only) in sections 3.6 and 5.3 respectively (see also appendix A). These results are complementary to those obtained in [75] which focuses on single hadron production in DIS at small x. While some contributions are identical, such as the UV and IR regular virtual or real corrections (diagrams V1×LO^{*}, R1×R2^{*}, $\overline{R1}$ ×R2^{*}, R1×R1^{*} and $\overline{R1}$ ×R1^{*} in our notations), our different definition of the final state (in terms of jets) lead to different expressions, in particular for the real corrections with a collinear singularity or the virtual diagrams with a UV pole in dimensional regularization. We also provide the analytic expressions for the transversely polarized virtual photon case in appendix A and we compute the subleading N_c corrections in the NLO impact factor.

Thanks to our explicit analytic expressions, we were able to identify the leading NLO corrections in the very forward rapidity regime, which is the most interesting one in the search for saturation signal in our process [67]. We find that the leading NLO corrections for very forward jets come from the incomplete cancellation between real and virtual soft gluon emissions and are thus double logarithmically enhanced. They can give a negative cross-section at any fixed order, spoiling the predictive power of perturbative calculations in this corner of the phase space. As usual in pQCD, the solution we propose to restore the convergence of the perturbative series is to resum to all orders the logarithmic terms via exponentiation. Using the BK-JIMWLK evolved dipole operator in the LO cross-section and the exponentiation of the $\alpha_s \ln^2(1-z)$, $\alpha_s \ln(1-z)$ corrections enables one to simultaneously resum the $\alpha_s \ln(z_f/z_0) \sim \alpha_s \ln(1/x)$ and threshold logarithms to all orders. A formal proof of the exponentiation at small x is left for future studies, it may require a two-loop computation. Nevertheless, assuming exponentiation holds, the effect of soft gluons in the very forward jet regime is to suppress the cross-section, thereby mimicking the signal of saturation. While this may potentially complicate the extraction of saturation from SIDIS at very forward rapidity, the universality of the double logarithms in 1-z with respect to the nuclear target suggests that the nuclear modification factor for the SIDIS cross-section could be a promising observable given that the suppression caused by soft gluons exactly cancel in the ratio. We point out that this exact cancellation occurs for single-jet production, but not for single-hadron production, which is another benefit of using jets in SIDIS measurements at small x.

The next step of this project will be to numerically evaluate the NLO SIDIS cross-section at small x based on the formulae derived in this paper, including the resummation of the aforementioned threshold logarithms. We forecast two main difficulties with the numerical evaluation. First, the NLO impact factor depends on the quadrupole correlator, because of the final state gluon emission diagrams and it is challenging to solve the JIMWLK equation for the quadrupole correlator. Our plan is to provide a numerical estimation of the quadrupole by relying on the Gaussian approximation [104-108]. Since the quadrupole dependence is $1/N_c^2$ suppressed in the NLO impact factor, this should be a good approximation to the exact result. The second difficulty is related to our treatment of rapidity factorization, with an implicit ordering in minus longitudinal momentum k_a^- . It is now well documented that this naive factorization scheme leads to unphysical NLO results, as the rapidity logarithms are oversubtracted [49, 118-120]. The proper way to resum the high energy logarithms is to use an ordering along the target rapidity variable k_q^+ , which requires implementing a kinematic constraint when subtracting the rapidity divergence in our calculation [118, 121-130]. The implementation of this kinematic constraint (maybe along the lines of [131]) and how it affects the NLO impact factor is left for an upcoming paper.

In addition to the numerical evaluation of SIDIS at general small-x kinematics, we envision several applications of our results in this manuscript that we leave for future work. For example, replacing the jet clustering algorithm with a measurement function for the energy deposition of the final state, our results for the SIDIS cross-section at NLO can be utilized to promote the calculation of the novel nucleon energy correlators for the CGC [132] to higher precision. Furthermore, one can use the single jet production in conjunction with the dijet observable in [51] to define a dijet correlation function normalized by the trigger jet [133]. In addition, it would be interesting to test if the correspondence between the dipole picture within the CGC EFT and TMD factorization framework holds at NLO in the regime $k_{\perp}, Q_s \ll Q$. Lastly, by taking the photo-production limit our results could be easily adapted to the inclusive production of jets in ultra-peripheral collisions.

In the last section 6 of this paper, we provide the first independent cross-check of the NLO corrections to the DIS structure functions obtained in [18–20] thanks to the optical theorem. Our initial formula for inclusive dijet (or $q\bar{q}$ production) cross-section [33] have indeed been obtained in covariant perturbation theory, contrary to the calculations in [18–20] done in light-cone perturbation theory. By integrating the NLO corrections to inclusive $q\bar{q}$ production over the full phase space of the out-going partons, we recover the results of [20], meaning that the optical theorem, a fundamental consequence of unitarity, is valid at NLO in the dipole picture. While this is of course a minimal requirement for the dipole picture to be a consistent framework beyond leading order, we emphasize that checking the validity of the optical theorem, both for the DIS structure functions and the DIS structure functions differential with the impact parameter, rely on subtle cancellations between NLO Feynman diagrams and the use of the physical impact parameter of the virtual photon. Hence, this is also an important crosscheck of the formulae derived in [33] and in this paper.

Acknowledgments

We are grateful to Edmond Iancu, Jani Penttala, and Feng Yuan for valuable discussions. P.C. and F.S. thank the EIC theory institute at BNL for its support during the early stages of this work. P.C. would also like to thank the staff at LBNL for their hospitality during the completion of this project. E.F. is thankful to Subatech for financial support. F.S. is supported in part by DOE under Contract No. DE-AC02-05CH11231, by NSF under Grant No. OAC-2004571 within the X-SCAPE Collaboration. F.S. also acknowledges support from the INT's U.S. DOE under Grant No. DE-FG02-00ER41132. This work is also supported by the U.S. Department of Energy, Office of Science, Office of Nuclear Physics, within the framework of the Saturated Glue (SURGE) Topical Theory Collaboration.

A NLO impact factor for transversely polarized virtual photon

This appendix gathers our final expressions for the NLO semi-inclusive single-jet production in DIS at small x, following the notations and conventions detailed in the main text.

A.1 Spin and polarization sums for the real inclusive dijet cross-section

In this subsection, we first provide the spin and polarization sums that have not been performed in the original paper [33]. These sums are associated with diagrams $R1 \times R2^*$, $\overline{R1} \times R2^*$, $R1 \times R1^*$ and $R1 \times \overline{R1}^*$. Let us quote here the results, following the notations of appendix B in [33]. In particular, we recall here the definition of the transverse vectors

$$\boldsymbol{R}_{\mathrm{R}} = \boldsymbol{r}_{xy} + \frac{z_g}{z_1 + z_g} \boldsymbol{r}_{zx} \,, \tag{A.1}$$

$$\overline{R}_{\rm R} = -r_{xy} + \frac{z_g}{z_2 + z_g} r_{zy} , \qquad (A.2)$$

$$\boldsymbol{w}_{\perp} = \frac{z_1 \boldsymbol{x}_{\perp} + z_g \boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}}{z_1 + z_g}, \qquad (A.3)$$

$$\bar{\boldsymbol{w}}_{\perp} = \frac{z_2 \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp} + z_g \boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}}{z_2 + z_g} \,. \tag{A.4}$$

The vector $\mathbf{R}'_{\mathrm{R}}, \overline{\mathbf{R}}'_{\mathrm{R}}, \mathbf{w}'_{\perp}$ and $\overline{\mathbf{w}}'_{\perp}$ are defined similarly, with the transverse coordinates replaced by the prime ones. Throughout this appendix, cross product between two 2-dimensional transverse vectors is defined by $\mathbf{a}_{\perp} \times \mathbf{b}_{\perp} = \epsilon^{ij} a^i b^j$.

The spin and polarization sum for diagram $\mathrm{R1}\times\mathrm{R2}^*$ is

$$S_{1} \equiv \sum_{\lambda,\bar{\lambda},\sigma,\sigma'} \mathcal{N}_{\mathrm{R1}}^{\lambda\bar{\lambda}\sigma\sigma'}(\boldsymbol{r}_{xy},\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}) \mathcal{N}_{\mathrm{R2}}^{\lambda\bar{\lambda}\sigma\sigma',\dagger}(\boldsymbol{r}_{w'y'},\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x'})$$

$$= \frac{(-8\alpha_{s})}{\pi} \frac{z_{1}z_{2}^{2}}{(1-z_{2})} \frac{Q\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}K_{1}(QX_{\mathrm{R}})K_{1}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{w'y'})}{X_{\mathrm{R}}r_{w'y'}}$$

$$\times \left\{ \left[z_{1}^{2} + (1-z_{2})^{2} \right] \left[z_{2}^{2} + (1-z_{2})^{2} \right] \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{z'x'}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x'}^{2}} \boldsymbol{R}_{\mathrm{R}} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{w'y'} + z_{g}(1+z_{1}-z_{2})(1-2z_{2}) \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx} \times \boldsymbol{r}_{z'x'}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x'}^{2}} \boldsymbol{R}_{\mathrm{R}} \times \boldsymbol{r}_{w'y'} - \frac{z_{1}^{2}z_{2}z_{g}}{(1-z_{2})} \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x'} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{w'y'}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x'}^{2}} \right\}.$$
(A.5)

For the diagram $\overline{R1} \times R2^*$, one can use the quark-antiquark symmetry to relate the perturbative factor for $\overline{R1}$ to that of diagram R1

$$S_{2} \equiv \sum_{\lambda,\bar{\lambda},\sigma,\sigma'} \mathcal{N}_{\overline{R1}}^{\lambda\bar{\lambda}\sigma\sigma'}(\mathbf{r}_{xy},\mathbf{r}_{zy}) \mathcal{N}_{R2}^{\lambda\bar{\lambda}\sigma\sigma',\dagger}(\mathbf{r}_{w'y'},\mathbf{r}_{z'x'})$$
(A.7)
$$= -\frac{8\alpha_{s}}{\pi} \frac{z_{1}^{2}z_{2}}{(1-z_{2})} \frac{Q\bar{Q}_{R2}K_{1}(QX_{R})K_{1}(\bar{Q}_{R2}r_{w'y'})}{X_{R}r_{w'y'}}$$
$$\times \left\{ \left[z_{1}(1-z_{1}) + z_{2}(1-z_{2}) \right] \left[z_{1}(1-z_{2}) + z_{2}(1-z_{1}) \right] \frac{\mathbf{r}_{zy} \cdot \mathbf{r}_{z'x'}}{\mathbf{r}_{zy}^{2}\mathbf{r}_{z'x'}^{2}} \overline{\mathbf{R}}_{R} \cdot \mathbf{r}_{w'y'} - z_{g}(z_{1}-z_{2})^{2} \frac{\mathbf{r}_{zy} \times \mathbf{r}_{z'x'}}{\mathbf{r}_{zy}^{2}\mathbf{r}_{z'x'}^{2}} \overline{\mathbf{R}}_{R} \times \mathbf{r}_{w'y'} - \frac{z_{2}z_{g}(1-z_{2})^{2}}{1-z_{1}} \frac{\mathbf{r}_{z'x'} \cdot \mathbf{r}_{w'y'}}{\mathbf{r}_{z'x'}^{2}} \right\}.$$
(A.8)

The spin and polarization sum of diagram $\mathrm{R1}\times\mathrm{R1}^*$ reads

$$S_{3} \equiv \sum_{\lambda,\bar{\lambda},\sigma,\sigma'} \mathcal{N}_{\mathrm{R1}}^{\lambda\bar{\lambda}\sigma\sigma'}(\boldsymbol{r}_{xy},\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}) \mathcal{N}_{\mathrm{R1}}^{\lambda\bar{\lambda}\sigma\sigma',\dagger}(\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y'},\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x'})$$
(A.9)
$$= \frac{8\alpha_{s}}{\pi} z_{1} z_{2}^{3} \frac{Q^{2} K_{1}(QX_{R}) K_{1}(QX_{R}')}{X_{R} X_{R}'} \left\{ \left[z_{1}^{2} + (1-z_{2})^{2} \right] \left[z_{2}^{2} + (1-z_{2})^{2} \right] \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{z'x'}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2} \boldsymbol{r}_{z'x'}^{2}} \boldsymbol{R}_{\mathrm{R}} \cdot \boldsymbol{R}_{\mathrm{R}}' \right.$$
$$\left. + z_{g} (1+z_{1}-z_{2})(1-2z_{2}) \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx} \times \boldsymbol{r}_{z'x'}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2} \boldsymbol{r}_{z'x'}^{2}} \boldsymbol{R}_{\mathrm{R}} \times \boldsymbol{R}_{\mathrm{R}}' - \frac{z_{1}^{2} z_{2} z_{g}}{1-z_{2}} \left[\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx} \cdot \boldsymbol{R}_{\mathrm{R}}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}} + \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x'} \cdot \boldsymbol{R}_{\mathrm{R}}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x'}^{2}} \right]$$
$$\left. + \frac{z_{1}^{2} z_{g}^{2}}{(1-z_{2})^{2}} \right\}.$$
(A.10)

Finally, the spin-polarization sum of diagram $R1 \times \overline{R1}^*$ is given by

$$S_{4} \equiv \sum_{\lambda,\bar{\lambda},\sigma,\sigma'} \mathcal{N}_{\mathrm{R1}}^{\lambda\bar{\lambda}\sigma\sigma'}(\mathbf{r}_{xy},\mathbf{r}_{zx}) \mathcal{N}_{\overline{\mathrm{R1}}}^{\lambda\bar{\lambda}\sigma\sigma',\dagger}(\mathbf{r}_{x'y'},\mathbf{r}_{z'y'})$$
(A.11)
$$= \frac{8\alpha_{s}}{\pi} z_{1}^{2} z_{2}^{2} \frac{Q^{2} K_{1}(QX_{\mathrm{R}}) K_{1}(QX_{\mathrm{R}}')}{X_{\mathrm{R}} X_{\mathrm{R}}'}$$
$$\times \left\{ [z_{1}(1-z_{1})+z_{2}(1-z_{2})] [z_{1}(1-z_{2})+z_{2}(1-z_{1})] \frac{\mathbf{r}_{zx} \cdot \mathbf{r}_{z'y'}}{\mathbf{r}_{zx}^{2} \mathbf{r}_{z'y'}^{2'}} \mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}} \cdot \overline{\mathbf{R}}_{\mathrm{R}}'$$
$$- z_{g} (z_{1}-z_{2})^{2} \frac{\mathbf{r}_{zx} \times \mathbf{r}_{z'y'}}{\mathbf{r}_{zx}^{2} \mathbf{r}_{z'y'}^{2}} \mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}} \times \overline{\mathbf{R}}_{\mathrm{R}}' - z_{g} \left[\frac{z_{1}(1-z_{1})^{2}}{1-z_{2}} \frac{\mathbf{r}_{z'y'} \cdot \overline{\mathbf{R}}_{\mathrm{R}}'}{\mathbf{r}_{z'y'}^{2}} + \frac{z_{2}(1-z_{2})^{2}}{1-z_{1}} \frac{\mathbf{r}_{zx} \cdot \mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}}}{\mathbf{r}_{zx}^{2}} \right] \right\}.$$
(A.12)

A.2 NLO impact factor for the double differential cross-section

Following the decomposition we used for the longitudinally polarized case, we write the full NLO SIDIS cross-section for transversely polarized photon as eqs. (3.62)-(3.63) with the

corresponding terms with fermion-tagged jets given by

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma\gamma_{\mathrm{T}}^{*}+A\to j_f+X}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\bigg|_{\mathrm{NLO},0} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}2z(z^{2}+(1-z)^{2})\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}}{r_{xy}r_{x'y}} \times \bar{Q}^{2}K_{1}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y})K_{1}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y})2\mathfrak{Re}\left[\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}'_{\perp})\right]\times\frac{\alpha_{s}C_{F}}{\pi}\left\{-\frac{1}{2}\ln^{2}\left(\frac{z}{1-z}\right)+7-\frac{2\pi^{2}}{3}\right\} \\ +\ln\left(\frac{z}{1-z}\right)\ln\left(\frac{\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^{2}r_{xy}r_{x'y}R^{2}}{c_{0}^{2}}\right)-\frac{3}{4}\ln\left(\frac{4\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}^{2}R^{2}}{c_{0}^{2}}\right)-\int_{0}^{1-z}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}\ln\left(\frac{\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^{2}r_{xx'}^{2}R^{2}z_{g}^{2}}{c_{0}^{2}z^{2}}\right) \\ \times\left[e^{-i\frac{z_{g}}{z}}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}\frac{(1-z-z_{g})(z+z_{g})((1-z-z_{g})^{2}+(z+z_{g})^{2})(2z(z+z_{g})+z_{g}^{2})}{2z^{3}(1-z)(z^{2}+(1-z)^{2})}\right]\right\}, \tag{A.13}$$

for the term proportional to the LO SIDIS CGC color correlator Ξ_{LO} . Here, $c_0 = 2e^{-\gamma_E}$ with γ_E the Euler-Mascheroni constant. The term proportional to $\Xi_{\text{NLO},3}$ reads

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{T}}^{\star}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},3} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp} \ e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\left(\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}+\frac{1-z}{z}\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}\right)}\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y'}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y'}\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}} \\ \times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi^{2}}\int_{z-1}^{z}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}\frac{e^{i\frac{z_{g}}{z}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}}[2\mathfrak{Re}\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},3}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}',\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}')]\bar{Q}\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{V}3}K_{1}(\bar{Q}\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y'})K_{1}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{V}3}\boldsymbol{r}_{xy})}{\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}^{2}\left[(1-z)\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}^{2}+2(1-z)(z-z_{g})\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}-z_{g}(z-z_{g})\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}^{2}\right]} \\ \times \left\{ \left[z(z-z_{g})+(1-z)(1-z+z_{g})\right](z-z_{g})\left[\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}(2z(1-z+z_{g})-z_{g}(1+z_{g}))\right. \\ \left.+(1-z)(1+z_{g})\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}^{2}\right] + z_{g}(z_{g}+1-2z)^{2}(z-z_{g})\frac{(\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}\times\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y'})(\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}\times\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'})}{\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y'}}\right\} + \mathrm{c.c.}, \qquad (A.14)$$

where we recall that $\bar{Q}_{V3}^2 = (1 - z + z_g)(z - z_g)Q^2$. The NLO,1 term is given by

$$\begin{split} \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{T}}^{*}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\bigg|_{\mathrm{NLO},1} &= \\ \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}\frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi^{2}}Q\int_{0}^{1}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}} \\ &\times \left\{2\mathfrak{Re}[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},1}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}')]\times\left[2z^{2}(1-z)\bar{Q}\frac{K_{1}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y})}{r_{x'y}}\frac{K_{1}(QX_{V})}{X_{V}}\right. \\ &\times \left((z^{2}+(1-z)^{2})\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{z}+\frac{z_{g}^{2}}{2z^{2}}\right)\frac{\boldsymbol{R}_{\mathrm{SE1}}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}}{r_{zx}^{2}} \\ &-\frac{z_{g}(z-z_{g})}{2}\left[\frac{1}{1-z+z_{g}}+\frac{(1-z)(z-z_{g})}{z^{3}}\right]\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}}{r_{zx}^{2}}-\frac{z_{g}(z-z_{g})(1+z_{g}-2z)^{2}}{2z^{2}(1-z)} \\ &\times \frac{(\boldsymbol{R}_{\mathrm{V}}\times\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y})(\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}\times\boldsymbol{r}_{zy})}{r_{zx}^{2}r_{zy}^{2}}-\left[z(z-z_{g})+(1-z)(1-z+z_{g})\right]\left(1-\frac{z_{g}}{z}\right)\left(1+\frac{z_{g}}{1-z}\right) \end{split}$$

\overline{z}	$1 - z - z_g$
\bar{Q}^2	$z(1-z)Q^2$
$ar{Q}_{ m R2}^2$	$ar{z}(z+z_g)Q^2$
$ar{Q}_{\mathrm{V3}}^2$	$(1-z+z_g)(z-z_g)Q^2$
X_V^2	$(1-z)(z-z_g)r_{xy}^2 + z_g(z-z_g)r_{zx}^2 + (1-z)z_gr_{zy}^2$
X_R^2	$zar{z}oldsymbol{r}_{xy}^2+zz_goldsymbol{r}_{zx}^2+ar{z}z_goldsymbol{r}_{zy}^2$
$X_R^{\prime 2}$	$zar{z}oldsymbol{r}_{x'y}^2+zz_goldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^2+ar{z}z_goldsymbol{r}_{zy}^2$
$R_{ m SE1}$	$oldsymbol{r}_{xy}+rac{z_g}{z}oldsymbol{r}_{zx}$
$R_{ m V}$	$oldsymbol{r}_{xy}+rac{z_g}{1-z+z_g}oldsymbol{r}_{zy}$
$R_{ m R}$	$oldsymbol{r}_{xy}+rac{z_g}{z+z_g}oldsymbol{r}_{zx}$
$\overline{m{R}}_{ m R}$	$-oldsymbol{r}_{xy}+rac{z_g}{1-z}oldsymbol{r}_{zy}$

Table 4. Summary of our notations for the NLO impact factor of the SIDIS jet cross-section for transversely polarized virtual photons.

$$\times \left(1 - \frac{z_g}{2z} - \frac{z_g}{2(1-z+z_g)}\right) \frac{(\mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{V}} \cdot \mathbf{r}_{x'y})(\mathbf{r}_{zx} \cdot \mathbf{r}_{zy})}{\mathbf{r}_{zx}^2 \mathbf{r}_{zy}^2}\right) e^{-i\frac{z_g}{z} \mathbf{k}_{\perp} \cdot \mathbf{r}_{zx}} \Theta(z-z_g)$$

$$+ \bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}} \frac{K_1(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}} r_{x'y})}{r_{x'y}} \frac{K_1(QX_R)}{X_R} \left(-\bar{z}(\bar{z}^2 + (1-\bar{z})^2)(z^2 + (z+z_g)^2) \frac{(\mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}} \cdot \mathbf{r}_{x'y})(\mathbf{r}_{zx} \cdot \mathbf{r}_{zx'})}{\mathbf{r}_{zx}^2 \mathbf{r}_{zx'}^2} \right)$$

$$+ z(z(1-z) + \bar{z}(1-\bar{z}))(z(1-\bar{z}) + \bar{z}(1-z)) \frac{(\mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}} \cdot \mathbf{r}_{x'y})(\mathbf{r}_{zy} \cdot \mathbf{r}_{zx'})}{\mathbf{r}_{zx}^2 \mathbf{r}_{zx'}^2}$$

$$+ z_g \bar{z}(2z+z_g)(1-2\bar{z}) \frac{(\mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}} \times \mathbf{r}_{x'y})(\mathbf{r}_{zx} \times \mathbf{r}_{zx'})}{\mathbf{r}_{zx}^2 \mathbf{r}_{zx'}^2}$$

$$+ z_{zg}(\bar{z}-z)^2 \frac{(\mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}} \times \mathbf{r}_{x'y})(\mathbf{r}_{zy} \times \mathbf{r}_{zx'})}{\mathbf{r}_{zx'}^2 \mathbf{r}_{zx'}^2}$$

$$+ \frac{zz_g \bar{z}(z(1-z)\bar{z} + (z+z_g)^3)}{(z+z_g)(1-z)} \frac{\mathbf{r}_{x'} \cdot \mathbf{r}_{x'y}}{\mathbf{r}_{zx'}^2} e^{-i\frac{z_g}{z}} \mathbf{k}_{\perp} \cdot \mathbf{r}_{zx'}} \Theta(1-z-z_g)$$

$$- \Theta(z-z_g) 2z^2(1-z)(z^2 + (1-z)^2) \left(1 - \frac{z_g}{z} + \frac{z_g^2}{2z^2}\right) QK_1(\bar{Q}r_{xy})K_1(\bar{Q}r_{x'y})$$

$$\times \frac{\mathbf{r}_{xy} \cdot \mathbf{r}_{x'y}}{\mathbf{r}_{xy'}r_{x'y}} \frac{e^{-\frac{\mathbf{r}_{xx}^2}{\mathbf{r}_{xx}^2}}}{\mathbf{r}_{zx}^2} 2 \Re[C_F \Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\mathbf{x}_{\perp}, \mathbf{y}_{\perp}, \mathbf{x}'_{\perp})] \right\}_{z_f} + c.c. ,$$

$$(A.15)$$

where the shorthand variables in this expression are summarized in table 4.

The NLO contribution proportional to $\Xi_{\rm NLO,4}$ is given by

$$\begin{aligned} & \left. \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{T}}^{\star}+A \to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta} \right|_{\mathrm{NLO},4} = \\ & \left. \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}} \int \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{'}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}Q^{2} \int_{0}^{1-z} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}} \right. \\ & \left. \times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{2\pi^{2}} \frac{K_{1}(QX_{R})K_{1}(QX_{R}')}{X_{R}X_{R}'} \right\{ \left[z\bar{z}^{2}(z^{2}+(1-\bar{z})^{2})\left(\bar{z}^{2}+(1-\bar{z})^{2}\right)\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{zx'}^{2}}\boldsymbol{R}_{\mathrm{R}}\cdot\boldsymbol{R}_{\mathrm{R}}' \right] \end{aligned}$$

$$+ z\bar{z}^{2}z_{g}(1+z-\bar{z})(1-2\bar{z})\frac{\mathbf{r}_{zx}\times\mathbf{r}_{zx'}}{\mathbf{r}_{zx}^{2}\mathbf{r}_{zx'}^{2}}\mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}}\times\mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}}' - \frac{z^{3}\bar{z}^{3}z_{g}}{z+z_{g}}\left[\frac{\mathbf{r}_{zx}\cdot\mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}}}{\mathbf{r}_{zx}^{2}} + \frac{\mathbf{r}_{zx'}\cdot\mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}}'}{\mathbf{r}_{zx'}^{2}}\right] + \frac{z^{3}\bar{z}^{2}z_{g}^{2}}{(z+z_{g})^{2}} + \frac{\bar{z}^{2}z^{3}z_{g}^{2}}{(1-z)^{2}} + z^{3}(\bar{z}^{2}+(1-z)^{2})\left(z^{2}+(1-z)^{2}\right)\frac{\mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}}\cdot\mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}}'}{\mathbf{r}_{zy}^{2}} - \frac{\bar{z}^{2}z^{4}z_{g}}{1-z}\frac{\mathbf{r}_{zy}\cdot(\mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}}+\mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}}')}{\mathbf{r}_{zy}^{2}} + 2z^{2}\bar{z}(z(1-z)+\bar{z}(1-\bar{z}))(z(1-\bar{z})+\bar{z}(1-z))\frac{\mathbf{r}_{zx}\cdot\mathbf{r}_{zy}}{\mathbf{r}_{zx}^{2}\mathbf{r}_{zy}^{2}}\mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}}\cdot\mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}}' - 2z^{2}\bar{z}z_{g}(z-\bar{z})^{2}\frac{\mathbf{r}_{zx}\times\mathbf{r}_{zy}}{\mathbf{r}_{zx}^{2}\mathbf{r}_{zy}^{2}}\mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}}\times\mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}}' - 2z^{2}\bar{z}z_{g}\left(\frac{z(1-z)^{2}}{1-\bar{z}}\frac{\mathbf{r}_{zy}\cdot\mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}}'}{\mathbf{r}_{zy}^{2}} + \frac{\bar{z}(1-\bar{z})^{2}}{1-z}\frac{\mathbf{r}_{zx}\cdot\mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}}}{\mathbf{r}_{zx}^{2}}\right) \\ 2\mathfrak{Re}\left[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},4}(\mathbf{x}_{\perp},\mathbf{y}_{\perp},\mathbf{z}_{\perp},\mathbf{x}_{\perp}')\right] - z^{3}(\bar{z}^{2}+(1-z)^{2})\left(z^{2}+(1-z)^{2}\right)\right)\frac{\mathbf{r}_{xy}\cdot\mathbf{r}_{x'y}}{\mathbf{r}_{zy}^{2}}e^{-\frac{\mathbf{r}_{zy}^{2}}{\mathbf{r}_{xx'}^{2}e^{\overline{v}E}}}\frac{K_{1}(\bar{Q}r_{xy})K_{1}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y})X_{R}X_{R}'}{K_{1}(QX_{R})K_{1}(QX_{R}')r_{xy}r_{x'y}} \times 2C_{F}\mathfrak{Re}\left[\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\mathbf{x}_{\perp},\mathbf{y}_{\perp},\mathbf{x}_{\perp}')\right]\right\}_{z_{f}} + c.c.,$$

$$(A.16)$$

with $\mathbf{R}'_{\mathrm{R}} = \mathbf{r}_{x'y} + \frac{z_g}{z+z_g}\mathbf{r}_{zx'}$, $\overline{\mathbf{R}}'_{\mathrm{R}} = -\mathbf{r}_{x'y} + \frac{z_g}{1-z}\mathbf{r}_{zy}$ and $X'^2_R = z\bar{z}\mathbf{r}^2_{x'y} + zz_g\mathbf{r}^2_{zx'} + \bar{z}z_g\mathbf{r}^2_{zy}$. Following the decomposition in eq. (3.69), the gluon-tagged jet contributions are also

Following the decomposition in eq. (3.69), the gluon-tagged jet contributions are also reported here:

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{T}}^{*}+A\to j_{g}+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},0} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{'}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}2\mathfrak{Re}\left[\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}')\right] \\ \times \frac{(-\alpha_{s})C_{F}}{\pi}\int_{0}^{1-z}\frac{\mathrm{d}z_{1}}{z^{2}}e^{-i\frac{z_{1}}{z}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}\left[(1-z_{1}-z)^{2}+(z_{1}+z)^{2}\right]\left(2z_{1}(z_{1}+z)+z_{g}^{2}\right) \\ \times \bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}^{2}\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}}{r_{xy}r_{x'y}}K_{1}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{xy})K_{1}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{x'y})\ln\left(\frac{\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}^{2}R^{2}z_{1}^{2}}{c_{0}^{2}z^{2}}\right), \qquad (A.17)$$

$$\begin{aligned} \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{T}}^* + A \to j_g + X}}{\mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{k}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}\eta} \bigg|_{\mathrm{NLO},3} &= \\ \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}} e_f^2 N_c}{(2\pi)^4} \int \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{x}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{x}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp} e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{xy}} \\ &\times \frac{\alpha_s}{\pi^2} \int_0^{1-z} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_1}{z^2} \left[(2z_1(1 - z_1 - z) + z(1 - z))(1 - z - 2z_1(1 - z_1 - z)) \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{xy} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{x'y'}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{xy'} \boldsymbol{r}_{x'y'}} \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}^2 \boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}^2} \right] \\ &- z(1 - 2z_1 - z)^2 \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{xy} \times \boldsymbol{r}_{x'y'}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{xy'} \boldsymbol{r}_{x'y'}} \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'} \times \boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}^2 \boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}^2} \right] 2 \Re \mathfrak{e} \left[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},3}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}', \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}') \right] \\ &\times e^{-i \frac{\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}}{z} \cdot (z_1 \boldsymbol{r}_{xx'} + (1 - z_1) \boldsymbol{r}_{yy'})} \bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}} \bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}'} K_1(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}} \boldsymbol{r}_{xy}) K_1(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}'} \boldsymbol{r}_{x'y'}) , \end{aligned}$$
(A.18)

where for these terms, $\bar{Q}_{R2}^2 = (1 - z - z_1)(z_1 + z)Q^2$ and $\bar{Q}_{R2'}^2 = z_1(1 - z_1)Q^2$ in the integrals over z_1 . For the two remaining terms, we have

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma \gamma_{1}^{*} + A \to j_{g} + X}{\mathrm{d}^{2} \boldsymbol{k}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}\eta} \bigg|_{\mathrm{NLO},1} = -\frac{\alpha_{em} e_{f}^{2} N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}} \int \mathrm{d}^{2} \boldsymbol{x}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}^{2} \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}^{2} \boldsymbol{z}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}^{2} \boldsymbol{z}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}^{2} \boldsymbol{z}_{\perp} e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{zz'}} 2\mathrm{Re} \left[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},1}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}; \boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}')\right] \\
\times \frac{2\alpha_{s}}{\pi^{2}} \int_{0}^{1-z} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_{1}}{z} e^{i\frac{z_{1}}{z} \boldsymbol{k}_{\perp} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{z'x}} \frac{QK_{1}(QX_{\mathrm{R}})}{X_{\mathrm{R}}} \frac{\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}K_{1}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}} \boldsymbol{r}_{z'y})}{r_{z'y}} z_{1}^{2}(1-z_{1}-z) \\
\times \left\{ \left[\left((1-z_{1}-z)^{2} + (z_{1}+z)^{2} \right) \left(1 + \frac{z}{z_{1}} + \frac{z^{2}}{2z_{1}^{2}} \right) \frac{(\boldsymbol{r}_{zx} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{z'x})}{r_{zx}^{2} r_{z'x}^{2}} (\boldsymbol{R}_{\mathrm{R}} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{z'y}) \right. \\
\left. + \left(z_{1}(z_{1}+z) + (1-z_{1}-z)(1-z_{1}) \right) \left(1 + \frac{z}{2z_{1}} + \frac{z}{2(1-z_{1}-z)} \right) \frac{(\boldsymbol{r}_{zy} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{z'x})}{r_{zy}^{2} r_{z'x}^{2}} (\boldsymbol{R}_{\mathrm{R}} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{z'y}) \right] \\
\left. + \frac{z}{2z_{1}} \left[\frac{(2z_{1}+2z-1)(2z_{1}+z)}{z_{1}} \frac{(\boldsymbol{r}_{zx} \times \boldsymbol{r}_{z'x})}{r_{zx}^{2} r_{z'x}^{2}} (\boldsymbol{R}_{\mathrm{R}} \times \boldsymbol{r}_{z'y}) - \frac{(2z_{1}+z-1)^{2}}{(1-z_{1}-z)} \frac{(\boldsymbol{r}_{zy} \times \boldsymbol{r}_{z'x})}{r_{z'y}^{2} r_{z'x}^{2}} (\boldsymbol{R}_{\mathrm{R}} \times \boldsymbol{r}_{z'y}) \right] \\
\left. - \frac{z}{2z_{1}} \left[\frac{z_{1}(1-z_{1}-z)}{(z_{1}+z)} + \frac{(z_{1}+z)^{2}}{(1-z_{1})} \right] \frac{(\boldsymbol{r}_{z'x} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{z'y})}{r_{z'x}^{2}} \right\}$$
(A.19)

and

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma\gamma_{1}^{*}+A\to j_{g}+X}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{NLO},4g} = \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}}\int\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{z}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{z}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{y}_{\perp}e^{-i\mathbf{k}_{\perp}\cdot\mathbf{r}_{zz'}}2\mathfrak{Re}[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},4g}(\mathbf{x}_{\perp},\mathbf{y}_{\perp},\mathbf{z}_{\perp},\mathbf{z}_{\perp}')] \\ \times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi^{2}}\int_{0}^{1-z}\mathrm{d}z_{1}\frac{Q^{2}K_{1}(QX_{R})K_{1}(QX_{R}')}{X_{R}X_{R}'}\left\{(1-z_{1}-z)^{2}\left[z_{1}^{2}+(z_{1}+z)^{2}\right]\right. \\ \times (1-2(1-z_{1}-z)(z_{1}+z))\frac{\mathbf{r}_{zx}\cdot\mathbf{r}_{z'x}}{\mathbf{r}_{z'x}^{2}}\mathbf{R}_{R}\cdot\mathbf{R}'_{R}+z(1-z_{1}-z)^{2}(2z_{1}+z) \\ \times (1-2(1-z_{1}-z))\frac{\mathbf{r}_{zx}\times\mathbf{r}_{z'x}}{\mathbf{r}_{z'x}^{2}}\mathbf{R}_{R}\times\mathbf{R}'_{R}-\frac{z_{1}^{2}(1-z_{1}-z)^{3}z}{z_{1}+z}\left[\frac{\mathbf{r}_{zx}\cdot\mathbf{R}_{R}}{\mathbf{r}_{zx}^{2}}+\frac{\mathbf{r}_{z'x}\cdot\mathbf{R}'_{R}}{\mathbf{r}_{z'x}^{2}}\right] \\ +\frac{z_{1}^{2}(1-z_{1}-z)^{2}z^{2}}{(z_{1}+z)^{2}}+z_{1}(1-z_{1}-z)(z_{1}(1-z_{1})+(1-z_{1}-z)(z_{1}+z)) \\ \times (1-z-2z_{1}(1-z_{1}-z))\frac{\mathbf{r}_{zx}\cdot\mathbf{r}_{z'y}}{\mathbf{r}_{zx}^{2}}\mathbf{R}_{R}\cdot\mathbf{R}'_{R}-zz_{1}(1-z_{1}-z)(1-2z_{1}-z)^{2}\frac{\mathbf{r}_{zx}\times\mathbf{r}_{z'y}}{\mathbf{r}_{zx}^{2}}\mathbf{R}_{R}\times\mathbf{R}'_{R} \\ -zz_{1}(1-z_{1}-z)\left[\frac{z_{1}(1-z_{1})^{2}}{z_{1}+z}\frac{\mathbf{r}_{z'y}}{\mathbf{r}_{z'y}^{2}}+\frac{(1-z_{1}-z)(z_{1}+z)^{2}}{1-z_{1}}\frac{\mathbf{r}_{zx}\cdot\mathbf{R}_{R}}{\mathbf{r}_{zx}^{2}}\right]\right\}.$$
(A.20)

Implicit in our notations, the transverse sizes X_R , X'_R are evaluated with z_g set to z, since z_g is the longitudinal momentum fraction of the tagged jet. Likewise, the vectors \mathbf{R}'_R and $\overline{\mathbf{R}}'_R$ should be replaced by their expressions provided in table 4 with the prime index on the \mathbf{z}_{\perp} transverse coordinate only.

A.3 NLO impact factor for the single differential cross-section

Finally, we quote in this subsection the formulae for the k_{\perp} -integrated semi-inclusive single-jet cross-section. We again rely on the results established in section 5 for a longitudinally polarized virtual photon, and in particular on the decomposition in eq. (5.12) of the NLO cross-section.

$$\begin{split} \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{T}}^{*}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}\eta} \bigg|_{\mathrm{NLO-a}} &= \\ \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{2}} \int \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{b}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{xy} 2z(z^{2}+(1-z)^{2})\bar{Q}^{2}K_{1}^{2}(\bar{Q}r_{xy})4\mathfrak{Re}\langle 1-D_{xy}\rangle_{Y_{f}} \\ &\times \frac{\alpha_{s}C_{F}}{\pi} \left\{ -\frac{1}{2}\ln^{2}\left(\frac{z}{1-z}\right) + \ln\left(\frac{z}{1-z}\right)\ln\left(R^{2}\right) - \frac{3}{2}\ln\left(2R\right) + 7 - \frac{2\pi^{2}}{3} \\ &- \int_{0}^{1-z} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}\ln\left(\frac{R^{2}z_{g}^{2}}{z^{2}}\right) \left[\frac{(1-z-z_{g})((1-z-z_{g})^{2}+(z+z_{g})^{2})(2z(z+z_{g})+z_{g}^{2})}{2z(1-z)(z+z_{g})(z^{2}+(1-z)^{2})} \frac{K_{1}^{2}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{xy})}{K_{1}^{2}(\bar{Q}r_{xy})} - 1 \right] \\ &+ 2\int_{0}^{1-z} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}}\ln\left(1 + \frac{z_{g}}{z}\right) \frac{(1-z-z_{g})((1-z-z_{g})^{2}+(z+z_{g})^{2})(2z(z+z_{g})+z_{g}^{2})}{2z(1-z)(z+z_{g})(z^{2}+(1-z)^{2})} \frac{K_{1}^{2}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{xy})}{K_{1}^{2}(\bar{Q}r_{xy})} \right\} \\ &- \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{2}} \left[2z(z^{2}+(1-z)^{2})\bar{Q}^{2} \right] \times \frac{\alpha_{s}C_{F}}{\pi^{2}}\ln\left(\frac{z}{1-z}\right) \\ &\times \int \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{b}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}\mathcal{P}_{r_{xy}}\left(\frac{1}{r_{xx'}^{2}}\right) \left[K_{1}(\bar{Q}r_{xy})K_{1}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y})\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{x'y}}{r_{xy}r_{x'y}} 2\mathfrak{Re}\langle D_{xx'}-D_{xy}-D_{yx'}+1\rangle_{Y_{f}} \right]. \end{aligned} \tag{A.21}$$

$$\begin{aligned} \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{T}}^{*}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}\eta} \bigg|_{\mathrm{NLO-b}} &= \\ \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{2}} \int \frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{b}_{\perp}}{(2\pi)} \mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{r}_{xx'} \frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\mathbf{r}_{yy'}}{\mathbf{r}_{yy'}^{2}} \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi} \int_{z-1}^{z} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}} \left(z-z_{g}\right) 2z^{2}\bar{Q}\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{V3}} \\ \times \frac{K_{1}(\bar{Q}|(z-z_{g})\mathbf{r}_{xx'}+(1-z+z_{g})\mathbf{r}_{yy'}|)}{|(z-z_{g})\mathbf{r}_{xx'}+(1-z+z_{g})\mathbf{r}_{yy'}|} \frac{K_{1}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{V3}}|z\mathbf{r}_{xx'}+(1-z)\mathbf{r}_{yy'}|)}{|z\mathbf{r}_{xx'}+(1-z)\mathbf{r}_{yy'}|} \\ \times \left\{ \left[z(z-z_{g})+(1-z)(1-z+z_{g})\right](z\mathbf{r}_{xx'}+(1-z)\mathbf{r}_{yy'})\cdot((z-z_{g})\mathbf{r}_{xx'}+(1-z+z_{g})\mathbf{r}_{yy'}) \\ \times \left[1+\frac{((1-z)\mathbf{r}_{yy'}+(z-z_{g})\mathbf{r}_{xx'})\cdot(z\mathbf{r}_{xx'}+(1-z+z_{g})\mathbf{r}_{yy'}}{(1-z)(1-z+z_{g})\mathbf{r}_{yy'}^{2}-z(z-z_{g})\mathbf{r}_{xx'}^{2}}\right] \\ + \frac{z_{g}^{2}(z_{g}+1-2z)^{2}(\mathbf{r}_{xx'}\times\mathbf{r}_{yy'})^{2}}{\left[(1-z)(1-z+z_{g})\mathbf{r}_{yy'}^{2}-z(z-z_{g})\mathbf{r}_{xx'}^{2}\right]} \right\} 4\mathfrak{Re}[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},3}(\mathbf{x}_{\perp},\mathbf{y}_{\perp},\mathbf{x}'_{\perp},\mathbf{y}'_{\perp})]. \tag{A.22}$$

This expression may be further simplified using

$$(\mathbf{r}_{xx'} \times \mathbf{r}_{yy'})^2 = \mathbf{r}_{xx'}^2 \mathbf{r}_{yy'}^2 - (\mathbf{r}_{xx'} \cdot \mathbf{r}_{yy'})^2.$$
(A.23)

In eq. (A.22), the transverse coordinates \boldsymbol{x}_{\perp} , \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp} , \boldsymbol{x}'_{\perp} and \boldsymbol{y}'_{\perp} in the NLO,3 CGC correlator depend on \boldsymbol{b}_{\perp} , $\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}$ and $\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}$ according to eqs. (5.18). The UV regular term is given by

$$\begin{aligned} \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma\gamma_{\perp}^{\star}+A\rightarrow j_{f}+X}{\mathrm{d}\eta} \bigg|_{\mathrm{UV-reg}} = \\ \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{2}} \int \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp} \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi^{2}}Q^{2} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}} \left\{ \frac{\Theta(1-z-z_{g})}{r_{zy}^{2}} \right. \\ \times \frac{z^{2}(\bar{z}^{2}+(1-z)^{2})(1-2z(1-z))}{1-z} \left[K_{1}^{2}(QX_{R}) \frac{z(1-z)\overline{R}_{R}^{2}}{X_{R}^{2}} 2\mathfrak{Re}\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},4}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}) \right. \\ \left. -K_{1}(\bar{Q}r_{xy})K_{1}\left(\bar{Q}|\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}-\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}|\right) \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}\cdot(\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}-\boldsymbol{r}_{zy})}{r_{xy}|\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}-\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}|} 2\mathfrak{Re}C_{F}\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}) \right] + \frac{\Theta(1-z-z_{g})}{r_{zx}^{2}} \\ \times \frac{z\bar{z}(z^{2}+(z+z_{g})^{2})(1-2\bar{z}(z+z_{g}))}{z+z_{g}} \left[K_{1}^{2}(QX_{R}) \frac{\bar{z}(1-\bar{z})R_{R}^{2}}{X_{R}^{2}} 2\mathfrak{Re}\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},4}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}) \right. \\ \left. -K_{1}(QX_{R})K_{1}\left(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}|\boldsymbol{R}_{\mathrm{R}}|\right) \frac{\sqrt{\bar{z}(1-\bar{z})}|\boldsymbol{R}_{\mathrm{R}}|}{X_{R}} 4\mathfrak{Re}\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},1}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{w}_{\perp},r) \\ \left. +K_{1}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}r_{xy})K_{1}\left(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}|\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}+\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}|\right) \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}\cdot(\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}+\boldsymbol{r}_{zx})}{r_{xy}|\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}+\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}|} 2\mathfrak{Re}C_{F}\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}) \right] \right\}_{z_{f}}. \tag{A.24}$$

Last,

$$\begin{split} & \left. \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{1}^{+}+\rightarrow j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}\eta} \right|_{\mathrm{NLO}-c} = \\ & \left. \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{2}} \int \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp} \frac{2\alpha_{s}}{\pi^{2}} 2 \Re \epsilon \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\mathrm{d}z_{g}}{z_{g}} \left\{ 2z^{2}(1-z)\Theta(z-z_{g}) \right. \\ & \left. \times \bar{Q}Q \frac{K_{1}(\bar{Q}|\mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{SE1}}|)}{|\mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{SE1}}|} \frac{K_{1}(QX_{V})}{X_{V}} \left(-\frac{z_{g}(z-z_{g})}{2} \left[\frac{1}{1-z+z_{g}} + \frac{(1-z)(z-z_{g})}{z^{3}} \right] \frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx} \cdot \mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{SE1}}}{r_{zx}^{2}} \right] \\ & \left. - \frac{z_{g}(z-z_{g})(1+z_{g}-2z)^{2}}{2z^{2}(1-z)} \frac{(\mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{V}} \times \mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{SE1}})(\mathbf{r}_{zx} \times \mathbf{r}_{zy})}{r_{zx}^{2}r_{zy}^{2}} - [z(z-z_{g}) + (1-z)(1-z+z_{g})] \right] \\ & \times \left(1 - \frac{z_{g}}{z} \right) \left(1 + \frac{z_{g}}{1-z} \right) \left(1 - \frac{z_{g}}{2z} - \frac{z_{g}}{2(1-z+z_{g})} \right) \frac{(\mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{V}} \cdot \mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{SE1}})(\mathbf{r}_{zx} \cdot \mathbf{r}_{zy})}{r_{zx}^{2}r_{zy}^{2}} \right) \\ & \times \Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},1}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{w}_{\perp,v}) + \Theta(1-z-z_{g})Q\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}} \frac{K_{1}(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{R2}}|\mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}}|)}{|\mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}}|} \frac{K_{1}(QX_{R})}{X_{R}} \\ & \times \left(z(z(1-z) + \bar{z}(1-\bar{z}))(z(1-\bar{z}) + \bar{z}(1-z)) \frac{(\overline{\mathbf{R}}_{\mathrm{R}} \cdot \mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}})(\mathbf{r}_{zy} \cdot (\mathbf{r}_{zy} - \mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}}))}{r_{zy}^{2}(\mathbf{r}_{zy} - \mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}})^{2}} \right) \\ & \times \Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},1}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{w}_{\perp,r}) + \Theta(1-z-z_{g})Q^{2} \frac{K_{1}^{2}(2(X_{R})}{X_{R}^{2}} \left(-\frac{z^{3}\bar{z}^{3}z_{g}}{r_{zy}} \frac{\mathbf{r}_{zx} \cdot \mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}}}{r_{zy}^{2}} + \frac{z^{3}\bar{z}^{2}z_{g}^{2}}{2((z+z_{g})^{2})} \right) \\ & \times \Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},1}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{w}_{\perp,r}) + \Theta(1-z-z_{g})Q^{2} \frac{K_{1}^{2}(QX_{R})}{X_{R}^{2}} \left(-\frac{z^{3}\bar{z}^{3}z_{g}}{r_{zy}} \frac{\mathbf{r}_{zx} \cdot \mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}}}{r_{zx}^{2}} + \frac{z^{3}\bar{z}^{2}z_{g}^{2}}{2((z+z_{g})^{2}} \right) \\ & \times \Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},1}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{w}_{\perp,r}) + \Theta(1-z-z_{g})Q^{2} \frac{K_{1}^{2}(QX_{R})}{X_{R}^{2}} \left(-\frac{z^{3}\bar{z}^{3}z_{g}}{r_{zz}} \frac{\mathbf{r}_{zy} \cdot \mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}}}{r_{zx}^{2}} + \frac{z^{3}\bar{z}^{2}z_{g}^{2}}{2((z+z_{g})^{2})} \right) \\ & \times \Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},1}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{z}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{w}_{\perp,r}) + \Theta(1-z-z_{g})Q^{2} \frac{K_{1}^{2}(QX_{R})}{X_{R}^{2}} \left(-\frac{z^{3}\bar{z}^{3}z_{g}}{r_{zz}} \frac{\mathbf{r}_{zz} \cdot \mathbf{R}_{\mathrm{R}}}{r_{zz}^{2}} + \frac{z^{3}\bar{z}^{2}z_{$$

$$-z^{2}\bar{z}z_{g}(z-\bar{z})^{2}\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}\times\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}r_{zy}^{2}}\boldsymbol{R}_{\mathrm{R}}\times\overline{\boldsymbol{R}}_{\mathrm{R}}-z^{2}\bar{z}z_{g}\left(\frac{z(1-z)^{2}}{1-\bar{z}}\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}\cdot\overline{\boldsymbol{R}}_{\mathrm{R}}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zy}^{2}}+\frac{\bar{z}(1-\bar{z})^{2}}{1-z}\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}\cdot\boldsymbol{R}_{\mathrm{R}}}{1-z}\right)\right)$$

$$\times\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},4}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp})+\frac{\Theta(z-z_{g})}{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}}(1-z)(z^{2}+(1-z)^{2})\left(2z(z-z_{g})+z_{g}^{2}\right)$$

$$\times\left[K_{1}\left(\bar{Q}\left|\boldsymbol{R}_{\mathrm{SE1}}\right|\right)K_{1}(QX_{V})\frac{\sqrt{z(1-z)}|\boldsymbol{R}_{\mathrm{SE1}}|}{X_{V}}4\mathfrak{Re}\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},1}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{z}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{w}_{\perp,v})\right]$$

$$-e^{-\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{zx}^{2}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{xy}^{2}e^{\gamma_{E}}}}K_{0}^{2}(\bar{Q}r_{xy})4\mathfrak{Re}C_{F}\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp})\right]}\left]\Big\}_{z_{f}}.$$
(A.25)

B Calculation of the k_{\perp} -dependent single threshold logarithm

In this appendix, we explicitly compute the contribution to the NLO semi-inclusive singlejet production cross-section enhanced by a single logarithm of 1 - z, where z denotes the longitudinal momentum fraction of the jet relative to that of the virtual photon. We detail the calculation for a longitudinally polarized photon but the rationale is identical in the transversely polarized case. Our starting point is eq. (4.8) and more precisely the term proportional to $\ln(\mathbf{k}_{\perp}^2 r_{xy} r_{x'y}/c_0^2)$, which we label here as "sl":

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\bigg|_{\mathrm{sl}} \equiv \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{4}} \int \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}^{\prime}\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}}2\mathfrak{Re}\left[\Xi_{\mathrm{LO}}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}')\right] \\
\times 8z^{3}(1-z)^{2}Q^{2}K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{xy})K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{x'y})\frac{\alpha_{s}C_{F}}{\pi}\ln\left(\frac{\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^{2}r_{xy}r_{x'y}}{c_{0}^{2}}\right)\ln\left(\frac{1}{1-z}\right),$$
(B.1)

and we aim to demonstrate that this term is truly single logarithmic in 1-z (it does not contain "hidden" double log in 1-z). This is a priori not obvious as one could argue that the K_0 Bessel functions parametrically enforce $r_{xy} \sim r_{x'y} \sim 1/\bar{Q}$ so that the apparent single log coefficient could behave like $\ln(\mathbf{k}_{\perp}^2/\bar{Q}^2)$. Since $\bar{Q}^2 \sim (1-z)Q^2$ for z close to 1, one sees that this naive estimation would make the contribution given by eq. (B.1) double logarithmic in 1-z.

To do so, we reduce the number of transverse coordinate integrals following appendix A of [67]. Assuming translational invariance in transverse space, and after the change of variables $\mathbf{r}_{\perp} = \mathbf{r}_{xy}, \mathbf{r}'_{\perp} = \mathbf{r}_{x'y}, \mathbf{b}_{\perp} = z\mathbf{x}_{\perp} + (1-z)\mathbf{y}_{\perp}$, we first rewrite the LO semi-inclusive single-jet cross-section as

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{LO}} = \alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}16z(1-z)\mathfrak{Re}\int\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{b}_{\perp}}{(2\pi)^{2}}\int\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}}{(2\pi)}\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}}{(2\pi)}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot(\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}-\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}')} \\ \times \bar{Q}^{2}K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{\perp})K_{0}(\bar{Q}r')\left[T_{Y_{f}}(\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp})+T_{Y_{f}}(-\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}')-T_{Y_{f}}(\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}-\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}')\right], (B.2)$$

with $T_{Y_f}(\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}) = 1 - \frac{1}{N_c} \langle \text{Tr}[V(\boldsymbol{0}_{\perp})V^{\dagger}(\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp})] \rangle_{Y_f}$. As shown in [67], this expression can be further simplified into

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star+A\to j_f+X}}{\mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{k}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}\eta} \bigg|_{\mathrm{LO}} = \alpha_{\mathrm{em}} e_f^2 N_c 16z(1-z) \Re \mathfrak{e} \int \frac{\mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{b}_{\perp}}{(2\pi)^2} \int \frac{\mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}}{(2\pi)} e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}} T_{Y_f}(\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}) \\ \times \left[\frac{2\bar{Q}^2}{\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^2 + \bar{Q}^2} K_0(\bar{Q}r_{\perp}) - \frac{\bar{Q}r_{\perp}}{2} K_1(\bar{Q}r_{\perp}) \right]. \tag{B.3}$$

We wish to repeat this calculation with the additional $\ln(\mathbf{k}_{\perp}^2 r_{xy} r_{x'y}/c_0^2)$ present in eq. (B.1). The terms depending on $T(\mathbf{r}_{\perp})$ and $T(-\mathbf{r}'_{\perp}) = T(\mathbf{r}'_{\perp})^*$ contribute equally and can be computed as follows. Considering the $T(\mathbf{r}_{\perp})$ term alone, one needs the integral

$$\int \frac{\mathrm{d}^2 \mathbf{r}'_{\perp}}{(2\pi)} e^{i\mathbf{k}_{\perp} \cdot \mathbf{r}'_{\perp}} K_0(\bar{Q}r'_{\perp}) \ln\left(\frac{k_{\perp}r'}{c_0}\right) = \frac{1}{\mathbf{k}_{\perp}^2 + \bar{Q}^2} \ln\left(\frac{k_{\perp}\bar{Q}}{\mathbf{k}_{\perp}^2 + \bar{Q}^2}\right), \tag{B.4}$$

which has been derived in appendix (A1) of [50]. Therefore, the $T(\mathbf{r}_{\perp}) + T(-\mathbf{r}'_{\perp})$ terms give

$$\alpha_{\rm em} e_f^2 N_c 16z(1-z) \mathfrak{Re} \frac{\alpha_s C_F}{\pi} \int \frac{\mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{b}_\perp}{(2\pi)^2} \int \frac{\mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{r}_\perp}{(2\pi)} e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_\perp \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_\perp} T_{Y_f}(\boldsymbol{r}_\perp) \\ \times \frac{2\bar{Q}^2}{\boldsymbol{k}_\perp^2 + \bar{Q}^2} K_0(\bar{Q}r_\perp) \ln\left(\frac{\boldsymbol{k}_\perp^2 \bar{Q}r_\perp}{c_0(\boldsymbol{k}_\perp^2 + \bar{Q}^2)}\right). \tag{B.5}$$

The term proportional to $T(\mathbf{r}_{\perp} - \mathbf{r}'_{\perp})$ is more complicated, but can be computed in a similar fashion:

$$\int \frac{\mathrm{d}^{2} \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}}{(2\pi)} \frac{\mathrm{d}^{2} \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}'}{(2\pi)} e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp} \cdot (\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp} - \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}')} T_{Y_{f}}(\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp} - \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}') \bar{Q}^{2} K_{0}(\bar{Q}\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}) K_{0}(\bar{Q}\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}') \ln\left(\frac{\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^{2} \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp} \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}'}{c_{0}^{2}}\right) = \int \frac{\mathrm{d}^{2} \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}}{(2\pi)} e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}} T_{Y_{f}}(\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}) \int \frac{\mathrm{d}^{2} \boldsymbol{l}_{\perp}}{(2\pi)} \frac{e^{-i\boldsymbol{l}_{\perp} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}}}{[\boldsymbol{l}_{\perp}^{2} + \bar{Q}^{2}]^{2}} \ln\left(\frac{\boldsymbol{l}_{\perp}^{2} \bar{Q}^{2}}{[\boldsymbol{l}_{\perp}^{2} + \bar{Q}^{2}]^{2}}\right).$$
(B.6)

We now define the following function

$$\kappa_L(x) \equiv \frac{2}{xK_1(x)} \int_0^\infty \mathrm{d}\ell \, \frac{\ell J_0(\ell x)}{(\ell^2 + 1)^2} \ln\left(\frac{\ell^2}{(\ell^2 + 1)^2}\right) \,, \tag{B.7}$$

where $x = \bar{Q}r_{\perp}$ in terms of physical variables. Without the logarithm inside the integral over ℓ , one would simply get $\kappa_L(x) = 1$. When x goes to 0 (meaning $\bar{Q}r_{\perp} \sim \sqrt{1-z}Qr_{\perp} \to 0$ when $z \to 1$), the function $\kappa_L(x)$ has a finite limit

$$\lim_{x \to 0} \kappa_L(x) = -2. \tag{B.8}$$

This function helps us to write our final exact expression for eq. (B.1) as

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\perp}^{\star}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\bigg|_{\mathrm{sl}} = \alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}16z(1-z)\mathfrak{Re}\ln\left(\frac{1}{1-z}\right)\int\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{b}_{\perp}}{(2\pi)^{2}}\int\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}}{(2\pi)}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}}T_{Y_{f}}(\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}) \\ \times \frac{\alpha_{s}C_{F}}{\pi}\left[\frac{2\bar{Q}^{2}}{\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^{2}+\bar{Q}^{2}}K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{\perp})\ln\left(\frac{\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^{2}\bar{Q}r_{\perp}}{c_{0}(\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^{2}+\bar{Q}^{2})}\right) - \frac{\bar{Q}r_{\perp}}{2}K_{1}(\bar{Q}r_{\perp})\kappa_{L}\left(\bar{Q}r_{\perp}\right)\right]. \tag{B.9}$$

Comparing eq. (B.3) with eq. (B.9), it is clear that the integral over r_{\perp} does not yield an additional $\ln(1-z)$ dependence when $z \to 1$ so that the single log contribution eq. (B.1) is indeed single logarithmic in the threshold limit. In fact, thanks to eq. (B.8), one has

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to j_f+X}}{\mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{k}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}\eta} \bigg|_{\mathrm{sl}} \sum_{z\to 1}^{\infty} \frac{(-2)\alpha_s C_F}{\pi} \ln\left(\frac{1}{1-z}\right) \left.\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to j_f+X}}{\mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{k}_{\perp} \mathrm{d}\eta}\right|_{\mathrm{LO}},\tag{B.10}$$

which implies that the \mathbf{k}_{\perp} -dependent single log coefficient can effectively by replaced by $-2\alpha_s C_F/\pi$ up to power suppressed terms as z goes to 1.

Likewise, the LO SIDIS cross-section for transversely polarized virtual photons can be expressed in terms of $T_{Y_f}(\mathbf{r}_{\perp})$ as

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{T}}^{\star}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\Big|_{\mathrm{LO}} = \alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}4z(z^{2}+(1-z)^{2})\mathfrak{Re}\int\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{b}_{\perp}}{(2\pi)^{2}}\int\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}}{(2\pi)}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}}T_{Y_{f}}(\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}) \\ \times \left[\frac{i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}}{\bar{Q}r_{\perp}}\frac{2\bar{Q}^{2}}{\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^{2}+\bar{Q}^{2}}K_{1}(\bar{Q}r_{\perp})-K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{\perp})+\frac{\bar{Q}r_{\perp}}{2}K_{1}(\bar{Q}r_{\perp})\right], \quad (B.11)$$

while the k_{\perp} -dependent single log coefficient reads

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{T}}^{\star}+A\to j_{f}+X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\mathrm{d}\eta}\bigg|_{\mathrm{sl}} = \\
\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}4z(z^{2}+(1-z)^{2})\mathfrak{Re}\frac{\alpha_{s}C_{F}}{\pi}\ln\left(\frac{1}{1-z}\right)\int\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{b}_{\perp}}{(2\pi)^{2}} \\
\times\int\frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}}{(2\pi)}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}}T_{Y_{f}}(\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp})\left[\frac{i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}}{\bar{Q}r_{\perp}}\frac{2\bar{Q}^{2}}{\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^{2}+\bar{Q}^{2}}K_{1}(\bar{Q}r_{\perp})\left(\ln\left(\frac{k_{\perp}r_{\perp}}{c_{0}}\right)-\frac{1}{2}\ln\left(\frac{\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^{2}+\bar{Q}^{2}}{\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^{2}}\right)\right) \\
+\frac{1}{2}\frac{\bar{Q}^{2}}{\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^{2}}\ln\left(1+\frac{\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^{2}}{\bar{Q}^{2}}\right)\right)-\left(K_{0}(\bar{Q}r_{\perp})-\frac{\bar{Q}r_{\perp}}{2}K_{1}(\bar{Q}r_{\perp})\right)\kappa_{T}\left(\bar{Q}r_{\perp}\right)\right)\right], \qquad (B.12)$$

with the function $\kappa_T(x)$ defined by

$$\kappa_T(x) \equiv \frac{2}{2K_0(x) - xK_1(x)} \int_0^\infty \mathrm{d}\ell \; \frac{\ell^3 J_0(\ell x)}{(\ell^2 + 1)^2} \left[\frac{1}{\ell} \ln(1+\ell) - \ln\left(1+\frac{1}{\ell}\right) \right] \,. \tag{B.13}$$

The function $\kappa_T(x)$ goes to 0 as $x \to 0$, which implies that the k_{\perp} -dependent coefficient of the single threshold logarithm vanishes in the $z \to 1$ limit.

C The Fourier transform of the logarithm as a distribution

The following identities will be useful for the computations in section (5.2):

$$\int \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp} f(\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}) \int \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{k}_{\perp} e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}} \ln\left(\frac{\boldsymbol{u}_{\perp}^2 \boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^2}{c_0^2}\right) = -(4\pi) \mathcal{P}_{\boldsymbol{u}_{\perp}}\left(\frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}^2}\right) [f], \quad (C.1)$$

$$\int \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp} f(\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}) \int \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{k}_{\perp} e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}} \ln\left(\frac{\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}^2 \boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^2}{c_0^2}\right) = -4\pi \int \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp} \frac{f(\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp})}{\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}^2}, \qquad (C.2)$$

where we defined

$$\mathcal{P}_{\boldsymbol{u}_{\perp}}\left(\frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}^{2}}\right)[f] \equiv \int \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp} \left[\frac{f(\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}) - f(0)\Theta(\boldsymbol{u}_{\perp}^{2} - \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}^{2})}{\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}^{2}}\right].$$
 (C.3)

We begin with the proof of eq. (C.1) following section (2.9) in [134]:

$$\mathcal{P}_{\boldsymbol{u}_{\perp}}\left(\frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}^{2}}\right)[f] = \int \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp} \int \frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}}{(2\pi)^{2}} \tilde{f}(\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}) \left[\frac{e^{i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}} - \Theta(\boldsymbol{u}_{\perp}^{2} - \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}^{2})}{\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}^{2}}\right], \quad (C.4)$$

where we used the definition of $\mathcal{P}_{u_{\perp}}$ and we traded the function $f(\mathbf{r}_{\perp})$ by its Fourier transform $\tilde{f}(\mathbf{k}_{\perp})$ defined as

$$\tilde{f}(\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}) = \int \mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp} e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}} f(\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}) \,. \tag{C.5}$$

Now one can easily perform the integration over r_{\perp}

$$\int \frac{\mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}}{2\pi} \left[\frac{e^{i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}} - \Theta(\boldsymbol{u}_{\perp}^2 - \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}^2)}{\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}^2} \right] = \int \frac{\mathrm{d}^2 \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}}{2\pi} \left[\frac{e^{i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}} - \Theta(\boldsymbol{u}_{\perp}^2 - \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}^2)}{\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}^2} \right]$$
$$= \int_0^\infty \frac{\mathrm{d} \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}} \left[J_0(\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp} \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}) - \Theta(\boldsymbol{u}_{\perp} - \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}) \right]$$
$$= -\frac{1}{2} \ln \left(\frac{\boldsymbol{u}_{\perp}^2 \boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^2}{c_0^2} \right), \qquad (C.6)$$

where in the last equality we used $\int_0^\infty \frac{dz}{z} [J_0(z) - \Theta(1-z)] = \ln(c_0)$ with $c_0 = 2 \exp(-\gamma_E)$.

Combining the results in eqs. (C.4) and (C.6), we find

$$\mathcal{P}_{\boldsymbol{u}_{\perp}}\left(\frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}^{2}}\right)[f] = -\frac{1}{4\pi} \int \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\tilde{f}(\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp})\ln\left(\frac{\boldsymbol{u}_{\perp}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^{2}}{c_{0}^{2}}\right).$$
(C.7)

Eq. (C.1) is readily obtained by inserting eq. (C.5) into eq. (C.6).

Next we prove the identity in eq. (C.2). We re-express the identity in eq. (C.1) by rewriting the logarithm in the integrand:

$$- (4\pi) \mathcal{P}_{\boldsymbol{u}_{\perp}} \left(\frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}^{2}} \right) [f]$$

$$= \int \mathrm{d}^{2} \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp} f(\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}) \int \mathrm{d}^{2} \boldsymbol{k}_{\perp} e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp} \cdot \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}} \left[\ln \left(\frac{(\boldsymbol{u}_{\perp}^{2} + \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}^{2}) \boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^{2}}{c_{0}^{2}} \right) + \ln \left(\frac{\boldsymbol{u}_{\perp}^{2}}{(\boldsymbol{u}_{\perp}^{2} + \boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}^{2})} \right) \right]. \quad (C.8)$$

One then observes that the second term does not contribute as the integral over \mathbf{k}_{\perp} results in a delta function $\delta^{(2)}(\mathbf{r}_{\perp})$ and then this term is proportional to $\ln(\mathbf{u}_{\perp}^2/\mathbf{u}_{\perp}^2) = 0$. Thus, we arrive at an alternative form of eq. (C.1):

$$-(4\pi)\mathcal{P}_{\boldsymbol{u}_{\perp}}\left(\frac{1}{\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}^{2}}\right)[f] = \int \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}f(\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp})\int \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}e^{-i\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}\cdot\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}}\ln\left(\frac{(\boldsymbol{u}_{\perp}^{2}+\boldsymbol{r}_{\perp}^{2})\boldsymbol{k}_{\perp}^{2}}{c_{0}^{2}}\right).$$
(C.9)

The result in eq. (C.2) is obtained by letting $u_{\perp} \rightarrow 0$ in the equation above.

D Cancellation of final state interferences in fully inclusive DIS

For longitudinal photon, the total cross-section from these diagrams can be obtained by integrating over η the expression given by eq. (5.17) (modulo a factor of 1/2 since eq. (5.17))

accounts for both quark and antiquark tagged jets)

$$\begin{split} \sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X} \Big|_{\rm V3\times LO^{*}+R2\times \overline{R2}^{*}} + c.c. = \\ \frac{\alpha_{\rm em}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{2}} \int_{0}^{1} dz \left[8z^{2}(1-z)Q^{2} \right] \int \frac{d^{2}\boldsymbol{b}_{\perp}}{2\pi} d^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'} \frac{d^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}^{2}} \\ \times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi} \int_{z-1}^{z} \frac{dz_{g}}{z_{g}} K_{0} \left(\bar{Q} \left| (z-z_{g})\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'} + (1-z+z_{g})\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'} \right| \right) K_{0} \left(\bar{Q}_{\rm V3} \left| z\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'} + (1-z)\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'} \right| \right) \\ \times (1-z+z_{g})(z-z_{g})^{2} \left[1 + \frac{((1-z)\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'} + (z-z_{g})\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}) \cdot (z\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'} + (1-z+z_{g})\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'})}{(1-z)(1-z+z_{g})\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}^{2} - z(z-z_{g})\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}^{2}} \right] \\ \times 2\mathfrak{Re} \left[\Xi_{\rm NLO}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}', \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}') \right], \end{split}$$
(D.1)

where the transverse coordinates in the color structure are evaluated at the coordinates $\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{x}'_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{y}'_{\perp}$ are given by eqs. (5.18) in terms of the impact parameter \boldsymbol{b}_{\perp} and the transverse vectors $\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}, \boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}$. In eq. (D.1), we now perform the change of variable

$$\zeta = z - z_g \,, \tag{D.2}$$

$$\zeta_g = -z_g \,. \tag{D.3}$$

We have then

$$\int_{0}^{1} \mathrm{d}z \int_{-1}^{1} \mathrm{d}z_{g} \Theta(z - z_{g}) \Theta(z_{g} + 1 - z) = \int_{0}^{1} \mathrm{d}\zeta \int_{-1}^{1} \mathrm{d}\zeta_{g} \Theta(\zeta - \zeta_{g}) \Theta(\zeta_{g} + 1 - \zeta) , \qquad (\mathrm{D.4})$$

which shows that the longitudinal phase space integrals remains the same. After this change of variable, eq. (D.1) reads

$$\begin{split} \sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to X} \Big|_{\mathrm{V3\times LO^{*}+R2\times \overline{R2}^{*}}} + c.c. = \\ \frac{\alpha_{\mathrm{em}}e_{f}^{2}N_{c}}{(2\pi)^{2}} \int_{0}^{1} \mathrm{d}\zeta \left[8\zeta^{2}(1-\zeta)Q^{2} \right] \int \frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{b}_{\perp}}{2\pi} \mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'} \frac{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}}{\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}^{2}} \\ \times \frac{\alpha_{s}}{\pi} \int_{\zeta-1}^{\zeta} \frac{\mathrm{d}\zeta_{g}}{(-\zeta_{g})} K_{0} \left(\bar{Q} \left| (\zeta-\zeta_{g})\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'} + (1-\zeta+\zeta_{g})\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'} \right| \right) K_{0} \left(\bar{Q}_{\mathrm{V3}} \left| \zeta\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'} + (1-\zeta)\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'} \right| \right) \\ \times (1-\zeta+\zeta_{g})(\zeta-\zeta_{g})^{2} \left[1 + \frac{((1-\zeta)\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'} + (\zeta-\zeta_{g})\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}) \cdot (\zeta\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'} + (1-\zeta+\zeta_{g})\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'})}{(1-\zeta)(1-\zeta+\zeta_{g})\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}^{2} - \zeta(\zeta-\zeta_{g})\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'}^{2}} \right] \\ \times 2\mathfrak{Re} \left[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},3}(\widetilde{\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}},\widetilde{\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}},\widetilde{\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}}',\widetilde{\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}}') \right], \end{split}$$
(D.5)

with obviously, $\bar{Q}^2 = \zeta(1-\zeta)Q^2$ and $\bar{Q}_{V3}^2 = (\zeta-\zeta_g)(1-\zeta+\zeta_g)Q^2$. Note the important minus sign in the denominator $d\zeta_g/(-\zeta_g)$. The CGC correlator is evaluated at the transverse coordinate $\widetilde{\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}}, \widetilde{\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}}, \widetilde{\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}}', \widetilde{\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}}'$, which are functions of the new variables ζ, ζ_g :

$$\widetilde{\boldsymbol{x}}_{\perp} = \boldsymbol{b}_{\perp} + (1-\zeta)[(\zeta-\zeta_g)\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'} + (1-\zeta+\zeta_g)\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}],$$

$$\widetilde{\boldsymbol{y}}_{\perp} = \boldsymbol{b}_{\perp} - \zeta[(\zeta-\zeta_g)\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'} + (1-\zeta+\zeta_g)\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}],$$

$$\widetilde{\boldsymbol{x}}_{\perp}' = \boldsymbol{b}_{\perp} + (1-\zeta+\zeta_g)[\zeta\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'} + (1-\zeta)\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}],$$

$$\widetilde{\boldsymbol{y}}_{\perp}' = \boldsymbol{b}_{\perp} - (\zeta-\zeta_g)[\zeta\boldsymbol{r}_{xx'} + (1-\zeta)\boldsymbol{r}_{yy'}].$$
(D.6)

It is clear that the transverse coordinates $\widetilde{x_{\perp}}, \widetilde{y_{\perp}}, \widetilde{x_{\perp}}'$ and $\widetilde{y_{\perp}}'$ are nothing but $x'_{\perp}, y'_{\perp}, x_{\perp}$ and y_{\perp} expressed in terms of ζ and ζ_q . Further, the color structure satisfies the identity

$$2\mathfrak{Re}\left[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},3}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}',\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}')\right] = 2\mathfrak{Re}\left[\Xi_{\mathrm{NLO},3}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}',\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}',\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp},\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp})\right], \quad (\mathrm{D.7})$$

which follows from $\Xi_{\text{NLO},3}(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}', \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}', \boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}) = \Xi_{\text{NLO},3}^*(\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}, \boldsymbol{x}_{\perp}', \boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}')$. Hence, one gets

$$\sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\Big|_{\rm V3\times LO^{*}+R2\times\overline{R2}^{*}} + c.c. = -\left(\left.\sigma^{\gamma_{\rm L}^{\star}+A\to X}\right|_{\rm V3\times LO^{*}+R2\times\overline{R2}^{*}} + c.c.\right),\qquad(D.8)$$

which implies that the sum of the total cross-section associated with diagrams $V3 \times LO^*$, $R2 \times \overline{R2}^*$ and their complex conjugate is exactly zero.

We emphasize that it is crucial to use the proper definition of the impact parameter $\boldsymbol{b}_{\perp} = (z - z_g)\boldsymbol{x}_{\perp} + (1 - z + z_g)\boldsymbol{y}_{\perp}$ for diagrams V3×LO^{*} and R2×R2^{*} to have the cancellation of these diagrams also differentially in impact parameter space, namely

$$\frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{b}_{\perp}}\bigg|_{\mathrm{V3\times LO^{*}+R2\times\overline{R2}^{*}}} + \frac{\mathrm{d}\sigma^{\gamma_{\mathrm{L}}^{\star}+A\to X}}{\mathrm{d}^{2}\boldsymbol{b}_{\perp}}\bigg|_{\mathrm{LO\times V3^{*}+\overline{R2}\times R2^{*}}} = 0.$$
(D.9)

This cancellation is a requirement for the optical theorem to work differentially with the impact parameter b_{\perp} (as it should), since a contribution coming from V3×LO^{*} and R2× $\overline{\text{R2}}^*$ would contradict the results obtained in [18–20] (indeed, these results do not depend on the quadrupole correlator for instance)

Open Access. This article is distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution License (CC-BY4.0), which permits any use, distribution and reproduction in any medium, provided the original author(s) and source are credited.

References

- B.Z. Kopeliovich, L.I. Lapidus and A.B. Zamolodchikov, Dynamics of Color in Hadron Diffraction on Nuclei, JETP Lett. 33 (1981) 595 [INSPIRE].
- [2] G. Bertsch, S.J. Brodsky, A.S. Goldhaber and J.F. Gunion, Diffractive Excitation in QCD, Phys. Rev. Lett. 47 (1981) 297 [INSPIRE].
- [3] A.H. Mueller, Small x Behavior and Parton Saturation: A QCD Model, Nucl. Phys. B 335 (1990) 115 [INSPIRE].
- [4] N.N. Nikolaev and B.G. Zakharov, Color transparency and scaling properties of nuclear shadowing in deep inelastic scattering, Z. Phys. C 49 (1991) 607 [INSPIRE].
- [5] T. Regge, Introduction to complex orbital momenta, Nuovo Cim. 14 (1959) 951 [INSPIRE].
- [6] L.V. Gribov, E.M. Levin and M.G. Ryskin, Semihard Processes in QCD, Phys. Rept. 100 (1983) 1 [INSPIRE].
- [7] A.H. Mueller and J.-W. Qiu, Gluon Recombination and Shadowing at Small Values of x, Nucl. Phys. B 268 (1986) 427 [INSPIRE].
- [8] A.H. Mueller and D.N. Triantafyllopoulos, The energy dependence of the saturation momentum, Nucl. Phys. B 640 (2002) 331 [hep-ph/0205167] [INSPIRE].

- [9] E. Iancu, K. Itakura and L. McLerran, Geometric scaling above the saturation scale, Nucl. Phys. A 708 (2002) 327 [hep-ph/0203137] [INSPIRE].
- S. Munier and R.B. Peschanski, Geometric scaling as traveling waves, Phys. Rev. Lett. 91 (2003) 232001 [hep-ph/0309177] [INSPIRE].
- [11] L.D. McLerran and R. Venugopalan, Gluon distribution functions for very large nuclei at small transverse momentum, Phys. Rev. D 49 (1994) 3352 [hep-ph/9311205] [INSPIRE].
- [12] L.D. McLerran and R. Venugopalan, Computing quark and gluon distribution functions for very large nuclei, Phys. Rev. D 49 (1994) 2233 [hep-ph/9309289] [INSPIRE].
- [13] L.D. McLerran and R. Venugopalan, Fock space distributions, structure functions, higher twists and small x, Phys. Rev. D 59 (1999) 094002 [hep-ph/9809427] [INSPIRE].
- [14] A. Accardi et al., Electron Ion Collider: The Next QCD Frontier: Understanding the glue that binds us all, Eur. Phys. J. A 52 (2016) 268 [arXiv:1212.1701] [INSPIRE].
- [15] R. Abdul Khalek et al., Science Requirements and Detector Concepts for the Electron-Ion Collider: EIC Yellow Report, Nucl. Phys. A 1026 (2022) 122447 [arXiv:2103.05419]
 [INSPIRE].
- [16] I. Balitsky and G.A. Chirilli, Next-to-leading order evolution of color dipoles, Phys. Rev. D 77 (2008) 014019 [arXiv:0710.4330] [INSPIRE].
- [17] G. Beuf, NLO corrections for the dipole factorization of DIS structure functions at low x, Phys. Rev. D 85 (2012) 034039 [arXiv:1112.4501] [INSPIRE].
- [18] G. Beuf, Dipole factorization for DIS at NLO: Loop correction to the $\gamma^*_{T,L} \to q\bar{q}$ light-front wave functions, Phys. Rev. D 94 (2016) 054016 [arXiv:1606.00777] [INSPIRE].
- [19] G. Beuf, Dipole factorization for DIS at NLO: Combining the q\u03eq and q\u03eq g contributions, Phys. Rev. D 96 (2017) 074033 [arXiv:1708.06557] [INSPIRE].
- [20] H. Hänninen, T. Lappi and R. Paatelainen, One-loop corrections to light cone wave functions: the dipole picture DIS cross section, Annals Phys. 393 (2018) 358 [arXiv:1711.08207]
 [INSPIRE].
- [21] G. Beuf, T. Lappi and R. Paatelainen, Massive quarks in NLO dipole factorization for DIS: Longitudinal photon, Phys. Rev. D 104 (2021) 056032 [arXiv:2103.14549] [INSPIRE].
- [22] G. Beuf, T. Lappi and R. Paatelainen, Massive Quarks at One Loop in the Dipole Picture of Deep Inelastic Scattering, Phys. Rev. Lett. 129 (2022) 072001 [arXiv:2112.03158] [INSPIRE].
- [23] G. Beuf, T. Lappi and R. Paatelainen, Massive quarks in NLO dipole factorization for DIS: Transverse photon, Phys. Rev. D 106 (2022) 034013 [arXiv:2204.02486] [INSPIRE].
- [24] G. Beuf et al., Diffractive deep inelastic scattering at NLO in the dipole picture: The $q\bar{q}g$ contribution, Phys. Rev. D 106 (2022) 094014 [arXiv:2206.13161] [INSPIRE].
- [25] R. Boussarie et al., Next-to-Leading Order Computation of Exclusive Diffractive Light Vector Meson Production in a Saturation Framework, Phys. Rev. Lett. 119 (2017) 072002 [arXiv:1612.08026] [INSPIRE].
- [26] H. Mäntysaari and J. Penttala, Exclusive heavy vector meson production at next-to-leading order in the dipole picture, Phys. Lett. B 823 (2021) 136723 [arXiv:2104.02349] [INSPIRE].
- [27] H. Mäntysaari and J. Penttala, Exclusive production of light vector mesons at next-to-leading order in the dipole picture, Phys. Rev. D 105 (2022) 114038 [arXiv:2203.16911] [INSPIRE].

- [28] R. Boussarie, A.V. Grabovsky, L. Szymanowski and S. Wallon, On the one loop $\gamma^{(*)} \rightarrow q\bar{q}$ impact factor and the exclusive diffractive cross sections for the production of two or three jets, JHEP 11 (2016) 149 [arXiv:1606.00419] [INSPIRE].
- [29] M. Fucilla et al., NLO computation of diffractive di-hadron production in a saturation framework, JHEP 03 (2023) 159 [arXiv:2211.05774] [INSPIRE].
- [30] K. Roy and R. Venugopalan, Extracting many-body correlators of saturated gluons with precision from inclusive photon+dijet final states in deeply inelastic scattering, Phys. Rev. D 101 (2020) 071505 [arXiv:1911.04519] [INSPIRE].
- [31] K. Roy and R. Venugopalan, NLO impact factor for inclusive photon+dijet production in e + A DIS at small x, Phys. Rev. D 101 (2020) 034028 [arXiv:1911.04530] [INSPIRE].
- [32] Z.-B. Kang, E. Li and F. Salazar, Direct quarkonium-plus-gluon production in DIS in the color glass condensate, JHEP 03 (2024) 027 [arXiv:2310.12102] [INSPIRE].
- [33] P. Caucal, F. Salazar and R. Venugopalan, Dijet impact factor in DIS at next-to-leading order in the Color Glass Condensate, JHEP 11 (2021) 222 [arXiv:2108.06347] [INSPIRE].
- [34] F. Bergabo and J. Jalilian-Marian, One-loop corrections to dihadron production in DIS at small x, Phys. Rev. D 106 (2022) 054035 [arXiv:2207.03606] [INSPIRE].
- [35] F. Bergabo and J. Jalilian-Marian, Dihadron production in DIS at small x at next-to-leading order: Transverse photons, Phys. Rev. D 107 (2023) 054036 [arXiv:2301.03117] [INSPIRE].
- [36] P. Taels, T. Altinoluk, G. Beuf and C. Marquet, Dijet photoproduction at low x at next-to-leading order and its back-to-back limit, JHEP 10 (2022) 184 [arXiv:2204.11650]
 [INSPIRE].
- [37] E. Iancu and Y. Mulian, Dihadron production in DIS at NLO: the real corrections, JHEP 07 (2023) 121 [arXiv:2211.04837] [INSPIRE].
- [38] F. Dominguez, C. Marquet, B.-W. Xiao and F. Yuan, Universality of Unintegrated Gluon Distributions at small x, Phys. Rev. D 83 (2011) 105005 [arXiv:1101.0715] [INSPIRE].
- [39] A.H. Mueller, B.-W. Xiao and F. Yuan, Sudakov Resummation in Small-x Saturation Formalism, Phys. Rev. Lett. 110 (2013) 082301 [arXiv:1210.5792] [INSPIRE].
- [40] A.H. Mueller, B.-W. Xiao and F. Yuan, Sudakov double logarithms resummation in hard processes in the small-x saturation formalism, Phys. Rev. D 88 (2013) 114010
 [arXiv:1308.2993] [INSPIRE].
- [41] I. Balitsky and A. Tarasov, Rapidity evolution of gluon TMD from low to moderate x, JHEP 10 (2015) 017 [arXiv:1505.02151] [INSPIRE].
- [42] B.-W. Xiao, F. Yuan and J. Zhou, Transverse Momentum Dependent Parton Distributions at Small-x, Nucl. Phys. B 921 (2017) 104 [arXiv:1703.06163] [INSPIRE].
- [43] T. Altinoluk, R. Boussarie and P. Kotko, Interplay of the CGC and TMD frameworks to all orders in kinematic twist, JHEP 05 (2019) 156 [arXiv:1901.01175] [INSPIRE].
- [44] T. Altinoluk and R. Boussarie, Low x physics as an infinite twist (G)TMD framework: unravelling the origins of saturation, JHEP 10 (2019) 208 [arXiv:1902.07930] [INSPIRE].
- [45] T. Altinoluk, R. Boussarie, C. Marquet and P. Taels, Photoproduction of three jets in the CGC: gluon TMDs and dilute limit, JHEP 07 (2020) 143 [arXiv:2001.00765] [INSPIRE].
- [46] R. Boussarie and Y. Mehtar-Tani, Gauge invariance of transverse momentum dependent distributions at small x, Phys. Rev. D 103 (2021) 094012 [arXiv:2001.06449] [INSPIRE].

- [47] E. Iancu, A.H. Mueller and D.N. Triantafyllopoulos, Probing Parton Saturation and the Gluon Dipole via Diffractive Jet Production at the Electron-Ion Collider, Phys. Rev. Lett. 128 (2022) 202001 [arXiv:2112.06353] [INSPIRE].
- [48] E. Iancu, A.H. Mueller, D.N. Triantafyllopoulos and S.Y. Wei, Gluon dipole factorisation for diffractive dijets, JHEP 10 (2022) 103 [arXiv:2207.06268] [INSPIRE].
- [49] P. Caucal, F. Salazar, B. Schenke and R. Venugopalan, Back-to-back inclusive dijets in DIS at small x: Sudakov suppression and gluon saturation at NLO, JHEP 11 (2022) 169 [arXiv:2208.13872] [INSPIRE].
- [50] P. Caucal et al., Back-to-back inclusive dijets in DIS at small x: gluon Weizsäcker-Williams distribution at NLO, JHEP 08 (2023) 062 [arXiv:2304.03304] [INSPIRE].
- [51] P. Caucal et al., Back-to-Back Inclusive Dijets in Deep Inelastic Scattering at Small x: Complete NLO Results and Predictions, Phys. Rev. Lett. 132 (2024) 081902
 [arXiv:2308.00022] [INSPIRE].
- [52] Y. Hatta, B.-W. Xiao and F. Yuan, Semi-inclusive diffractive deep inelastic scattering at small x, Phys. Rev. D 106 (2022) 094015 [arXiv:2205.08060] [INSPIRE].
- [53] T. Altinoluk, N. Armesto and G. Beuf, Probing quark transverse momentum distributions in the color glass condensate: Quark-gluon dijets in deep inelastic scattering at next-to-eikonal accuracy, Phys. Rev. D 108 (2023) 074023 [arXiv:2303.12691] [INSPIRE].
- [54] S. Mukherjee, V.V. Skokov, A. Tarasov and S. Tiwari, Unified description of DGLAP, CSS, and BFKL evolution: TMD factorization bridging large and small x, Phys. Rev. D 109 (2024) 034035 [arXiv:2311.16402] [INSPIRE].
- [55] L.D. McLerran, The color glass condensate and small x physics: Four lectures, Lect. Notes Phys. 583 (2002) 291 [hep-ph/0104285] [INSPIRE].
- [56] E. Iancu, A. Leonidov and L. McLerran, *The color glass condensate: An Introduction*, in the proceedings of the *Cargese Summer School on QCD Perspectives on Hot and Dense Matter*, Cargese, France, August 06–18 (2001) [hep-ph/0202270] [INSPIRE].
- [57] F. Gelis, E. Iancu, J. Jalilian-Marian and R. Venugopalan, The Color Glass Condensate, Ann. Rev. Nucl. Part. Sci. 60 (2010) 463 [arXiv:1002.0333] [INSPIRE].
- [58] F. Gelis, Color Glass Condensate and Glasma, Int. J. Mod. Phys. A 28 (2013) 1330001 [arXiv:1211.3327] [INSPIRE].
- [59] A. Morreale and F. Salazar, Mining for Gluon Saturation at Colliders, Universe 7 (2021) 312 [arXiv:2108.08254] [INSPIRE].
- [60] R. Venugopalan, Classical methods in DIS and nuclear scattering at small x, Acta Phys. Polon. B 30 (1999) 3731 [hep-ph/9911371] [INSPIRE].
- [61] A.H. Mueller, Parton saturation at small x and in large nuclei, Nucl. Phys. B 558 (1999) 285
 [hep-ph/9904404] [INSPIRE].
- [62] C. Marquet, B.-W. Xiao and F. Yuan, Semi-inclusive Deep Inelastic Scattering at small x, Phys. Lett. B 682 (2009) 207 [arXiv:0906.1454] [INSPIRE].
- [63] J. Zhou, Transverse single spin asymmetries at small x and the anomalous magnetic moment, Phys. Rev. D 89 (2014) 074050 [arXiv:1308.5912] [INSPIRE].
- [64] X.-B. Tong, B.-W. Xiao and Y.-Y. Zhang, Harmonics of Parton Saturation in Lepton-Jet Correlations at the Electron-Ion Collider, Phys. Rev. Lett. 130 (2023) 151902 [arXiv:2211.01647] [INSPIRE].

- [65] X.-B. Tong, B.-W. Xiao and Y.-Y. Zhang, Harmonics of lepton-jet correlations in inclusive and diffractive scatterings, Phys. Rev. D 109 (2024) 054004 [arXiv:2310.20662] [INSPIRE].
- [66] Z.-B. Kang, J. Penttala, F. Zhao and Y. Zhou, Transverse Energy-Energy Correlators in the Color-Glass Condensate at the Electron-Ion Collider, arXiv:2311.17142 [INSPIRE].
- [67] E. Iancu, A.H. Mueller, D.N. Triantafyllopoulos and S.Y. Wei, Saturation effects in SIDIS at very forward rapidities, JHEP 07 (2021) 196 [arXiv:2012.08562] [INSPIRE].
- [68] D. Antreasyan et al., Production of Hadrons at Large Transverse Momentum in 200 GeV, 300 GeV and 400 GeV pp and pn Collisions, Phys. Rev. D 19 (1979) 764 [INSPIRE].
- [69] J. Jalilian-Marian, Y. Nara and R. Venugopalan, The Cronin effect, quantum evolution and the color glass condensate, Phys. Lett. B 577 (2003) 54 [nucl-th/0307022] [INSPIRE].
- [70] B.-W. Xiao and F. Yuan, On the Threshold Resummation in Forward pA Collisions, Phys. Lett. B 788 (2019) 261 [arXiv:1806.03522] [INSPIRE].
- [71] H.-Y. Liu, Z.-B. Kang and X. Liu, Threshold resummation for hadron production in the small-x region, Phys. Rev. D 102 (2020) 051502 [arXiv:2004.11990] [INSPIRE].
- Y. Shi, L. Wang, S.-Y. Wei and B.-W. Xiao, Pursuing the Precision Study for Color Glass Condensate in Forward Hadron Productions, Phys. Rev. Lett. 128 (2022) 202302
 [arXiv:2112.06975] [INSPIRE].
- [73] L. Wang et al., Forward inclusive jet productions in pA collisions, Phys. Rev. D 107 (2023)
 016016 [arXiv:2211.08322] [INSPIRE].
- [74] H.-Y. Liu, K. Xie, Z. Kang and X. Liu, Single inclusive jet production in pA collisions at NLO in the small-x regime, JHEP 07 (2022) 041 [arXiv:2204.03026] [INSPIRE].
- [75] F. Bergabo and J. Jalilian-Marian, Single inclusive hadron production in DIS at small x: next to leading order corrections, JHEP 01 (2023) 095 [arXiv:2210.03208] [INSPIRE].
- [76] M. Fucilla et al., Diffractive single hadron production in a saturation framework at the NLO, JHEP 02 (2024) 165 [arXiv:2310.11066] [INSPIRE].
- [77] A. Dumitru and V. Skokov, Anisotropy of the semiclassical gluon field of a large nucleus at high energy, Phys. Rev. D 91 (2015) 074006 [arXiv:1411.6630] [INSPIRE].
- [78] A. Dumitru, V. Skokov and T. Ullrich, Measuring the Weizsäcker-Williams distribution of linearly polarized gluons at an electron-ion collider through dijet azimuthal asymmetries, Phys. Rev. C 99 (2019) 015204 [arXiv:1809.02615] [INSPIRE].
- [79] Y.-Y. Zhao et al., Suppressions of dijet azimuthal correlations in the future EIC, Phys. Rev. D 104 (2021) 114032 [arXiv:2105.08818] [INSPIRE].
- [80] H. Mäntysaari, N. Mueller, F. Salazar and B. Schenke, Multigluon Correlations and Evidence of Saturation from Dijet Measurements at an Electron-Ion Collider, Phys. Rev. Lett. 124 (2020) 112301 [arXiv:1912.05586] [INSPIRE].
- [81] R. Boussarie, H. Mäntysaari, F. Salazar and B. Schenke, The importance of kinematic twists and genuine saturation effects in dijet production at the Electron-Ion Collider, JHEP 09 (2021) 178 [arXiv:2106.11301] [INSPIRE].
- [82] A. van Hameren et al., Probing gluon number density with electron-dijet correlations at EIC, Eur. Phys. J. C 81 (2021) 741 [arXiv:2106.13964] [INSPIRE].
- [83] F. Gelis and J. Jalilian-Marian, From DIS to proton nucleus collisions in the color glass condensate model, Phys. Rev. D 67 (2003) 074019 [hep-ph/0211363] [INSPIRE].

- [84] M. Cacciari et al., Single-jet inclusive cross section and its definition, Phys. Rev. D 100 (2019) 114015 [arXiv:1906.11850] [INSPIRE].
- [85] L. Lukaszuk and B. Nicolescu, A possible interpretation of pp rising total cross-sections, Lett. Nuovo Cim. 8 (1973) 405 [INSPIRE].
- [86] D. Joynson, E. Leader, B. Nicolescu and C. Lopez, NonRegge and HyperRegge Effects in Pion-Nucleon Charge Exchange Scattering at High-Energies, Nuovo Cim. A 30 (1975) 345 [INSPIRE].
- [87] Y. Hatta, E. Iancu, K. Itakura and L. McLerran, Odderon in the color glass condensate, Nucl. Phys. A 760 (2005) 172 [hep-ph/0501171] [INSPIRE].
- [88] R. Boussarie, Perturbative study of selected exclusive QCD processes at high and moderate energies, Ph.D. thesis, Laboratoire de Physique Théorique d'Orsay (LPT), Université Paris-Saclay, F-91405 Orsay Cedex, France (2016) [INSPIRE].
- [89] G.P. Salam, Towards Jetography, Eur. Phys. J. C 67 (2010) 637 [arXiv:0906.1833] [INSPIRE].
- [90] M. Cacciari, G.P. Salam and G. Soyez, FastJet User Manual, Eur. Phys. J. C 72 (2012) 1896 [arXiv:1111.6097] [INSPIRE].
- [91] M. Cacciari, G.P. Salam and G. Soyez, *The anti-k_t jet clustering algorithm*, *JHEP* **04** (2008) 063 [arXiv:0802.1189] [INSPIRE].
- [92] M. Wobisch and T. Wengler, Hadronization corrections to jet cross-sections in deep inelastic scattering, in the proceedings of the Workshop on Monte Carlo Generators for HERA Physics (Plenary Starting Meeting), Hamburg, Germany, April 27–30 (1998) [hep-ph/9907280]
 [INSPIRE].
- [93] I. Balitsky, Operator expansion for high-energy scattering, Nucl. Phys. B 463 (1996) 99 [hep-ph/9509348] [INSPIRE].
- [94] J. Jalilian-Marian, A. Kovner and H. Weigert, The Wilson renormalization group for low x physics: Gluon evolution at finite parton density, Phys. Rev. D 59 (1998) 014015
 [hep-ph/9709432] [INSPIRE].
- [95] J. Jalilian-Marian, A. Kovner, A. Leonidov and H. Weigert, The BFKL equation from the Wilson renormalization group, Nucl. Phys. B 504 (1997) 415 [hep-ph/9701284] [INSPIRE].
- [96] E. Iancu, A. Leonidov and L.D. McLerran, Nonlinear gluon evolution in the color glass condensate. 1, Nucl. Phys. A 692 (2001) 583 [hep-ph/0011241] [INSPIRE].
- [97] E. Iancu and L.D. McLerran, Saturation and universality in QCD at small x, Phys. Lett. B 510 (2001) 145 [hep-ph/0103032] [INSPIRE].
- [98] Y.V. Kovchegov, Small x F₂ structure function of a nucleus including multiple pomeron exchanges, Phys. Rev. D 60 (1999) 034008 [hep-ph/9901281] [INSPIRE].
- [99] Y.V. Kovchegov and H. Weigert, Triumvirate of Running Couplings in Small-x Evolution, Nucl. Phys. A 784 (2007) 188 [hep-ph/0609090] [INSPIRE].
- [100] I. Balitsky and G.A. Chirilli, Rapidity evolution of Wilson lines at the next-to-leading order, Phys. Rev. D 88 (2013) 111501 [arXiv:1309.7644] [INSPIRE].
- [101] A. Kovner, M. Lublinsky and Y. Mulian, Jalilian-Marian, Iancu, McLerran, Weigert, Leonidov, Kovner evolution at next to leading order, Phys. Rev. D 89 (2014) 061704 [arXiv:1310.0378]
 [INSPIRE].
- [102] A. Kovner, M. Lublinsky and Y. Mulian, NLO JIMWLK evolution unabridged, JHEP 08 (2014) 114 [arXiv:1405.0418] [INSPIRE].

- [103] M. Lublinsky and Y. Mulian, High Energy QCD at NLO: from light-cone wave function to JIMWLK evolution, JHEP 05 (2017) 097 [arXiv:1610.03453] [INSPIRE].
- [104] J.P. Blaizot, F. Gelis and R. Venugopalan, High-energy pA collisions in the color glass condensate approach. II. Quark production, Nucl. Phys. A 743 (2004) 57 [hep-ph/0402257]
 [INSPIRE].
- [105] A. Dumitru et al., Renormalization group evolution of multi-gluon correlators in high energy QCD, Phys. Lett. B 706 (2011) 219 [arXiv:1108.4764] [INSPIRE].
- [106] E. Iancu and D.N. Triantafyllopoulos, JIMWLK evolution in the Gaussian approximation, JHEP 04 (2012) 025 [arXiv:1112.1104] [INSPIRE].
- [107] A. Metz and J. Zhou, Distribution of linearly polarized gluons inside a large nucleus, Phys. Rev. D 84 (2011) 051503 [arXiv:1105.1991] [INSPIRE].
- [108] F. Dominguez, J.-W. Qiu, B.-W. Xiao and F. Yuan, On the linearly polarized gluon distributions in the color dipole model, Phys. Rev. D 85 (2012) 045003 [arXiv:1109.6293] [INSPIRE].
- [109] G.F. Sterman, Summation of Large Corrections to Short Distance Hadronic Cross-Sections, Nucl. Phys. B 281 (1987) 310 [INSPIRE].
- [110] S. Catani and L. Trentadue, Resummation of the QCD Perturbative Series for Hard Processes, Nucl. Phys. B 327 (1989) 323 [INSPIRE].
- [111] J.G.M. Gatheral, Exponentiation of Eikonal Cross-sections in Nonabelian Gauge Theories, Phys. Lett. B 133 (1983) 90 [INSPIRE].
- [112] J. Frenkel and J.C. Taylor, Nonabelian Eikonal Exponentiation, Nucl. Phys. B 246 (1984) 231
 [INSPIRE].
- [113] G. Altarelli, R.K. Ellis, G. Martinelli and S.-Y. Pi, Processes Involving Fragmentation Functions Beyond the Leading Order in QCD, Nucl. Phys. B 160 (1979) 301 [INSPIRE].
- [114] M. Cacciari and S. Catani, Soft gluon resummation for the fragmentation of light and heavy quarks at large x, Nucl. Phys. B 617 (2001) 253 [hep-ph/0107138] [INSPIRE].
- [115] M. Stratmann and W. Vogelsang, Towards a global analysis of polarized parton distributions, Phys. Rev. D 64 (2001) 114007 [hep-ph/0107064] [INSPIRE].
- [116] G.F. Sterman and W. Vogelsang, Crossed Threshold Resummation, Phys. Rev. D 74 (2006) 114002 [hep-ph/0606211] [INSPIRE].
- [117] D.P. Anderle, F. Ringer and W. Vogelsang, QCD resummation for semi-inclusive hadron production processes, Phys. Rev. D 87 (2013) 034014 [arXiv:1212.2099] [INSPIRE].
- [118] G. Beuf, Improving the kinematics for low-x QCD evolution equations in coordinate space, Phys. Rev. D 89 (2014) 074039 [arXiv:1401.0313] [INSPIRE].
- [119] E. Iancu, A.H. Mueller and D.N. Triantafyllopoulos, CGC factorization for forward particle production in proton-nucleus collisions at next-to-leading order, JHEP 12 (2016) 041 [arXiv:1608.05293] [INSPIRE].
- [120] E. Iancu, T. Lappi and D. Triantafyllopoulos, Small-x Physics in the Dipole Picture at NLO Accuracy, in the proceedings of the Probing Nucleons and Nuclei in High Energy Collisions: Dedicated to the Physics of the Electron Ion Collider, Seattle, U.S.A., October 01 – November 16 (2018) [D0I:10.1142/9789811214950_0055] [INSPIRE].
- [121] B. Andersson, G. Gustafson and J. Samuelsson, The linked dipole chain model for DIS, Nucl. Phys. B 467 (1996) 443 [INSPIRE].

- [122] J. Kwiecinski, A.D. Martin and P.J. Sutton, Constraints on gluon evolution at small x, Z. Phys. C 71 (1996) 585 [hep-ph/9602320] [INSPIRE].
- [123] J. Kwiecinski, A.D. Martin and A.M. Stasto, A unified BFKL and GLAP description of F₂ data, Phys. Rev. D 56 (1997) 3991 [hep-ph/9703445] [INSPIRE].
- [124] G.P. Salam, A resummation of large subleading corrections at small x, JHEP 07 (1998) 019
 [hep-ph/9806482] [INSPIRE].
- [125] M. Ciafaloni and D. Colferai, The BFKL equation at next-to-leading level and beyond, Phys. Lett. B 452 (1999) 372 [hep-ph/9812366] [INSPIRE].
- [126] M. Ciafaloni, D. Colferai and G.P. Salam, Renormalization group improved small x equation, Phys. Rev. D 60 (1999) 114036 [hep-ph/9905566] [INSPIRE].
- [127] M. Ciafaloni, D. Colferai, G.P. Salam and A.M. Stasto, Renormalization group improved small x Green's function, Phys. Rev. D 68 (2003) 114003 [hep-ph/0307188] [INSPIRE].
- [128] A. Sabio Vera, An 'All-poles' approximation to collinear resummations in the Regge limit of perturbative QCD, Nucl. Phys. B 722 (2005) 65 [hep-ph/0505128] [INSPIRE].
- [129] L. Motyka and A.M. Stasto, Exact kinematics in the small x evolution of the color dipole and gluon cascade, Phys. Rev. D 79 (2009) 085016 [arXiv:0901.4949] [INSPIRE].
- [130] E. Iancu et al., Resumming double logarithms in the QCD evolution of color dipoles, Phys. Lett. B 744 (2015) 293 [arXiv:1502.05642] [INSPIRE].
- [131] H.-Y. Liu et al., Kinematic constraint in the BFKL evolution near threshold region, Phys. Rev. D 106 (2022) 036026 [arXiv:2204.00262] [INSPIRE].
- [132] H.-Y. Liu et al., Nucleon Energy Correlators for the Color Glass Condensate, Phys. Rev. Lett. 130 (2023) 181901 [arXiv:2301.01788] [INSPIRE].
- [133] L. Zheng, E.C. Aschenauer, J.H. Lee and B.-W. Xiao, Probing Gluon Saturation through Dihadron Correlations at an Electron-Ion Collider, Phys. Rev. D 89 (2014) 074037 [arXiv:1403.2413] [INSPIRE].
- [134] V.S. Vladimirov, Equations of mathematical physics, Moscow Izdatel Nauka (1976).